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Corporate Information

DNAEH
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Mr. LU Hua, Chairman

Mr. MOU Yong

Mr. WANG Minyuan (appointed on 28 September 2012)
Mr. LIU Chong
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Dr. WU Jiesi
Mr. HUANG Yige (appointed on 27 March 2012)
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Mr. WONG Po Yan

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael

Mr. LI Wai Keung

Company Secretary
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Mr. LU Hua
Mr. LIU Chong
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Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

Legal Adviser
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, Solicitors & Notaries

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd.

The Bank of East Asia, Ltd.

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
Hang Seng Bank Ltd.

Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Ltd.

Registered Office
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Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer Office
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26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Website
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Shareholding Structure

RE(RE)BRAR(DRE(KE) D)
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited
(“Shum Yip Holdings”)

FERUEREERABRAL

Strategic Investors and the Public

RIYIBERRE R D =
Shenzhen Investment Limited
1212 1X. 5% Stock Code: 604

TEHBAT

TREE AT

Principal Subsidiaries

Principal Associates
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Financial Highlights

M E
2012 2011 Change in
HK$ million  HK$ million Percentage
BEET BEET 2BEIN
Results e
Revenue U == 8,568.25  7,320.58 17 %
Cost of sales $HE AR 5,479.59  4,653.45 18%
Gross profit E 3,088.66 2,667.13 16%
Share of profits and losses of associates — FE{G & 2 &)@ 7| K &8 818.94 609.58 34%
Share of profits and losses of JEAE A HIE
jointly-controlled entities & | K g5 18 48.52 185.27 -74%
Profit before tax B 75 A1 4 ) 3,701.80  2,892.29 28%
Profit for the year attributable to [SYNCIEZZ= PN
owners of the parent F R A 2,156.07  1,522.08 42%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREARZFN CGBW) 59.23 42.86 38%
Interim and proposed final dividends B R R R AR B
per share (HK cents) &AL 18.00 15.00 20%
Financial Position B 7 5ik 5%

Net assets excluding non-controlling
interests PROFIEESRFEE  17,547.90 15,543.38 13%

Cash and deposits (including pledged BeREFX(BHEDEM

deposits and restricted cash) TREZBEHRE) 7,305.81 5,236.38 40%
Net loans FEK 14,904.55 11,242.91 33%
Net assets per share excluding R S 12 B 25 12

non-controlling interests (HK$) BROFEE (BT) 4.71 4.29 10%
Major Ratios FELX
Gross profit margin (%) E M (%) 36.05 36.43 1%
Net loans to net assets excluding FE L R IR AR

non-controlling interests (%) HREFEEL (%) 84.94 72.33 17%
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Turnover

Property development
Property investment
Property management
Manufacturing
Transportation services
Others

Total

Segment Results — Profit
Property development
Property investment (Note)
Property management
Manufacturing
Transportation services
Others

Total

Note:  Segment results included the increase in fair value of investment properties
of approximately HK$470.90 million (2011: HK$311.32 million).
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Analysis of Revenue and Profit

2012
HK$ million
BEAR

6,013.55
515.00
1,062.63
333.78
236.11
407.18

8,568.25

2,500.89
1,001.83
27.35
9.88
12.41
31.18

3,583.54

Wz &
2011
HKS$ million
BEBT
5,053.06
446.78
899.70
311.49
240.68

368.87

7,320.58

1,808.82
790.67
19.31
12.78
13.52
214.62

2,859.72
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

In 2012, despite experiencing a series of macroeconomic measures

in real estate industry launched by the central government, the Group

was able to stand on its steady operating principles with clear business

development objectives, actively reserved our prime resources, focused

on improving professional skills, deepened its internal management

reform and succeeded in achieving fabulous results.

——F - MY P RBTHELN—
RE—ENRREERE
ERITEE

Business Review

As the unceasing impact of the government’s market regulating
measures on the real estate industry continued, the beginning of
2012 perpetuated the downturn trend of the real estate market in
2011. Subsequently, the government fine-tuned its macro policies
with monetary policies relatively loosened, and deposit reserve
rate and interest rate began to adjust downwards. For the real
estate industry, the government implemented a differentiation
policy in which while the investment and speculative demand
were still continued to be curbed, the rigid demand like first-
home buyers was supported by policies. From the second
quarter, the fine-tuned policies started to demonstrate its efficacy
with market sentiment significantly improved. As driven by the
rigid housing demand, the real estate transaction volume was
gradually picking up. The Group timely grasped the market
opportunity, actively promoted its property sales, maintained
healthy financial position and had achieved good operating
results.

AR S A5 R B AR
Ael - RIENEBEIRE R - BUF T RAFAAS

R EHERE AR - ANEE
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ﬁ% cEBTFE 2% BERMAELEE
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MSHE BRESDHE  REVE
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Annual results and payment of dividends

During the year, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$8,568.3
million, representing an increase of 17.0% over the same period
of last year. Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders
was HK$2,156.1 million, representing an increase of 41.7%
over the same period of last year. Basic earnings per share were
HK59.23 cents, representing an increase of 38.2% over the same
period of last year. The Board recommended a final dividend of
HK11 cents per share for 2012.

Implementing the strategy of intensifying the
development in Shenzhen

During the year, the Group continued to implement the
strategy of intensifying the development in Shenzhen, and
while consolidating its existing residential business, the Group
expanded its commercial property business steadily, and through
asset injection from its parent company and the breakthrough
in urban re-development projects, the Group implemented
the strategic layout of its property business in Shenzhen and
achieved further development.

Promoting real estate sales actively

The Group focused its efforts on grasping the market
opportunities, adjusted its sales strategies to actively facilitate
the sales of its projects. During the year, Terra Building (&
KJE), a key project of the Group, received remarkable market
responses. The Group achieved contracted sales amounting
to approximately RMB1,250 million with a unit price of
RMB36,000 per square meter. With the continuous following-
up works for customers and launching additional units into
the market in appropriate proportion, the sales of residential
products was able to maintain a good momentum, achieved
contracted sales for the year of approximately RMB6,100 million,
representing an increase of 33.5% over the same period of last
year, and achieved 102% of its target for the year.

Engaging a professional team to improve management
standard

During the year, the Group engaged a professional and
international team in commercial property in the Hong Kong
market, injecting international vision insight and management
experience for its commercial property business. For its
residential development business, the Group integrated its
residential property platform and established a cost optimization
management and standardization process management system
in unity, thereby improving its management standard for its
residential development business and accelerating its assets
turnover ratio.
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Business outlook

Industry prospect

In 2013, the domestic economy of the PRC has shown a steady
recovery trend, however, it still faces challenges from structural
adjustment of the industries and deterioration of environmental
resources. At the end of last year, the central government firmly
indicated the fundamental direction of implementing a proactive
fiscal policy and a prudent monetary policy. It also reiterated
that the real estate control policies would remain intact. In
the beginning of this year, the launch of the details of “El T {4
(State-Five Policies)” further demonstrated the determination of
the central government’s control over the Chinese real estate
market. We believe that the direction and trend of the central
government’s control over the real estate market will remain
unchanged, and that the differences of policies, as well as the
austerity policies in suppressing the investment and speculative
housing demand will continue. 2013 will be a year of
consolidating the effects of the intervention and maintaining the
stability and rational development of the real estate market.

According to the relevant policies, the current real estate market
structure is becoming rational with rigid demand and living-
improvement demand being the main purchasing power for the
market. As the first-tier cities have strong economic vitalities,
large population and solid consumption capacities, their
momentum for market recovery and sustainability are relatively
higher. The market purchasing capacities of most third and
fourth-tier cities are limited, and with relatively larger supply,
the market pressure they face is still tremendous. We believe
that with the gradual shift to equilibrium in supply and demand,
the real estate industry will still maintain stable development in
2013. The Group will closely monitor the economic environment
and industry policy development; cope with the market changes
on a timely basis; and adjust its operating strategies to develop
progressively and steadily.

Chairman’s Statement
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Shenzhen

In Shenzhen, as the long-accumulated rigid demand was
released rationally, the transaction volume of new housing in
2012 has reached approximately 3.67 million square meters,
representing an increase of 35% over the same period of last
year. As one of the first-tier cities in the PRC with a permanent
population of over 10 million, Shenzhen has huge economic
development potential and a leading edge in terms of industries
such as port logistics, high-tech, finance and internet. In recent
years, Shenzhen has gradually increased its investments in the
construction of infrastructural facilities in education, healthcare
and environmental protection, and has improved the quality
of city life. The population of Shenzhen mainly comprises
immigrants who are at the age of about 30 years old in average,
and are full of passion and vitality. The development of i
/8 (Qianhai) in Shenzhen will also bring about a new round
of momentum for its economic development, especially for
the development of financial industry, logistics industry and
information industry. The Group is fully confident about the long
term development of real estate market in Shenzhen and will
continue its strategic focus in Shenzhen.

Accelerating strategic transformation and upgrade

The Group will continue to facilitate its strategic transformation
through quality and sustainable growth as well as the overall
value enhancement of the Company to achieve corporate
value enhancement and core competency improvement.
Through optimizing its land reserve structure, the Group will
focus its resources in the development of Shenzhen. We will
gradually transit from the “development and sale” model to
a “development, sale and holding for operation” model. We
will gradually build up three professional platforms including
industrial properties, commercial properties and residential
properties and also optimize our assets/liabilities and financing
structures to safeguard the security of funds and business growth.

RIERBRAT 2012FF5]
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Asset Injection

On 17 January 2013, the Group entered into a conditional
acquisition agreement with its parent company, Shum Yip
Holdings, to acquire the 100% equity interests of Kezhigu (%}
Z A ) project (located at f8H & (Futian District), Shenzhen
city) at a consideration of RMB4.15 billion. Upon completion of
such acquisition, the Group will issue and allot approximately
1,410 million new shares of the Company to Shum Yip Holdings
at the price of HK$3.667 per share to satisfy the consideration
of the transaction. The fair value of the consideration will be
determined on the completion date of the acquisition. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 January 2013 for
more details. This transaction unveils the start of asset injection
from our parent company.

Surrounded by three main parks, namely Lian Hua Shan Park,
Bijiashan Park and Central Park, the Kezhigu (£ 2 &) project
is located at Futian district with beautiful sceneries. It is only
five minutes’ drive to CBD of Futian with perfect surrounding
transportation networks and comprehensive transportation
facilities. The Kezhigu (#}2 %) project occupies an area of
121,225.1 square meters, with a planned total gross floor area
of 788,910 square meters, which includes high-end apartments,
Grade A office buildings, office buildings for small and medium
enterprises, high-end shopping centers and a five-star hotel. The
project positions itself to be the base of high-end innovative
headquarters, recreational and leisure centers, and will become
the new landmark of Shenzhen.

The construction of the northern zone apartment portion of
Kezhigu (£l Z &) project has already commenced and is
scheduled to realize pre-sale during the year, and will complete
in 2014. The pre-sale target for the year is RMB2.4 billion which
will bring significant growth to the sales of the Group.

The acquisition of Kezhigu (F124 ) is the first step of asset
injection. After completion of this transaction, the total gross
floor area of the Group’s land reserves will reach 11.20 million
square meters with attributable gross floor area of 10.12 million
square meters, of which, the proportion of land reserves in
Shenzhen will increase from its existing approximately 9% to
16%. The proportion of Shum Yip Holdings’ equity interests in
the Group will increase from its existing 44.4% to 59.6% and the
net gearing ratio of the Group will decrease significantly.

Chairman’s Statement

BEIA
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SFARRE (EE)FF T —DEKE
U AARE41. 58T WEE
R AImEBEMEZAEE100%
BEHE : ARZUREE 2 SERCRY - ANEE HE A
T%3.66787L  MIRZE (SE)EELD
4IBRAARAHFERN IR
& REZAREBR I EKE =K B
HET FEE2=2HHA-_T—=F
— A+ ZBZARRRE-E—XR5
EHESRRAMNEEIATTHE R
F&-

BrABEBEUREHRRE LEEEL
WSR2 LUMPLABR=ZRRAEZRE
SEEX EHREHFLEESHES
BABENTE RBREE2IA
Bih b EAE#121,225.1F 7K R E
FTAEEmEL788,910F K BE
BRAE  FRETIE AP/ EE
ENETE SmEMROUAER—EZ
TREFHE - HEB B AR MmN 2
B E M - RBIREE AR A A RIIE
iz o

MZABRBILtREAEHFNEERT
FEIFAEREE —T-NFxI
SEREEBRARBMUET AKX
SEMHEETKBZEER -

WERIZ 8 EETIANE—F - KX
RETKIE  ANEE L EERNBRE
EREAGZERN, 1208 F 5K (EFRE
MAEER,0128F 75 K) - Hi ORI
Y 4 Hb 15 10 EL IR SR B £ 9% 12 = B
16% : R (KRB BAEREERER
LE i B R 2R B9 44.4%I2 & B59.6% ¢
AEBNFEEXBEHE T

FREHE

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

13



14

Shum Yip Holdings has a land reserve with gross floor area of
approximately 2 million square meters in Shenzhen, and these
are potential resources to be injected into the Group. We believe
that asset injection will improve the land reserve quality of the
Group and its future profitability rapidly and thus provide a huge
momentum of continuous growth for the Company. With the
further implementation of the Group’s strategies, in the next 3
to 4 years, the Group will have real estate projects in Shenzhen
with gross floor area of over 4 million square meters. The Group
will continue to increase its project reserves in Shenzhen through
asset injection and other means, enhance the capacity of the
construction and operation of its residential and commercial
properties, and strive to become a leading developer and
commercial property operator in Shenzhen.

Real Estate Operation

The Group aims at achieving a saleable property area of 1.58
million square meters with saleable property value reaching
approximately RMB23.3 billion in 2013, representing an increase
of approximately 55% over last year. As the asset injection
projects will realize contracted sales this year, the contracted
sales of the Group will achieve significant growth with a sales
target of about RMB9.0 billion in 2013, representing an increase
of 48% as compared with the actual contracted sales last year.
The major sales projects include Terra Building (A KE),
the Kezhigu Northern Zone Apartments (BlZ AdEAE),
Qingshuihe Auto Logistic Park (B R TE R E ), Noble
Times (R ZEFL), Shum Yip Royal Garden CGREME ), Shum
Yip City OR235) , Yundonghai (£ &), Saina Bay (ZEME) ,
Euro-view Garden (E{SE8%5), Wanlin Lake (M4 ), Nanhu
Rose Bay (® /M E/& ) and Rui Cheng (&) . The Group will
continue to grasp the market opportunities and formulate rational
sales strategies to strive for realizing its sales target.

In order to implement its sustainable development and steadily
promote the development of projects, the Group plans to
construct 24 new projects with gross floor area exceeding 2.00
million square meters in 2013. The Group will retune its project
development progress according to project sales conditions and
market environment to ensure sufficient saleable volume for this
year and next year.

RIERBRAT 2012FF5]
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Land reserves

The Group will maintain its existing scale of land reserves
and optimize the land reserve structure based on a proactive
and prudent principles. The Group will continue to focus
on its development in Shenzhen and complement its quality
land resources. At the same time, the Group will seek for
opportunities according to market conditions and adjust the land
reserve structure to improve its land bank quality.

Re-development

The Group has 6 urban re-development projects in Shenzhen,
including the Kezhigu (£}24 ) project, which are locating at
Lian Hua Shan in Futian (F8HZE1L) , Sungang, Qingshuihe,
Shangbu, Chegongmiao and Guanlan respectively, with
expected total planned gross floor area of approximately 2.40
million square meters. Such projects are important resources
of the Group in focusing on the development in Shenzhen.
By leveraging on the strength of its state-owned controlling
shareholder, the Group will speed up the progress in re-
development project planning application, demolition and land
usage procedures registration to promote the projects to enter
into their construction and sales phases as quickly as possible.

Financial strategy

The Group will adhere to the consistent principle of maintaining
healthy financial position and actively explore various financing
channels besides commercial loans. It will endeavour to reduce
financing costs to provide concrete protection of financial
resources for its business development.

Corporate prospect

In 2013, the Group will grasp market opportunities and ensure a
stable operation. It will make full use of its resources advantages
and optimize its regional layout to sustain a steady growth. The
Board is in full confidence that the Group will achieve a solid
growth in the future.

LU Hua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

Overall results

During the year, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$8,568.3
million, representing an increase of 17.0% over the same period
of last year. Gross profit margin was 36.0%, in par with the
same period of last year. Profit attributable to shareholders was
HK$2,156.1 million, representing an increase of 41.7% over
the same period of last year. If excluding the net effect of the
changes in fair value of investment properties of the Group, profit
attributable to shareholders increased by 40.4% over the same
period of last year. Basic earnings per share were HK59.23 cents,
representing an increase of 38.2% over the same period of last
year.

Property development and sales

During the year, the Group recorded 528,000 square meters in
property sales (excluding the interests attributable to the Group
in its three principal associates), representing an increase of
23.4% over the same period of last year and achieved a net
revenue in property sales of RMB4,891 million (equivalent
to HK$6,013.5 million) (net of business tax), representing an
increase of 19% over the same period of last year. Gross profit
margin of real estate sales was 39.2%, representing a decrease of
1.3 percentage point over the same period of last year.

FARNAEEEIREXE%S,568.38
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36.0% Bl FFERFF -BIRBK R
FEEAEF2,156. 1B & B B ik
41.7% - INGIRA R BB IREMEDN
DAEESEFNFZE  REEAFE
Lt £R40.4% - SRR E AR B F A£59.23
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Table of Property Sales Booked KEYEHEER

Property Name Type Sales area Net sales Unit price
BEERE il HEER FHER BE
(sqm)  (RMB Million) (RMB/sqm)
(AR¥T/
(F75K) (AR¥BEE) FI7K)
Wanlin Lake Phase | Residential 178 1 4,260
& MO — 2 =
Wanlin Lake Phase Il Residential 6,025 83 13,859
& MO — 5 E=
Wanlin Lake Phase Ill Residential 2,265 18 7,751
B = B T=
Wanlin Lake Phase V Residential 8,069 50 6,155
& MO T 5 =
Wanlin Lake Phase VI Residential 49,106 271 5,509
& MO 7S 5 F=E
Noah Mountain Forest Phase | Residential 967 8 8,345
AR —H T
Noah Mountain Forest Phase Il Residential 34,961 152 4,340
Iy F=E
Noah Mountain Forest Phase Il Residential 14,221 74 5,204
g LU R =HA T
Rui Cheng Phase 1.1 Residential 13,490 70 5,224
ER1.18 (EES
Garden Hill Residential 12,045 89 7,352
EEE T=
Jinxiu Jiangcheng Phase | Residential 39,510 183 4,629
A= —H T
Euro-view Garden Phase | Residential 37,895 249 6,579
BR = RE S — B F=
Euro-view Garden Phase Il Residential 22,286 135 6,053
BREBr E=
Terra Building Office-buildings 28,510 976 34,240
ZRKE BFE
Longyuan Residential 6,873 280 40,802
e E=E
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase | Residential 109 2 17,988
FEA RS — H E=
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase Il Residential 1,405 21 14,941
M BER S — HR F=E
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase Il District | Residential 1,457 15 10,479
FHW TR E = BB =
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase Il District Il Residential 37,752 300 7,955
AR E = BlR F=
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase Il District I1l Residential 1,143 16 14,029
F R ERE = HINE =
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Management Discussion and Analysis BEEI &2

Property Name Type Sales area Net sales Unit price
BEERE il HEER BHER BE
(sqm)  (RMB Million) (RMB/sqm)
(AR®T/
(F73K) (AREKEBES) F73K)
Nanhu Rose Bay Parking lots Parking lot 2,310 24 10,414
[E2peib e A )=k =Kivy
Chengdu Yihu Rose Court — Commercial Shops 3,121 69 21,976
BB BRSE — A 7
Chengdu Yihu Rose Court — Residential Residential 21,925 41 1,877
BRER G B2 — (£ = F=E
Purple Kylin Hill District | Residential 2,936 75 27,208
EBL—= T=
Purple Kylin Hill District Il Shops 310 4 12,235
ES i) B
Purple Kylin Hill District Il Residential 21,580 271 12,548
EBL== =
Purple Kylin Hill District Il — Shops Shops 5,804 71 12,276
EHL=R - [k
Noble Times Phase | Residential 51,433 506 9,833
REER—H E=
Royal Garden Residential 24,387 157 6,429
0 [ E=E
Royal Spring Garden — Houses Residential 8,650 51 5,923
WRL—FF E=
Royal Spring Garden — Parking lots Parking lot 528 4 7,973
SR B — B B
Shum Yip City Phase | District | Residential Residential 122 1 5,783
REW—H-—EEE =
Shum Yip City Phase | District | Shops Shops 1,053 23 21,848
ARER - R [k
Shum Yip City Phase | District Il Residential Residential 25,148 155 6,169
AEH-H_REE F=
Shum Yip City Parking lots Parking lot 4,975 16 3,271
REW BN v
Shum Yip Saina Bay Residential 16,493 167 10,150
Jinxiu Workshops Shops 11,879 188 15,823
WA TS 7
Others Residential 7,095 75 10,539
Hith t=
Total &5t 528,016 4,891 9,263

During the year, the Group achieved 679,000 square meters FRNAREEEREFIHEEIRE7.98
in contracted sales area and contracted sales income of FHX AREEWAARG 1248
approximately RMB6,124 million, representing an increase of &7t Rt £3k33.5% °

33.5% over the same period of last year.
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2012 Annual Contracted Sales Table —E-—FEAEHEERE

Accumulated Accumulated
Project Location Type sales area sales Average price
| B ki) RAHEEDR R HER YfE
(sqm) (RMB million) (RMB/sqm)
(AR¥ETL/
(FARX) (AE¥EE) FHK)
Wanlin Lake Huizhou Commercial and 65,287 470 7,199
Residential
B £V Al
Garden Hill Huizhou Residential 39,233 209 5,335
FILE =M =
Noah Mountain Forest Changsha Commercial and 22,386 17 5,230
Residential
EEEG =92 At
Rui Cheng Changsha Residential 48,175 235 4,875
B £ EE
Jinxiu Jiangcheng Jiangyan Commercial and 45,443 222 4,884
Residential
BHEEN ZE BE
Euro-view Garden Dongguan Residential 48,590 320 6,587
=89 EES T
Terra Building Shenzhen Office buildings 34,462 1,254 36,377
RAKE Rl BFE
Longyuan Building No. 4 Shenzhen Residential 2,221 107 48,389
TEE4E w3 %5
Wuhan Terra Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential 46,618 408 8,760
Phase Il
RERABHRIRE=S g =%
Chengdu Yihu Rose Court Chengdu Residential 13,384 85 6,363
Phase | District |
HBRARBERE— BB P =%
Purple Kylin Hill Shenzhen Residential 21,393 302 14,105
ZEW w =
Dongguan Royal Spring Garden Dongguan Parking lot 2,281 17 7,448
Phase Il High-rise Garage
REfR Ut —HeEEE EE EXn}
Shum Yip Royal Garden (Kengzi) Shenzhen Residential 29,061 196 6,728
Residential
REME () EE 3l FE
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Project

5H

Noble Times

RRER

Shunde Shum Yip City

3 371

Sanshui Yundonghai Garden
ZKERBEE

Heyuan Saina Bay Phase |
ARERE—H

Shum Yip Hua Fu Phase | District |
REER-H-&

Chengdu Jinxiu Workshops Project
HERFTIHER

Total A&t

Project development and land reserves

During the year, the Group had 13 newly constructed projects
with new construction area of approximately 946,000 square

meters.

Location
(A=

Shenzhen

el
Foshan
Il
Foshan
Il
Heyuan
R
Maanshan
B
Chengdu
A

Type
Rl

Commercial

Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E&Y

Accumulated
sales area

i HEER

(sqm)

(FEAK)

and 74,415

Residential

55
Residential
=
Residential
Tz
Residential
FE
Residential
=z
Commercial

[GES

75,300

4,751

29,314

64,852

11,879

679,045

HERMBRIHE

FERN-ANEFHFETERIIE FHET
MEA94.68F K-
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Accumulated
sales

R HER
(RMB million)

(AR%REE)

739

498

60

293

451

141

6,124

Average price
HE
(RMB/sqm)
(AR¥T/
FIK)

9,930

6,609

12,572

9,994

6,948

11,907

9,018
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Project Name

HEEH

Shum Yip Hua Fu Phase |

EES iR

Wanlin Lake Phase 8.2

Efis. 25

Shum Yip Rui Cheng Phase 1.2a

REBW.2aH

Shum Yip Rui Cheng Phase 1.2b

REBW 205

Euro-view Garden Phase I1I

REH =58

Qingshuihe International Auto Logistic
Industrial Park Phase Il

BB ABYRERXE _H

Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay
Phase Il District Il (8-9%)

BOERHRE —HIE (8-99)

Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay Phase IV District |
(14-17% and Kindergarten)

BRERAIEN SR (1417 R E)

Chengdu Yihu Rose Court Phase |
District | (47)

PRI RIS — HIE (49)

Chengdu Yihu Rose Court Phase |
District I (12%)

BBt 8 R 58 — HA NI (129)

Chengdu Yihu Rose Court Phase 111
(Laohuaniao District )

RERRBRE =B (ZRERAIR)

Shum Yip Chaohu Bantang Hotel
Auxiliary Housing (staff domitory)

REEHRFHEERERFE (BEIES)

Sanshui Hotel

=B E

RIERBRAT 2012FF5]

City

Wi

Changzhou
w M
Huizhou
BN
Changsha
Changsha
Dongguan
R%

Shenzhen

Pl
Wuhan

RZ
Wuhan

Chengdu

P
Chengdu

-
Chengdu

gl
Chaohu
Hi

Foshan

1L

Nature of
land use

Rttt E

Residential
=
Residential
=
Residential
=
Residential
=
Residential
=%
Complex

AN
A

Residential

=
Residential

F=E
Commercial and
Residential

miE

Commercial and
Residential

)3

Commercial and
Residential

)3

Commercial
(including hotel
and office)

[GES

(2BE #REg)

Complex
e

Planned
gross floor
area

HE
BEEE
(sqm)
(FF3%)
37,038
80,577
130,322
86,715

66,453

105,300

29,945

62,800

13,833

28,966

78,000

6,074

220,000

946,023

Saleable
area

EAE
(sqm)
(FHX)

28,646

79,505

96,230

83,981

49,146

32,400

26,713

51,800

6,410

27,244

40,000

106,000

628,075



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group added newly land reserves with gross
floor area of approximately 935,000 square meters which are
located at Wuhan and Huizhou respectively. The Wuhan project
is located at Donghu BioValley (#1&E#14 ) . The project site
area is 347,000 square meters with a gross floor area of 710,000
square meters, and its land acquisition costs are approximately
RMB380 million and the percentage of interest attributable to the
Group in this project is 52.5%. The Huizhou project is close to
the Wanlin Lake project of the Group with a project site area of
73,000 square meters and a gross floor area of 225,000 square
meters, and its land costs are approximately RMB220 million.

As of the end of December 2012, the Group had a total gross
land reserve of 10.41 million square meters (in gross floor area)
with an attributable gross floor area of 9.33 million square
meters (excluding the interests attributable to the Group in its
three principal associated companies). Of which, the Group
had 16 property projects under construction with a total gross
floor area of approximately 1.80 million square meters and an
attributable gross floor area of 1.67 million square meters.

FR AREEFIGEEABELNIS58F
FARB T EEE 5 RN ZEMNE
Mo BEEBMNREMEDA (hHmE
B3478F K BERBENEFEH
KB A AR SEL ANE
EFrhIE B #25552.5%  BMNEBE
AAEEMEMHER - (hiEiE7.3
BFHK BEMB2258F K £+
A A AR EE2 28T

BII-—ZT——F+-AK KAEE i
EENARETMREAT,MBF X
M AERMEIIZE LK (TERIER
EEEZREBHAQAMGES
HEh - FEBHIE RELEEEYD
180BF A BoEEmEier8F
}Ko
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Table of land reserves by city distribution (as at 31 TREEET IR (BE=Z—=
December 2012) F+=ZA=+—H)

Percentage of
Attributable
floor area
Province City Total GFA Attr. GFA EEEEER
N7 W HMEEERR EE2EEE ikt E
(sqm) (F772K) (sqm) (7 K) %
Guangdong E®  Shenzhen &Il 876,420 876,420 9.40%
Huizhou /! 1,651,148 1,539,525 16.51%
Foshan @ L 1,763,562 1,763,562 18.91%
Dongguan %55 66,453 66,453 0.71%
Heyuan AR 879,916 879,916 9.43%
Guangzhou /M 340,171 340,171 3.65%
Hubei # 3t Wuhan E% 1,497,416 793,630 8.51%
Hunan 1 / Changsha &% 675,244 675,244 7.24%
Anhui Z# Maanshan 5% 1L 1,444,250 1,444,250 15.49%
Chaohu # 154,126 123,301 1.32%
Jiangsu JT &k Jiangyan ZIE 173,846 173,846 1.86%
Changzhou %1 166,101 166,101 1.78%
Sichuan 749)I| Chengdu A #p 505,807 268,078 2.87%
Other H b 215,952 215,952 2.32%
10,410,412 9,326,449 100.00%

Land Reserve * i f#f&

Land reserves sorted by Provinces Land reserves sorted by Usage

BEGD Tz L EE BRABRD T LR

[ 52.3% Residential {£%
B 177% Complex &

[ 58.61% Guangdong &%
B 8519%  Hubei it
B 724%  Hubei ##
B 681% Anhui 2
B 3.64% Jiangsu T#
B 287%  Sichuan Pl
B 2329% Other Hts
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Project acquisition

During the year, the Group acquired the 100% equity interests of
China Shum Yip (Group) Property Investment Company Limited
(“Shum Yip Property”) together with its shareholder’s loan at a
total consideration of approximately HK$151 million. Shum Yip
Property owns a 90% interest in the project of Chengdu Jinxiu
Antique City (BX#EERA &I ) , which is located at Qingyang
District, comprising five constructed low-rise buildings with a
gross floor area of approximately 34,400 square meters and a
parcel of industrial land with a site area of 7,623 square meters.
The transaction has already been completed. As at the end of
2012, the Group had achieved contracted sales of 11,800 square
meters with an average price of RMB16,800 per square meter.

During the year, the Group signed a set of blanket agreements
with Coastal Greenland to acquire the 100% of equity interests
of the complex projects in the Suzhou city district and
shareholders” loans at a consideration of RMB550 million in
aggregate. At the same time, the Group disposed of the 30%
equity interests and shareholders’ loans in Huizhou City West
Train Station project to Coastal Greenland at RMB215 million
in aggregate. The background for such transaction was mainly
to avoid the default risk of US$50 million Bond of Coastal
Greenland originally held by us. (For details, please refer to the
announcement dated 28 September 2012). This transaction was
fully completed by the end of 2012 and the gain on bargain
purchase of HK$189 million recorded was already accounted for
as profit for the year.

HE WEE

FR-AEBKRETHERERE (£
EmERERRAR ([FREME])
100%H) g # - BEE Q1518 85T
(EREER) - FEMEARMAEK
EBERAS T DU TE B 90% M AE 25 o Ak BPER
BEDBEEURSEFE BARE
BRKEE 2L (BEMBEL3 48T
FK) A — R A7,623F KE T %
AR - ZER BT, HE-T
——FE -ZEBZLERN,800F
KWEREE HIEAR16,8007T
BEHK-

FRAEERLSEEECREERT
—ETHE UBREARESSETH
REKEHMNTEOLEEEE100%
MERE R EER : B LEEARE
2. 15E T HEE M AEFEILEIEB30%
BEMBRERGESEEERE I
REMEEFTERATEEARMRE
BH5,000BEXE L EHEREESHN
BHRRK - (FBEAEM_T—Z—FA
AZ+N\BHWHWAE) - ZERHGHN_-Z
——FREEE2BENK  BEREEEF
B189BHEB L Bt AREFE-

Rui Cheng
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Connected transactions

The Project Acquisition section mentioned an acquisition of the
equity interest in Shum Yip Property by the Group, of which,
15% of the equity interest was acquired by the Group from its
parent company on 27 July 2012. The consideration for equity
interest and shareholder’s loan was HK$12.1 million and
HK$78.0 million respectively. (The acquisition of equity interest
constituted a connected transaction. For details, please refer to
the announcement published on 27 July 2012).

On 31 July 2012, the Group entered into an agreement with a
fellow subsidiary to dispose of the properties, which were the
certain floors of Terra Building developed by the Group with
an aggregate area of approximately 7,885.11 square meters,
for the parent company’s own use. The total consideration was
RMB272.4 million with unit prices per sq.m. ranging from
RMB31,826.44 to RMB42,202.73. (Such disposal constituted
a connected transaction and was not yet completed as at 31
December 2012. For details, please refer to the announcement
published on 25 February 2013).

Property investment

During the year, the Group’s property investment business
continued to maintain a steady growth. The total area of our
investment properties was over 700,000 square meters, with an
achieved rental income of HK$515.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately 15.3% over the same period of last
year. During the year, as a result of the increase of total rental
area, the optimization of investment property portfolio and
the increase of rent, the Group recorded a revaluation gain of
HK$470.9 million in its investment property portfolio in which it
had already been accounted for as profit for the year.

Commercial property

During the year, the Group invited senior managers and teams
in the commercial property sector to join the Group. At present,
the Group is striving for developing a development model for
the Group’s commercial property and refining its commercial
property plans, equips itself well in preparing the Group for the
development of commercial property business.

RIERBRAT 2012FF5]

BEXS

TH B U B B D R HE R A 5 B U B R
HWERESE  EP15%0RESANRE
BR-_ZE——F+A-+tBHREAQ
AINER BEHER2AEEETL K
REFH78.08E BT (ILEo %W
BAEBERS HEBERER_ZT——F
tA-tTtEBTERNRE)-

RZE——FtA=+—H &~EE
H-RAEMBARR] B HE
REBERENRTARETPEEHRL
7,885 11 F AR - E R A A
AR BBARB272488TT §F
FREBEAREK31,82644TEAR
#42,202.73 02 (ZBHEAH
B G BRRSHR_E——_F+_H
—t+—HHATK HFBEBHL2HE-F
—=F - A-+HBTEHNRE) -

MERKRE

FR - AEEHERTYEREEBEE
REBSEE - AEBEREMERLR
BHBBE70EF A XK AHPEHRBER
AS515.088B 0 b EFREB EALD
15.3% - F A AR HEEE =
meREYEBEEBICARBAS EIRK
AEBMBIREMELAGEMHILE
47098 8B Bt AREF B

[ 3
FRAEEBFETARMEEREHE
ARBBME - BATES W AEH
BEMEHEFREN AEHERER
g RAKREAR N BREEEMEF A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Jointly-controlled entities

During the year, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development
Limited (a 51% owned company of the Group) made a net profit
contribution of HK$48.5 million to the Group, representing
a decrease of 73.8% over the same period of last year. The
principal activity of this company is to provide relevant service to
local governments in primary land development arrangement.

Performance by associates

During the year, the performance of associates invested by the
Group was within expectation. Of which, Shenzhen Tianan
Cyber Park (Group) Co. Ltd., made a net profit contribution of
HK$428.5 million to the Group, representing an increase of
54.5% over the same period of last year. Road King Infrastructure
Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, made a net profit
contribution of HK$188.5 million to the Group, representing
a decrease of 15.5% over the same period of last year. Coastal
Greenland, another listed company in Hong Kong, made a net
profit contribution of HK$74.2 million to the Group, representing
an increase of 217.1% over the same period of last year.

Land appreciation tax reversal

During the year, the Group paid land appreciation tax for
projects such as the Coast and resulted in a land appreciation tax
refund of HK$107.9 million due to the higher amount originally
provided than the actual amount paid, and the above amount
was used to offset against the land appreciation tax provided in
the current year.

Financial position

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s total bank and other
borrowings amounted to HK$22,210.4 million, of which
HK$18,578.2 million were floating-rate loans, and the rest were
fixed rate loans. Long-term loans amounted to HK$13,236.2
million, representing approximately 59.6% of total borrowings,
and short-term loans were HK$8,974.2 million, representing
approximately 40.4% of total borrowings.

HEEHER

TR REBEES1%ERNTIMN TR
¥R EERERDADAAEEE KA
MER4858EBT L EFERETE
73.8% c ZARIMNEZEBZHENE H
BT T — A F 3 o

A /NI ¥

FN - AEBRENBEAREERT
AT TEH B ORI R LT EHIBHA R
NABAEES RGN T 428588
Bt b EFREA ER54.5% o AN E
MARBHEEERRF] BREER
RAFIEEN885BE BT L EFR
BT PE15.5% ° AB EMRARIAELE
REANEETGRAEF ER7428 8
BT b EFRAER217.1% °

B B B 3

FR AREHHFRFEE 0L HIE
ERETTHARE ARREBSHE
BRERBMSRE ELIREN DR
1079888 YEAEFitiem L
oSBT AP R

B AR O
N-_ZE——E+-_fA=+—10 K&
ERTREMEERTE22,210458
BEor EF18,578 2B BB T AT A
B EBHYATEEEN: REHD
13,236 2B &L YL BERAEEN
59.6% FEHAER8,974 2B BEITL 4
1l & AR BHA0.4% ©
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As of 31 December 2012, the Group’s cash balance (including
pledged deposits and restricted cash) was HK$7,305.8 million,
of which approximately 82.3% and 17.7% were denominated
in Renminbi and other currencies (mainly in US$ and HK$)
respectively. As the Group’s main operating cash inflow is
in Renminbi, while the assets held and debts committed are
mainly stated in Renminbi and US$, therefore the exchange rate
movements will have positive financial impact to the Group in
the short run.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net assets (excluding
non-controlling interests) of HK$17,547.9 million, a net gearing
ratio (the ratio of net borrowings over net assets (net of non-
controlling equity interests)) of 84.9% and a gearing ratio (the
ratio of total liabilities over total assets) of 64.1%.

Summary of statement of financial position items

HK$ million
A &5 T

Bank and other borrowings RITRHMEE
Long-term debts RBAE
Short-term debts HHAE
Floating-rate loans FEER

Cash (including pledged e (BHERDEF

deposits and restricted cash)

Pledge of assets and contingent liabilities position

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total loans of
HK$3,762.4 million that were pledged with assets. (For details,
see note 31 to the financial statements).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has given guarantees to a
maximum extent of approximately HK$1,948.3 million to banks
for housing loans extended by the banks to the purchasers of the
Group’s properties (For details, see note 41(ii) to the financial
statements).
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FREZRGIESE)

BIFI—Z——F+-A=+—H0 &&
BERIRESEFA7,305.888 BT (8
BERBETEREZRGARE) HEFH
82.3%M17.7%7 BIAAREMEME
W(ETBRETMBT)HE BARAK
EBRETHELEEBR 2BESRAUA
R¥AEX MAKEREMEE KA
ENEHSTITENMUARBREZTASE
kBN AR ME RF BN REAY
AEEPBHNTERIERMN-

RZEBE——F+-A=+—8 A£H
BRIEERERBIFEERIT,547. 9§
BRI FAEX CFEREHRIEE]
EHEFEELR) 584.9% 2@:%1,
KR (BREENREELER)B641% -

BHESIR IR B EA XK

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
—F--F —_T——F
T=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
22,210.4 16,479.3
13,236.2 11,514.0
8,974.2 4,965.3
18,578.2 15,802.1
7,305.8 5,236.4
EEREARIAEERR

HE-_Z——F+-_A=1+—H &%
BEEERHNERKS, 762488 %
Too (FEBLMMBHREMTE3) -

HE-_E——F+-_A=+—H'K
EERRTHATAEENEERZE
EERMIRITRETZN1,948.38 8
BITHER (GTHBE2BHYBREM T
41(ii) ) °



Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2012, Shum Yip Holdings, the parent
company of the Group is interested in approximately 44.4% of
the Group, and was the largest shareholder of the Group.

During the year, the Group did not exercise any share options
and did not repurchase any share of the Group. During the
year, the Group issued a total of 102,991,104 shares to the
shareholders who have elected to receive their 2012 interim
dividend by way of scrip dividends, of which, Ship Yip Holdings,
the largest shareholder, received its dividends in full in the form
of scrip dividends, totaling 63,107,180 Shares.

As at 31 December 2012, the issued share capital of the Group
was 3,729,015,408 shares (31 December 2011: 3,626,024,304
shares).

Staff headcount and remuneration

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total staff number of
approximately 19,000, of which 29 were stationed in Hong Kong
(mainly managerial and finance-related personnel), and the rest
were in China.

Employee benefits include salaries, allowances, medical
insurance and mandatory retirement contributions. We also issue
bonuses and grant share options, under the share option scheme
of the Group, to employees based on individual performance and
the results of the Group.

B 2= &5
NR-ZE—-——FE+-_H=+—80 K&
ErHRRFE (EB)EBEEAEEY
44 4% IASENRARE -

FAN-AEBEREBERERTE RE
EIEAEBEARD - FR - AEE MR
BUBRARBWE - T —FhHERE
B A% B 3 A% $£102,991,1040% e K
BERE () NRE2 ARG
CUREL - #£5163,107,1808% °

RZE——F+-_A=Z+—H" K
EE 2B %TRAA3,729,015,408
e (Z2E——F+_A=+—8:
3,626,024,3040%) °

ET AR 5
RZE—=ZF+=ZA=+—0 £~5%£H
HERANI9,0008ELT HPERB
TEMBE IR TEZREERVK
ANE HEBAREBRKNIEETL-

BIZzHMEeRFHe 2R BERR
FR Bl RARRTES AEEBTEZ
EREIXRARAEEEESTHE
METERBEIEANBAEEBR
RAEME TR LERE-
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Directors and Senior Management

EERERTHRAE

Executive Directors H1TEE

LU Hua
BE

RIERBRAT 2012FF5H

Mr. LU Hua, aged 49, is currently the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Shum
Yip Group Limited, Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and the Company.
He holds a doctorate degree in Political Economics from The Nankai University
and a master’s degree in Finance from The University of Reading in UK. He was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board of the Company on 31 January 2013.
Mr. LU held various positions including the chairman of Shenzhen Shahe Industrial
(Group) Co., Ltd. GRIITIAD N EZ (L&) FR A A]), the president of Shum Yip Group
Limited, Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and the Company from April 2009 to
December 2012. Prior to this, Mr. LU had served as the chairman of Shahe Industrial
Co., Ltd., the chairman of Shenzhen Shahe Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. and the general
manager of Shenzhen Property Development Company Ltd. At present, he is also a non-
executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited, a listed public company in Hong
Kong. He has vast experience of over twenty years in property development, corporate
governance and administrative management.
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Directors and Senior Management EEZERESRITHAE

Executive Directors H1TEE

MOU Yong
£5

WANG Minyuan
IHE

Mr. MOU Yong, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the Company. He is also a director
of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and its various
subsidiaries. He was graduated from The Shaanxi University of Technology with major
in Chinese Language and Literature and obtained an advanced MBA from The Peking
University. Presently, he is a lawyer of The People’s Republic of China and an arbitrator
of The Shenzhen Arbitration Commission. Prior to his joining to Shum Yip since
November 2009, he held the positions of the head of Enterprise Leadership Personnel
Management and the chief of General Office at The Shenzhen Municipal People’s
Government State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission. Mr. Mou
has extensive experience in corporate governance and administrative management.
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Mr. WANG Minyuan, aged 53, engineer, has been appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company since 28 September 2012. He is currently a vice president of Shum Yip Group
Limited and the Company. Mr. WANG joined Shum Yip in August 2012. Prior to this, Mr.
WANG had served successively as a deputy general manager of Shenzhen Metro Group Co.,
Ltd. and Shenzhen Expressway Co., Ltd. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering
from The Zhejiang University. He has over thirty years of extensive experience in engineering
design and construction and corporate management.
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Executive Directors I{TEE

LIU Chong
EIES

RIERBRAT 2012FF5R

Mr. LIU Chong, aged 53, is currently an Executive Director and Vice President of
the Company, a vice president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. He holds a bachelor’s degree and postgraduate qualification from The
Jiangxi Institute of Finance and Economics with major in Accounting and he is a senior
accountant. Prior to his joining to Shum Yip in April 2010, he served successively as a
deputy general manager and financial controller of Shenzhen SDG Company Limited (&
JITHEEZEEBEER AT ), a director and financial controller of Shenzhen Petrochemical
Group Co., Ltd., a director and financial controller of Shenzhen Health Mineral Water
Co., Ltd., and a director of Shenzhen Tellus (Group) Company Limited. At present, he is
an independent director of Shenzhen Shenxin Taifeng Group Co., Ltd (A-Share Company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: SZ000034)). Mr. Liu has over 30
years of experience in finance and accounting management.
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Directors and Senior Management EEZERESRITHAE

Non-Executive Directors EH {TE=E

WU Jiesi

Dr. WU Jiesi, aged 61, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company. Dr. WU holds
a doctorate degree in Economics. He conducted post-doctorate research work in
theoretical economics at The Nankai University in the PRC and was conferred a
professorship qualification by The Nankai University in 2001. Dr. WU served in various
positions in the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from 1984 t01995 and served
as the president of the Shenzhen Branch. From 1995 to 1998, he served as the deputy
mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal Government. From 1998 to 2000, he served as the
assistant to the Governor of Guangdong Province.

Dr. WU served as the chairman and honorary president of Guangdong Investment
Limited from 2000 to 2005, and served as a director and honorary president of
Guangdong Tannery Limited respectively. Dr. WU also served as an executive director
of Hopson Development Holdings Limited from 2005 to 2008 and an independent
non-executive director of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. from 2005 to 2011, an
independent non-executive director of a listed public company on the New York Stock
Exchange, namely Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited from 2007 to 2008.
At present, Dr. WU is a non-executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
and China Water Affairs Group Limited respectively, a non-executive director and vice
chairman of China Aoyuan Property Group Limited, an independent non-executive
director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited and Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited respectively. Except otherwise disclosed, all of above companies are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. WU has rich experience in finance and
corporate management.
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Non-Executive Directors EH {TEE

HUANG Yige
'K

RIERBRAT 2012FF5R

Mr. HUANG Yige, aged 44, is currently a director and financial controller of Shum
Yip Group Limited and a director of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He was
appointed as a non-executive director on 27 March 2012 of the Company. He holds a
master degree in business administration and has qualifications as a senior accountant
and chartered accountant in PRC. Mr. HUANG had served as a director and financial
controller of Shenzhen Metro Group Co., Ltd, a financial controller of Shenzhen
Agricultural Group Co., Ltd, an administrative controller and an assistant financial
controller and investment general manager of A. Best Department Store Supermarket
Co., Ltd, an assistant to president of P9I/ FZE F =R & B R D AR A F]. At present,
He is appointed as a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd and supervisor of Shenzhen
Tagen Group Co., Ltd., both of them are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He
has extensive experience in corporate management, finance management and treasury
operation.
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Directors and Senior Management EEZERESRITHAE

Independent Non-Executive Directors B Y F#1TEE

WONG Po Yan
BERR

WU Wai Chung
Michael
RER

Mr. WONG Po Yan, G.B.M, C.B.E., J.P., aged 89, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since 16 December 1996. Mr. Wong holds an honorary doctorate
degree in Business Administration from The City University of Hong Kong and an
honorary doctorate degree in Social Science from The Hong Kong Baptist University.
He is the founder of United Overseas Enterprises Ltd and the honorary president of
The Chinese Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was formerly the vice
chairman of the Basic Law Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
under the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress of the PRC, a member
of the Hong Kong Legislative Council and the chairman of the Airport Authority of Hong
Kong. He was also served as an independent non-executive director of Alco Holdings
Limited, China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited, Fintronics Holdings
Company Limited and Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited respectively. At
present, Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive director of Allied Group Limited and

Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited.
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Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director since 9 October 2002. He was formerly the deputy chairman of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and a Commissioner in the Strategy & Development Committee of the
China Securities Regulatory Commission. Prior to that, he was the deputy chairman,
chief operating officer and executive director and responsible for the Intermediaries
Division, comprising the Licensing and Intermediaries Supervision Departments until
his departure from the Securities and Futures Commission on 31 December 1997. Mr.
Wu was an independent non-executive director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited. At present, Mr. Wu is an independent non-executive director and chairman
of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited and an executive director of Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Ltd, all being listed public companies in Hong Kong.

1&%®§‘E$ ATZm BE-ZE ST ANBREZERBIUINITES REELE

AR AMBEBEERRTHEFEEEEZEeRERREBERE A ZA RAEL
’*%&Hﬁféﬁ“ TR EETNERERN (BEERET N ERE @j@zﬁ‘lif‘
EEERRATES BEERR - ANEF+ A=+ BRI FRPEEHE
EERIL - RELACRHFEEESHERBR AR ZBILIERITES - %%EIEEE/%J:
MARRAREREERERAAZBYIFNTESTRIFEUREZBRETESERD
RlZHITES-

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

37



38

Independent Non-Executive Directors B Y F#1TE S

LI Wai Keung
FRER

RIERBRAT 2012FF5]

Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
since 27 September 2004. Mr. Li graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds
a master’s degree in Business Administration from The University of East Asia. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li had worked for Henderson Land
Development Company Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong). Mr. Li is currently a
non-executive director of Guangdong Investment, an executive director and financial
controller of GDH Limited and financial controller of Guangdong Holdings Limited.
He was an independent non-executive director of Hong Long Holdings Limited (a listed
company in Hong Kong) from March 2010 to May 2011. He is also an executive director
of Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited (being a listed public Company in Hong Kong)
and an independent non-executive director of Hans Energy Company Limited and China
South City Holdings Limited, a director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group) Company
Limited, a member on the Council of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited, and
also the vice chairman of the Financial and Accounting Affairs Steering Committee of the
Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association (BB FEMEBEVEHEXLZEE) .
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management S R THA B

Mr. GAO Shengyuan, aged 47, has been appointed as the President of
the Company since 31 January 2013. He is currently the President of
Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He
holds a master’s degree in Economics from The Zhongnan University of
Economics. Mr. GAO joined Shum Yip Group Limited in January, 2013.
He had served as a member of district committee and standing commitee
of Futian District, Shenzhen Municipal, the deputy district chief and
deputy secretary of Party Committee of the People’s Government of Futian
District, the deputy district chief of the People’s Government of Nanshan
District and department chief of Bureau of Finance of Nanshan District,
Shenzhen Municipal, the deputy director of Bureau of Finance Budget of
Shenzhen Municipal. He has extensive experience in corporate finance
management and capital operation.
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Mr. LIANG Kaiping, aged 54, is currently Vice President of Shum Yip
Group Limited, Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and the Company.
At present, he is the chairman of Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Company
Limited and Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co. Ltd.. He graduated
from Wuhan University, holding a master’s degree in history. He joined
Shum Yip in 2000 and held position as deputy general director of
Shenzhen Shum Yip Investment Company Ltd. and director and deputy
general manager of Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group Holdings Co.,
Ltd.. Prior to the appointments, he was director and president of Shenzhen
Futian Investment and Development Company, general manager of
Shenzhen Futian Real Estate Development Company Ltd. (;&3IT4& H
FiER I A 8]), and associate supervisor of Office of Futian District
Committee of Shenzhen. Mr. Liang has over twenty years of experience in
corporate management.
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Mr. DONG Fang, aged 40, is currently the Vice President of Shum Yip
Group Limited, Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and the Company.
He graduated from the Hunan University with a master’s degree and a
senior engineer qualification. He joined Shum Yip in 2006 and served
successively as general manager of the real estate department and
investment department in the Company, and deputy general manager
of Huizhou Canton River Expressway Co., Ltd. (BMEN SRR EH
fRA7]) . Prior to this, Mr. Dong worked in the Transport Commission
of Shenzhen Municipality. He has extensive experience in corporate
management, property investment and operation management.
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Mr. ZHANG Baowu, aged 57, is the President of Shum Yip Land
Company Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree at the
Hefei University of Technology, a senior economist and joined Shum
Yip in July 1999. He once worked as general manager of Mirage
International Company Limited, special duty supervisor of Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited, assistant to president of the Group, general
manager of investment department, and Chairman and general manager
of Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd.. Prior to this, he worked
in various positions like deputy secretary of The General Office of the
People’s Government of Anhui Province, manager of Anhui Chemical and
Material Company Limited and manager of Shenzhen Nanyou Chemical
and Material Company Limited. He has rich experience in administration
management, corporate management, real estate.
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Mr. TAM Ping Lung, aged 61, is Deputy General Manager and Secretary
of the Board of the Company. He holds an MBA degree. Prior to joining
the Company in February 1997, Mr. Tam held senior positions in
various multinational corporations and had 9 years of experience in an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong.
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Mr. LU Jigiang, aged 42, is currently Co-secretary of Board and Chief
Legal Officer of the Company. He holds a master’s degree of Civil and
Commercial Law from Law School of the Peking University. Presently, he
is a PRC Lawyer and arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission (CIETAC). He joined Shum Yip in November 2003.
Prior to this, he worked in China Merchants Group. Mr. Lu has extensive
experience in corporate operation management, law affairs, compliance
and risk management control.
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Mr. ZHANG Xuebin, aged 51, is currently the General Manager of
Financial Planning Department of the Company. He obtained a master’s
degree of Management Engineering from the Huazhong University
of Science and Technology. He joined Shum Yip in 1996. He has
successively held positions as general manager of financial planning
department of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and the Company,
assistant to general manager and manager of general administration
department of Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Industry & Trade Development Co. He
has more than 20 years of experience at finance management.
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Mr. ZHU Guogiang, aged 40, is currently the general manager of Strategic
Management Department of the Company. Mr. Zhu obtained a master’s
degree in Business Administration (MBA) from The Hong Kong University
of Science & Technology. He joined Shum Yip Group Limited and the
Company in 2004, and held positions as general manager of assets
management department and investment department in the Company.
Prior to this, he worked in Shenzhen Construction Investment Holdings.
Mr. Zhu is familiar with the real estate market and property development
process and has maintained good communication with investors and
capital markets.
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Overview

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standard of corporate governance. The Directors strongly
believe that good corporate governance is an essential element in
steering the development of the business of the Group.

The Board and its management understand that it is their
responsibility to establish a good corporate management
system and practice and strictly comply with the principles of
independence, accountability, responsibility and impartiality so
as to improve the operation transparency of the Company, protect
the interest of shareholders and create values for shareholders.

The following is a summary of our improvement in corporate
management in accordance with the Corporate Governance
Practices:

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year, the Company had complied with
the applicable code provisions in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) (effective from 1 April
2012) set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code, Mr. LU Hua, the President, was
appointed as the Acting Chairman on 24 April 2012 due to the
resignation of Mr. GUO Limin as the Chairman of the Board.
The Company subsequently re-designated Mr. LU Hua as the
Chairman of the Board and appointed Mr. GAO Shengyuan as
the President of the Company on 31st January 2013 and hence
complied with the role and functions separation of chairman and
chief executive.

In respect of the code provision E1.2 and A6.7 of the Code, Mr.
WONG Po Yan, the chairman of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, both
independent non-executive directors, were unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company on 22 June 2012 due
to other business commitment. Mr. LI Wai Keung, the member
of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee had
attended the annual general meeting in Mr. WONG's absence.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices
under continuous review to ensure their consistent application
and will continue to improve our practices having regard to the
latest developments including any new amendment to the Code.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Structure
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Board of Directors

Responsibilities and Delegation

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible
for formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company,
to supervise and evaluate business and financial performance
of the Company. Through the establishment of appropriate risk
control policies and procedures, the Board ensures the efficiency
and effectiveness of the Company’s operations by establishing a
comprehensive corporate governance framework and aiming to
enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

Formal Board Committees established by the Board include the
Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and Remuneration
Committee and they assist the Board to discharge its duties while
the responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and business
strategic management are delegated to the executive directors
and senior management, however, certain responsibilities remain
to the decision of the Board, such as corporate restructuring,
mergers and acquisitions, major investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of assets, major corporate policies on
key area of operations, the release of the Group’s interim and
annual results, connected transactions, declaration of interim
dividends and proposal of final dividends.

Insurance cover in respect of legal proceedings and other claims
against Directors arising from their office and execution of their
powers, duties and responsibilities has been arranged. In 2012,
no legal action was made against any of our Directors in relation
to their duties performed for the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
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Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive and five non-
executive directors of whom three are independent as defined
under the Listing Rules. Independent non-executive directors
constitute not less than one-third and non-executive directors
constitute more than half of the Board. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive director the
confirmation confirming his independence pursuant to the
criterion sets out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that all independent non-executive directors are independent.
Brief biographical particulars of the directors are set out from
pages 32 to 38 of this Annual Report.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, every
director, including the non-executive directors, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. One-
third of the directors (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from
office at each annual general meeting and eligible for re-election
by shareholders. Also, any director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall retire at the next general meeting of the Company
and be eligible for re-election by shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed for the election of each director.

Nomination of Directors

Prior to the establishment of the Nomination Committee in
March 2012, the Board was responsible for the determination of
the nomination and appointment of new directors having regard
to the relevant skills and experience of the proposed candidates.
On 27 March 2012, the Company established a nomination
committee, details of which are set out hereinafter.

During 2012, the Nomination Committee recommended to the
Board for the appointment of Mr. HUANG Yige as non-executive
director and Mr. WANG Minyuan as executive director.
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Chairman and President of the Board

Mr. GUO Limin resigned as the Chairman of the Board and Mr.
LU Hua, the President, was appointed as the Acting Chairman
on 24 April 2012. From 24 April 2012, the roles of the Chairman
and the President were performed by Mr. LU Hua until his re-
designation as the Chairman of the Board and the appointment
of Mr. GAO Shengyuan as the President in place of him since 31
January, 2013.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the
Board to formulate good corporate governance practices and
procedures together with the directors, determine the strategic
directions, business plans and investment proposals of the
Company, assess its performance and supervise the business
affairs of the management in ensuring the effectiveness of the
Board.

The President is responsible for overseeing the daily operations
of the Company and ensuring the approved policies are executed
by the management effectively. He is accountable to the Board in
respect of the overall operations of the Company.

Executive Directors

The duties of the executive directors are segregated in overseeing
different business segments, which in line with the strategies
and measures of the Company, guiding the management team to
execute daily operations of the Company in an effective manner
and ensuring businesses are conducted in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors

The primary functions of non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors are to provide advices
and recommendations regarding the decision and business
development of the Company based on their professional
qualifications and experience, with the objectives of assisting
the Company to enhance the management standard of its
operations and financial aspects for protecting the interests of the
shareholders.
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An appointment letter was issued to each non-executive director
in respect of their appointments with a term not exceeding 3
years with a fixed tenure and is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

Board Meeting Records

The board meetings of the Company are held on a regular basis.
Four regular board meetings were held for the year ended 31
December 2012 and its attendance are set out as follow:

ARACRABMIFNTEETELEH
HEZENZ IR REOEETHT
BB=F WARARANABZEEZA
AlmEREREREEE-

Exgedag
ARRZEFTEEAEHAER BE—
T _F+ A=+ —HIEH#ETT
MAFHREZEEH ESHERIHE
FIET

Attendance
Directors = HE=
Executive Directors PITESE
Mr. LU Hua B OESEAE 4/4
Mr. GUO Limin®" BIEREED 11
Mr. MOU Yong 2 BEAE 4/4
Mr. WANG Minyuan® THURSEAY 2/2
Mr. LIU Chong g =iHE 4/4
Non-Executive Directors HHITESE
Dr. WU Jiesi HEREL 3/4
Mr. HUANG Yige® HARELED 3/3
Mr. LIU Biao® g BEAEe 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. WONG Po Yan HIRMRSEE 4/4
Mr. LI Wai Keung FERBLE 4/4
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RERLEE 4/4

Notes:

(1) Mr. GUO Limin resigned as the Chairman on 24 April 2012.

(2)  Mr. LIU Biao resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 27 March 2012.

(3)  Mr. HUANG Yige was appointed as an INED on 27 March 2012.

(4)  Mr. WANG Minyuan was appointed as an Executive Director on 28 September
2012.
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Directors” Continuing Professional Development Programme

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties. In addition,
all directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company also updates directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year, the Company organized one briefing session
conducted by Messrs. Woo Kwan Lee & Lo for the Directors.
The briefing session covered certain topics including the new
Corporate Governance Code, the disclosure of inside information
and establishment of an internal control system.

Corporate Governance Report

EEHREXRRTE
FIBHMZENEFTOERHALEMOA
BIEIRER AEREHERDAN
BB N R A R E RN AERE GBI X
RAMER THEETAEERRENE
7

EERBRERE -RAFE EF
FRAERBEEBAARRRE AR
SNEFER AREFSBRRLRE
FRI BT © 1o AR B E B AT
BEE2HRFEFXERR UERKLE
BE BN IEE - NRAR I RESE
RELHRUAREMEREE ST
BRI RN ABRE BRI IRIAE
BRIFCEERERORRE-

RERN HRAFERMITRAESRERT
—REN g HPRATRENLEER
SR ARER B NET AT R

a3

=

)

AR E

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

47



48

A summary of training records provided by the directors, since 1
April 2012 up to 31 December 2012 is set out as follows:

EERftNE - ZT——FMOA—-HZE
—E-CF+ZA=+—BI-HEH
BHIGENBIERIWT

FYZRERAT 2012F 5,

Type of
training covered
Bl & 15 3
Name H®E i)
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. LU Hua B EXRLE 1,2,3,4
- am N/A
Mr. GUO Limin LR E 355
Mr. MOU Yong 2 BkHE 1,2,3,4
Mr. WANG Minyuan THERE 1,2,4
Mr. LIU Chong 2 Rix4&E 1,2,3,4
Non-Executive Directors HEHTEE
Dr. WU Jiesi HESEL 1,2,3,4
Mr. HUANG Yige mIREE 1,2,3,4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. WONG Po Yan HERMEE 1,2,4
Mr. LI Wai Keung FEABKLE 1,2,3,4
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael REBRLEE 1,2,3,4
Notes: 1 Corporate governance MisE: 1 EER
2 Regulatory 2 EE
3 Finance and accounting 3 MBREE
4 Industry-specific 4 BETHE



Board Committees

The Board established three committees, namely Audit
Committee,
Committee respectively.

Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Audit Committee

The Board has adopted new terms of reference for the Audit
Committee on 27 March 2012.

The new terms of reference of the Audit Committee include
(but not limited to) the recommendation of the appointment of
external auditors, supervision of internal audit and oversight of
the integrity of financial information and its disclosure, monitor
internal control system of the Company and ensure the functions
of internal audit and external audit are adequately resourced. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the
website of the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, who are all equipped with commercial and financial
skills and experiences required for understanding of accounting
information. Mr. LI Wai Keung is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and other members are Mr. WONG Po Yan and Mr.
WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The composition of the Audit Committee and its meeting
attendance during the year are set out as follow:
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Membership and Attendance BB R HEE

Attendance/
Number of
meetings
HER
Members K& BERE

Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. LI Wai Keung — Chairman FREBEE-FF 2/2
Mr. WONG Po Yan =R ST £ 2/2
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RIZFEE 2/2
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the full year audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
internal control system of the Group.

During the financial year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
scope and quality of audit by Company’s external auditors, Ernst
& Young, and their independence and objectivity as well as their
cost effectiveness. The Audit Committee also reviewed the audit
and non-audit services fees paid to Ernst & Young. The details are
set out under the section headed Auditors” Remuneration in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has adopted new terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee on 27 March 2012. The Company has
adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive director and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters of
non-executive directors and setting up adequate and transparent
procedures for developing the remuneration policies and making
recommendations to the Board. The full terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are posted on the website of the
Company.

No member or any of his associates is allowed to determine
their own remuneration. In making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration of directors and senior management,
the Remuneration Committee shall consider factors such as
time commitment and responsibilities of directors, employment
conditions of other positions within the Group and whether their
remuneration are performance-based.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and chaired by Mr. WONG Po Yan. Mr. LI
Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael are members of the
Remuneration Committee.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee and its meeting
attendance during the year are set out as follow:

Corporate Governance Report

3

YNEEeh =-UBIIFRTESFA
K-ZEEMEBRMAEEETER  F
Bt REBELETHFNEZES

FHEZEeNFANEKLEEHEDY
FEIEREFN AT -

Membership and Attendance HER L EE

Attendance/
Number of
meetings
HER
Members K& SERE

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHATEE
Mr. WONG Po Yan — Chairman HERMAE—FR 1/1
Mr. LI Wai Keung FRERBESE 1/1
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RERLE 1/1

During 2012, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
recommended the director fees of all current non-executive
directors, recommended the remuneration of all current
executive directors and recommended the number and terms
of share options to be granted to executive directors and non-
executive directors to the Board.

The remuneration of members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

RZZE—ZFRN FNEZEEFRTE
FEABRIERTEENESHR S
MEEGREEMERTANTESNE
BFZEE THTESRIERTES
MBS B MBI R IR -

Be—_2——F+-_A=+—HILF
B RyNSEE O N RERENKE
HEEF T

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands HENEE AE
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T £2,000,000/% T 3
HK$2,000,000 or above 2,000,000/ 7L A £ 3

RIELEHRANMFZHANATRENE
ENERITRABFHE AR &S
BEME—THFBHENMBFHRERME
819

Further particulars regarding Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set
out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee on 27 March
2012. The Nomination Committee is authorised by the board
to determine the policy for the nomination of directors, to set
out the nomination procedures and criteria adopted to select
and recommend candidates for directorship. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive directors. The full terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
website of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors, Mr. WONG Po Yan and Mr. LI Wai Keung
and one executive director, Mr. LU Hua. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. WONG Po Yan.

The composition of the Nomination Committee and its meeting
attendance during the year are set out as follow:

REEEE
gExefN - E——F=A-++AR
RUIREBEEG - RELECEEES
CREBTESRABE RIRERE
FREmEREREEEEAMNERD
A -REZEENBERIESTEN
2098 - AU AR AR A K BT AR B N IR AT
BEENBUME - REZESNBERE
X FIEH R AR R Buh Lo

REZEEHMABUIFATESSE
RIREERFRBEEA R —BHTT
EERERFAK -REZEEIFES
wRMEE

REZBEENFANARKLE SR D
FBEAESNAT

Membership and Attendance BB R HEE

Attendance/
Number of
meetings
HEE
Members B BERE

Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. WONG Po Yan — Chairman HERAEE-FF 2/2
Mr. LI Wai Keung FEBKLE 2/2

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. LU Hua B EE4E 2/2

During 2012, the Nomination Committee has recommended the
appointment of one non-executive director and one executive
director to the Board and reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Company has not set up corporate governance committee.
In April 2012, the Board adopted written terms of reference in
compliance with the Code with effect from 1 April 2012.

The Board is primarily responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

— adoption of new Corporate Governance Code; and

— review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management systems of the Company.
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Internal Control

The Board shall be overall responsible for supervising the
operations of all business units within the Group. Suitable
candidates will be appointed by the Board to sit at the boards
of respective subsidiaries and associated companies in order
to oversee their operation performance. The management is
accountable for the operations and performance of their business
units.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of internal control
system of the Group, including the consideration on the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions and it considers that all the
material aspects of internal control of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance control as well as risk
management functions are adequate and effective during the
year.

Company Secretary

The Company has engaged and appointed a representative
from an external secretarial services provider as the company
secretary of the Company. The primary contact person with
the company secretary of the Company is Mr. TAM Ping Lung,
the board secretary of the Company. The company secretary
of the Company has duly complied with the relevant training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising
the preparation of financial statements of each financial period
which shall consistently adopt suitable accounting policies and
to comply with the accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and to reflect the
financial position, the results during the period and cash flow of
the Company in a true and fair manner.

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the
Company is set out on page 73 of the annual report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The external auditor engaged by the Company is Ernst & Young.

During the financial year, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the scope and quality of audit by Company’s external auditors,
Ernst & Young, and the independence and objectivity of Ernst
& Young as well as the cost effectiveness. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the audit fees paid to Ernst & Young. The Company
engaged Ernst & Young for audit and interim results review
services, and the remuneration paid to Ernst & Young amounted
to HK$4,100,000 and HK$1,000,000 respectively.

Model Code

The Board adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (hereinafter
referred to as the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct of the
Company regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiry to all the directors, all directors confirmed
that throughout the year, they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code regarding directors’ securities
transactions. In addition, the Board has adopted provisions of
the Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees in
respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company. Such
relevant employees shall abide by the principles and rules of the
Model Code.

Communication with shareholders

The Board has established a shareholders” communication
policy setting out the dialogues that the Company are in place
to promote effective communication with shareholders, with
the aim of ensuring shareholders are provided with timely
information about the Company and encouraging them to engage
actively in communication with the Company and to exercise
their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to public in a timely manner. The Company
maintains a corporate website at www.shenzheninvestment.com
where important information about the Group’s activities and
corporate matters such as annual reports and half-year reports
to shareholders, announcements, business development and
operations, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public’s access.
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The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the board and
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each issue at
the general meetings.

The 2012 annual general meeting (“2012 AGM”) was held on 22
June 2012 and its attendance are set out below:

ARvlzBRBFRAEAESTTHR
ReEMEZERREH—EEATE-
RRERE LeeBEEREIEZER
REREE

—E—FRRAFRg ([ZE—=
FRERFRGER=ZZE—Z_FX
AZ+ZR8T RESZHNLFEER
FHHMT

Attendance/
Number
of general
meetings
HER
Directors = BRERXERH
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. LU Hua B FERLE 1/1
Mr. MOU Yong 2 BEE 1/1
Mr. WANG Minyuan® FHERAEED 0/0
Mr. LIU Chong 2 RkH&E 1/1
Non-Executive Directors HHITEE
Dr. WU Jiesi HESEL 1/1
Mr. HUANG Yige =BEE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFBITESE
Mr. WONG Po Yan ERRSEE 0/1
Mr. LI Wai Keung FREBESE 1/1
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RERELE 0/1

Note: " Mr. WANG Minyuan was appointed to the Board on 28 September 2012.

Mr. WONG Po Yan and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, both
independent non-executive directors, were unable to attend
2012 AGM due to other business commitment. Mr. LI Wai
Keung, the member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, had attended in Mr. WONG’s absence.

The Company’s external auditor had attended the 2012 AGM.
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Investors Relations

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business
activities to whom with a legitimate interest and respond to their
questions. Investors are invited and visited by management at
appropriate times. In addition, enquiries arising from general
public and individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all
cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information is
disclosed to selective parties.

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules, and the articles of association
of the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) may convene extraordinary
general meeting, put forward proposals at general meetings and
direct enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following
procedures:

- Procedures for convening extraordinary general meetings
by shareholders

In accordance with section 113 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the laws of Hong Kong), shareholder(s)
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-twentieth of such of the paid-up capital of the
Company which as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, may require
the directors of the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”). The written requisition must
state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The requisition may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of the shareholders
concerned.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene an EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the
shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the said date.
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The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
general meetings are to be convened by the directors of the
Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders are requested to follow section 115A of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the laws of Hong
Kong) for including a resolution at an annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM”). The requirements and procedures
are set out below:

(i) Any number of shareholders representing not less than
one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at an
AGM to which the requisition relates, or not less than 50
shareholders holding shares in the Company on which
there has been paid up an average sum, per shareholder,
of not less than HK$2,000, may submit a requisition in
writing to put forward a resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at an AGM.

(ii) The Company shall not be bound by the Companies
Ordinance to give notice of the proposed resolution or
to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution to shareholders of the Company entitled
to receive notice of an AGM unless (a) a copy of the
requisition signed by the shareholders concerned (or 2 or
more copies which between them contain the signatures
of all the shareholders concerned) is deposited at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of
the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks before an
AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than 1 week before an AGM in
the case of any other requisition; and (b) the concerned
shareholders have deposited with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.
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(iii) However if, after a copy of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office
of the Company, an AGM is called for a date 6 weeks or
less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though
not deposited within the time required as referred to
in the above shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited.

Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company

Matters relating to the Board

To direct enquiries to the Board, the Shareholders should
submit his/her enquiries in writing with his/her detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary at the
following:

By post to the registered office of the Company

Email:  tampl@shumyip.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2312 8752
Fax: (852) 2311 2539

Matters relating to share registration

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer
and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, the Shareholders can
contact the Hong Kong Share Registrar at the following:

By post to the Share Registrar of the Company

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Tel: (852) 2980 1333
Fax: (852) 2861 1465
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The directors present their annual report and audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
and associates are set out in note 20 and note 22 to the financial
statements, respectively. There were no changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
financial position of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 75 to 205.

An interim dividend of HK7.00 cents (2011: HK7.00 cents) per
share was paid on 14 November 2012. The directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK11.00 cents (2011: final
dividend of HK8.00 cents) per ordinary share in respect of the
year to shareholders on the register of members on 20 June 2013.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 206. This summary
is not part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 14 and note 19 to the financial
statements.

Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 20 to the financial statements.
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Principal Associates

Particulars of the Company’s and the Group’s interests in its
principal associates are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

Bank and other borrowings

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Company and of
the Group are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons thereof, are set
out in note 35 and note 36 to the financial statements.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$774,317,000 of which HK$410,192,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year.

In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of HK$5,714,001,000 may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than
30% of the Group’s sales and purchases respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest of the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. GUO Limin
(resigned on 24 April 2012)
Mr. LU Hua
Mr. MOU Yong
Mr. WANG Minyuan
(appointed on 28 September 2012)
Mr. LIU Chong

Non-executive directors:

Dr. WU Jiesi
Mr. HUANG Yige
(appointed on 27 March 2012)

Mr. LIU Biao
(resigned on 27 March 2012)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. WONG Po Yan
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
Mr. LI Wai Keung

In accordance with Article 92 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
WANG Minyuan who was appointed to fill a casual vacancy will
hold office only until the next general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
LIU Chong, Mr. WONG Po Yan and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
will retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Mr. WONG
Po Yan has notified the Company that due to age, he will not
seek for re-election as director at the Annual General Meeting.
Accordingly, except for Mr. WONG Po Yan, all other retiring
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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In accordance with rule 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Board of the Company must include at least three
independent non-executive directors and one-third of the Board
should be independent non-executive directors. The Company
is now seeking an appropriate person to be appointed by the
Board or to be proposed for election to fill up the vacated
office occasioned by the retirement of Mr. WONG Po Yan as
independent non-executive director. If the requirements of
rule 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules are not complied
with at the date of the Annual General Meeting, the Company
should immediately inform the Stock Exchange and publish an
announcement containing the relevant details and reasons.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 32 to 40 of
the annual report.

Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management
Members and the Five Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the directors’ and senior management members’
emoluments and of the five highest paid individuals in the
Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements
respectively.

Interest Capitalised

Interest of approximately HK$721,942,000 was capitalized
during the year in respect of the Group’s property development
projects.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No directors had a material interest in any contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes are set out in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
information of the Directors since the date of the Company’s
Interim Report 2012 is set out below:

Mr. LU Hua was appointed as a non-executive director of Road
King Infrastructure Limited on 22 June 2012.

Mr. HUANG Yige was appointed as a director of Shahe Industrial
Co., Ltd. on 15 September 2012.

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael retired as an independent non-
executive director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited
on 21 November 2011. He was also appointed as a non-
executive director and the chairman of Cypress Jade Agricultural
Holdings Limited on 28 February 2012 and was re-designated as
an independent non-executive director and the chairman on 13
November 2012.

Mr. WONG Po Yan retired as an independent non-executive
director of Alco Holdings Limited on 7 November 2011, China
Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited on 1
November 2012, Fintronics Holdings Company Limited on 25
March 2013 and Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited
on 19 March 2013 respectively.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follow:-
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Long positions in the shares

Company:

and underlying shares of the

Report of the Directors
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Underlying
shares

Percentage of

EEEWmE

Nature of Number of  pursuant to Aggregate  issued share

Name of director Capacity interests shares share options interests capital

BEERE HE BT

Z WA Rz

EEps £ EHEME ROEE ROEE BrEs Bok

(Note)
(PBax)

LU Hua Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 1,038,829 4,016,000 5,054,829 0.14
=i E=mlA A BEmiEm

MOU Yong Beneficial owner Beneficial interest - 4,016,000 4,016,000 0.11
258 EmlA A BEams

LIU Chong Beneficial owner Beneficial interest - 4,016,000 4,016,000 0.11
2= Em#EA B

WU Jiesi Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 3,534,767 - 3,534,767 0.09
HER E=mlA A BEmiEm

WONG Po Yan Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 3,534,767 - 3,534,767 0.09
=IRR EmlA A BEams

LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 1,087,145 - 1,087,145 0.03
FRE EmEAA B

Note:  The underlying shares represent interests of options granted to the  [iit: HHERG HIEEFRIFEBRE ZER

Directors under the Share Option Scheme to acquire for shares of the

Company, further details of which are set out in note to the financial

statements under the heading “Share Option Scheme”.

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
associated corporation — Road King Infrastructure Limited:
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WONG Po Yan Beneficial owner 50,000 - - 50,000 0.01
BRI ExifEA
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Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.

Share Options

Details of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements.

The following share options were outstanding under the Old
Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

B EXFTEBEEIN  RIBEA A RERE
5 M EREIEHIE352FFE 2 B L MEr
B SR E LT ARESETESRS
IERETRERITHE AR R LB
ZERIR MEAAAEERTSIT
BRABHEA ARG S HEA T AEE L ®
AR MBS ES 2 ER

A

R
B8 LA 8 2 S IB IR B IS HR
FMIEE36 ©

AT BRFAREE B M HRITE
ZFERRE

BREHA
Lapsed Other Date of Exercise
At1 Granted Exercised  and forfeited Cancelled changes At31 grant of price of
January during during during during during December share  Exercise period of share
2012 the year the year the year the year the year 2012 options  share options options
RZB-ZF
R-%-z% REAXH FRRM 1A BH BhRE
-A-R  REARE REATE REM REREH 28 =t-A  BRERR FRERESR TR
HK$
per share
shan
Directors
iz
GUO Limin (resigned 6,300,000 - - (6,300,000) - - - 19/712010  19/7/2012-18/712015* 239
on 24/4/2012) Note 1
FUR(RZF-F Bt
AZTOARE)
LU Hua 4,016,000 - - - - - 4,016,000 19/7/2010  19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 239
2%
MOU Yong 4,016,000 - - - - - 4,016,000 19/712010  19/7/2012-18/712015* 239
25
LIU Chong 4,016,000 - - - - - 4,016,000 19/7/2010  19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 239
B
18,348,000 - - (6,300,000) - - 12,048,000
Other employees
AeEE
In aggregate 900,000 - - (900,000) - - - 40712007 4/7/2007-3/7/2012 4.768
ak
75,514,000 - - - - - 75,514,000 19/712010  19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 239
4,016,000 - - - - - 4,016,000 9/12/2010  18/7/2012-18/7/2015** 2.814
80,430,000 - - (900,000) - - 79,530,000
98,778,000 - - (7,200,000) - - 91,578,000
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Options will be exercisable in the following manner:-

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

AT 58 8 IR 4 B 5 L A5
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Period for exercise of the relevant
percentage of the Share Option
HRLL I BREZ

TEHE

ok

40%

70%

100%

Options will be exercisable in the following manner:-

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

AT 68 B IR 4 R 5 L 5

at any time after the expiry of 2 years from the Date of Grant up to
3 years from the Date of Grant
REBEHEAMFEREEERN BB =F 2 EMRKMH

at any time after the expiry of 3 years from the Date of Grant up to
4 years from the Date of Grant

EH ARG =FENREER G AR NF 2 EmERE

at any time after the expiry of 4 years from the Date of Grant up to
5 years from the Date of Grant

EHASEFOFERREERE AL AT ZEMEHRHE
o BERER IR T AT

Period for exercise of the relevant
percentage of the Share Option
HRLE I BREZ

TEHE

Notes:

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

40%

70%

100%

Mr. GUO Limin resigned as director of the Company on 24 April 2012 and
his options were lapsed or forfeited after 3 months from his resignation date.

During the year, no options were granted and exercised under the Old 2.

Scheme and the New Scheme.

During the year, 3,420,000 options were lapsed 3,780,000 options were 3.
forfeited and no options were cancelled under the Old Scheme.

by Directors of Listed Companies.

at any time after the expiry of 1 year and 222 days from the Date
of Grant up to 2 years and 222 days from the Date of Grant

BREASEG —FT20RAERREERE AHNRFMEFET2220
Z AE AT

at any time after the expiry of 2 years and 222 days from the Date
of Grant up to 3 years and 222 days from the Date of Grant

RHASBEAMET2022AERREERH AR =F22220
Z A B [

at any time after the expiry of 3 years and 222 days from the Date
of Grant up to 4 years and 222 days from the Date of Grant

RERBEF=FT2022REREEERE A PREFNFET22R
ZAE (AT B ]

ML -

—_

FTREEN T ——FMA -+ IMHE
EARRESREERBECEEHTAE
BEt =A% KR -

RER RIFEF BRI S BEER
R R ETT -

RER - IREERTE] 3,420,00017 AR #E
B AR B K 3,780,00017 B A #E B2 Uk - Bk
BRI

B EXFrIEEIN RIFARFEIRE
H MR IGPIEIS2GFE 2 E LM
BSREBELETRARESETESRRLS
BFETRBERITHE AN A MBS
ZEBPUR  BEARREERESTT
BA BHEA AR A AR EEE
ZEMRD RARERDREF 2 EE

TR
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or its associated
corporations and none of the directors, or their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
equity or debt securities of the Company or its associated
corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the shareholders, other than a director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:—

Interest in shares of the Company:

EEWERG ZER

B E XTI B ESN  RE R IR
ARRA R E AR E B ES EE
M SARRBEFAHBEARLRA
FEBBEEZBROREHES (2
EES) MERN FEEMES K
EZRBIETN\FATFLRERE
A A BEEA R B HEAREAE 2 B
HEHEF CEMNACITEEAZES
R -

FERR

RNR-ZE——F+_A=+—HB BHE
(KRREZEFLERTHABRIN R
KABIRMEEBERD (ERAFE
BT A5 % A £) PR AR &N
RARRIEFES R EBEIEME3361KT
WFBEZERMESRRRWT

FAARAIRGD 2 % :

Percentage of

Number of shares shares of
Long Short  the Company
Name Capacity Nature of interest Position Position in issue
EXRAT
RHEE ERITRHZ
% a4 BEtE #E ) Bl
AEEEBRAA Interest of controlled Corporate interest  1,655,211,234 - 4439
corporation (Note)

REEEERAA REEE R (M) RFA#ER

Shum Yip Holdings Beneficial owner (Note)  Beneficial interest ~ 1,655,211,234 - 44.39

Company Limited
Ax (RE)BERRA E@BAA (M) Bt

Pk

Note:  Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited is wholly-owned by X ¥ % EHR
AR REEBEBMR AT is deemed to be interested in the 1,655,211,234
shares beneficially held by Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited.

FYZRERAT 2012F 5,

HeE: RE(EE)BERANBARAEEEFR
NAZEHB - FESEEBRABIHE
BRRE(SE)ERAAERIFTAZ
1,655,211,23 4% B 17 7 A 1 55 -



Save as disclosed above, the register which was required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the Company
had not been notified of any interests or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2012.

Saved as disclosed above, no person, other than the directors of
the Company, whose interest are set out in the section “Directors
interest in shares” above, had registered an interest in the share
capital of the Company that were required to be recorded.

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out in
note 42 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions, which
need to be disclosed as, connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors as regards their
independence to the Company pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers that each of the independent non-
executive directors is independent to the Company.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float, as not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares are held by the
public.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee since
September 2004 for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls. The audit committee currently comprises
Mr. WONG Po Yan, Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI
Wai Keung, independent non-executive directors. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s results for the year in a
meeting held on 25 March 2013.

Report of the Directors EZE®H|E

bR EXFTHBREN RZE——F+=
A=+—RH REEHKBEKLE
336(6 T AR E 2 BRIt EEHIA
NEVESH 2 RNRQF) 2 E ] #2548
B o

R EXPTIREEE SN BIEARRES N
AL (EERREREX[EFZ
Peintgsm] —80) DA DR BRAFE
7B TRk 2 ek -

HERS
AFEZHEXZHFBRRPERE
BifaE42 ©

B EXFIIEEIN BEREMR 5 BR
B PR L ARA (T EmARRAND)
ZHRETURBERBEERS -

BIUMHER
ARABERBREEILIFAITESERE
AR BISE3. 1316 BE RSB L M L B
FEERL - ARAINR BB
WITESHBINARF

RREFRE
EARFHRAE 2B - REAQBIGH
RRABHERESHAE  ARFA R
WORZFRE AARBREL D
RARBEE HITIRIDEN25% °

EREES

ARAIBE_TTNFNAKRILIEGZER
Ee HBEEREMRAAKEZ
MHEHREBEMAERERIES-
ERZEeRNHBYIIFNTESR
RMEE  REBEERFEARLLS
K-BREEGENR_T—=F=A
“thABTZEZ LBAAKER
RERZEE-
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Continuing Disclosure Requirements Under Rule 13.21
of The Listing Rules

Banking facilities with covenants relation to specific performance
of the controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“1st Facility Agreement”) dated 3 April 2008
entered into between the Company as borrower and China
Construction Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch as lender
(“CCB”) a transferable term loan facility of up to HK$300 million
(“1st Facility”) is made available by CCB to the Company on the
terms and conditions as stated therein. The Tst Facility shall be
made available to the Company within 6 months from the date of
the 1st Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay to CCB
in full any outstanding advances made thereunder on the date
falling 60 months from the date of the 1st Facility Agreement.
The Company intends to use the 1st Facility to finance the
general corporate funding requirements of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

By an agreement (“2nd Facility Agreement”) dated 28 September
2010 entered into between, among others, the Company as
borrower and a syndicate of lenders (“Lenders”), a transferable
term loan facility of up to US$400 million (“2nd Facility”) is
made available by the Lenders to the Company on the terms
and conditions as stated therein. The 2nd Facility will be made
available to the Company within 6 months from the date of
the 2nd Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay to
the Lenders in full any outstanding advances made thereunder
on the date falling 48 months from the date of the 2nd Facility
Agreement. The Company intends to use the 2nd Facility to
finance the general corporate funding requirements of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

By an agreement (“3rd Facility Agreement”) dated 16 September
2011 entered into between the Company as borrower and a
syndicate of banks, a US$$209,000,000 transferable term loan
facility and a HK$1,026,000,000 transferable term loan facility
(“3rd Facilities”) were provided to the Company on the terms and
conditions as stated therein. The 3rd Facilities shall be repaid by
the Company in instalments with the last repayment date falling
48 months from the date of the 3rd Facility Agreement.

RIERBRAT 2012FF5]

THRAIZE13.211
EBEBERBERE

WA B RS EM R RHE 2R
1TRE -

BEARNE (EBERA) BABRER
RITBEBDT([HEIERRIT] 1E
BEFRAIR-ZZEENFMNA=HF]
Y2 —EBHE ([E—mmEHsl)
FEERBITEE—MDREHZNH
ZIERREE BARRIRERSZ A
300,000,000/ 7T~ 7] 82 3% F i & i@k
BE([E—Z£mE]) HHERETAE
REIMBE—HRERZEE BB NEA
NRARRIREE —EHE  MARF
AREINE—DREHHE - W
ANTHEAZ AHM A B ERIRETER
EETAERLREMAEEZRR
AABMEBE—EMEARNARA
MEWBARZ —REEELST R

BIE (EdhadE) KRR (TEAERA)
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By a letter (“4th Facility Agreement”) dated 17 October 2011
entered into between the Company as borrower and a bank,
a HK$600,000,000 term loan facility and a CNY200,000,000
term loan facility, which aggregate amount shall not exceed
HK$800,000,000 (“4th Facility”) was provided to the Company
on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 4th Facility
shall be repaid by the Company in instalments with the
last repayment date falling 36 months from the date of the
Company’s entering into the 4th Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“5th Facility Agreement”, together with the
1st Facility Agreement, 2nd Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility
Agreement, 4th Facility Agreement, collectively known as the
“Facility Agreements”) dated 21 June 2012 entered into between
the Company as borrower and a bank, a HK$200,000,000
transferable term loan facility (“5th Facility”) to the Company.
The 5th Facility shall be repaid by the Company in one lump sum
on the date falling 36 months from the date of the 5th Facility
Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if
Shum Yip Holdings ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of
the issued share capital of the Company, ceases to be the single
largest shareholder of the Company, ceases to have management
control of the Company, or ceases to remain beneficially
owned as to at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal People’s
Government of the People’s Republic of China and in which
event all amounts due under the facilities may be declared to be
immediately due and payable.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LU Hua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR

Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= Ik

To the shareholders of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 205, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
25 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

malmk

Year ended 31 December 2012
HE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAET
REVENUE U 25 5 8,568,254 7,320,584
Cost of sales $HE KA (5,479,594) (4,653,449)
Gross profit EA 3,088,660 2,667,135
Other income and gains H Al Y A R F 15 5 813,422 463,778
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AnERE (EE)F8E:
Equity investments at fair value BRBREANEFEY
through profit or loss RE RIS & 2,269 (1,077)
Financial liabilities at fair value BREREAALBEFEZ
through profit or loss TRAE - 65,861
Increase in fair value of investment
properties REWMERAEEM 19 470,895 311,316
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MDY (243,868) (226,787)
Administrative expenses 1T (758,921) (725,522)
Other expenses Haf (58,568) (256,689)
Finance costs Bl & A A 7 (479,549) (200,562)
Share of profits and losses of: B FE A A K 1S
Jointly-controlled entities HREH E 52 48,524 185,265
Associates /N 818,937 609,575
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FR B A i T 6 3,701,801 2,892,293
Income tax expense FIBHiA X 10 (1,141,561) (1,076,534)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 2,560,240 1,815,759
Attributable to: oI EAL
Owners of the parent ISTNEIE7Z=DN 11 2,156,069 1,522,078
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 2 404,171 293,681
2,560,240 1,815,759
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF A S & B R EREZE A
THE PARENT EhERER 13
Basic 2R
— For profit for the year —F RN HK59.23 centsi#E{l  HK42.86 cents/&
Diluted s
— For profit for the year —F R HK59.23 centsi 1l HK42.86 cents/&

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed

in note 12 to the financial statements.

BRAFERIRRFRES 2715 SRS R M

12 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEREWER

Year ended 31 December 2012
HE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 2,560,240 1,815,759
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hin2mE U=
Available-for-sale investments: AIHHERE
Changes in fair value NAEEF 2,632 (5,676)
Income tax effect s 2 (657) 1,419
1,975 (4,257)
Share of other comprehensive income
of associates FEAG B & A B H 2 s 27,779 162,448
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations BMEBIIEB L ERZR 178,541 819,615
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX FRAHEHMZEWKE  BREE 208,295 977,806
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR FRAEZHEHKNRAE 2,768,535 2,793,565
Attributable to: TG
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ =N 2,345,526 2,428,837
Non-controlling interests FE5E AR 2 423,009 364,728
2,768,535 2,793,565
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e Bk &

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
—g—=#% ?——i
+=ZB=+—H +—ﬂ:+ =]
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BB RRE 14 2,414,252 630,160
Intangible assets B EE 15 75,986 81,372
Prepaid land lease payments T 4 30 A B RIE 16 49,045 48,863
Goodwill RS 17 322,744 322,704
Investment properties wEME 19 9,210,339 5,560,792
Investments in associates Hﬁ%%'& Al A 22 5,223,517 5,276,081
Investments in jointly-controlled entities AZEHERRE 21 118,124 430,866
Available-for-sale investments Eﬁ/tttﬂ/%&ﬁ 24 52,471 29,913
Other long term assets HMREEE 25 1,377,822 1,386,939
Deferred tax assets BIETRIAE &= 34 528,258 438,845
Pledged deposits EHEMER 30 137,323 12,427
Total non-current assets ERBEELEE 19,509,881 14,218,962
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories EE 26 109,107 91,677
Completed properties held for sale RIEFE 2B EZXME 7,094,670 3,348,072
Properties under development TRPYE 18 15,723,873 15,111,752
Trade receivables FE W AR K 27 254,857 143,407
Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables TEFRIE 7l RE ﬂﬂfguﬁmA 28 4,520,838 2,995,350
Equity investments at fair value through  FBERB AR EE 2
profit or loss "E& 29 10,296 19,487
Held-to-maturity investment HAEZIHRE 23 - 387,968
Pledged deposits EHERER 30 129,905
Restricted cash PR R & 30 304,528 126,425
Cash and cash equivalents RehBE2EFED 30 6,734,052 5,097,524
Total current assets MEEEBE 34,882,126 27,321,662
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings FFERITREMEER 31 8,974,238 4,965,249
Trade payables FE A AR K 32 703,486 264,717
Other payables and accruals B RIEREFTER 33 8,283,656 4,815,051
Due to the immediate holding company J&YHEB& i e/NGT rr/\IE 42(d)(vi) 14,158 -
Due to the ultimate holding company JE A B ARFE AR A R 3R 42(d)(vi) 64,579 54,641
Tax payable FEREIIE 1,978,905 1,806,695
Total current liabilities mE B EER 20,019,022 11,906,353
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZFEE 14,863,104 15,415,309
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES BMEERADAMR 34,372,985 29,634,271
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e KRR

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
+=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FH&T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings FFERRITREMEER 31 13,236,124 11,514,038
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEBE 34 1,627,018 1,107,296
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEEE 14,863,142 12,621,334
Net assets BEFE 19,509,843 17,012,937
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of
the parent BRAREEABLES
Issued capital B EITIRAR 35 186,451 181,301
Reserves ki 37(a) 16,951,253 15,071,996
Proposed final dividend R R B RR 8 12 410,192 290,082
17,547,896 15,543,379
Non-controlling interests FERES 1,961,947 1,469,558
Total equity T A RE 19,509,843 17,012,937
LU Hua LIU Chong
BE EIES
Director Director
Ea Ea
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2012
BHE-_Z——&E+-A=+—HIEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRTREARE
Available-
for-sale
Share Capital Share Asset  investment Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium Other  redemption option Capital ~ revaluation revaluation  Statutory  fluctuation  Retained  Proposed controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividends Total  interests equity
e
B&f R RERE R BEEfR  REER Eig29 2R
A BER  AbEE i BE  ERER i BE iRER B REEN RGBSR 2% B RESE
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
liF3 Tt TEn Fitr Tt TEn T Tt Thn T Tt Thn TiEn Tt Tt TEn
At 1 January 2011 RZF-——%-A-H 176,828 5398197 (278,831) 2,036 A7 59,019 59,172 5944 1170049 2315074 4,297,378 247560 13474903 1,224,894 14,699,797
Profit for the year ERgf] - - - - - - B - - - 1,522,078 - 1522078 293,681 1815759
Other comprehensive
income for the year: - FAEH2ENE
Changes in fair value
of available-for-sale
investments, AtHEREZ
net of tax MERD Rk - - - - - - B (4,257) = o = = (4257) = (4,257)
Share of other
comprehensive ERBERDEL
income of associates ~ 2EY & - - - - - - 4399 - - 158,049 - - 162,448 - 162,448
Exchange differences
on translation of
foreign operations ~ AERINEKEREE - = - = = - = - - 748568 = - 748568 71,047 819615
Total comprehensive
income for the year  FRZEREEE - - - - - - 4399 (4257) - 906617 1,522,078 - 242887 364728 2,793,565
Adjustment to prior
year's final dividend  WEFEREREZHE 12 - - = - - - - - - - (238) 28 = = =
Final 2010 dividend ~ BER-F-%%
declared RARE - - - - - - - - - - - (47798 (47,798) - (4779
Acquisition of non-
controlling interests M3 A R 4 = o (32,409) = = = = = = = = = 32,409) (19.123)  (51,532)
Acquisition of a
subsidiary KE-FHBAT = = = = = = = = = = = = = 4936 4936
Share options
exercised EfTfRERE 3537 170 9,163 - - (1,972) - - - - - - - 7,361 - 7,361
Share issue expenses  RAEITHR 3587 - 37) B - = - - B = = = = 37) = 37)
Interim 2011 dividend
in the form of IHFRHI,
new shares ZE--FplRE 3507 4303 129945 - B - - B - - B - - 134248 - 134248
Equity-settled share
option expense WRAR T2 BRBER 36 - - - - 24,746 - - - - - - - 24,746 - 24,746
Share of reserves of
associates EEBRDARE - - - - 1326 - - - - - - - 1326 - 1326
Interim 2011 dividend  —F-—FHHRE 1 - - - - - - - - - - (4779) - (47,79) - (479
Proposed final 2011
dividend RE-Z 558588 1 - - - - - - - - - - (9008) 290,082 - - -
Dividends paid to
non-controlling
shareholders TRFERRR 2R E = = = = = = = = = = = = - (105877)  (105,877)
Transfer from retained
profits ERAREER - - - - - B - - 136645 - (136,645 = = = =
——512f
At31 December 2011~ =+—8 181,301 5,537,268 (311,240 2,036* 46,577% 59,019 63,571% 1,687 1,306,694  3221,691% 5144693 290,082 15543379 1,469,558 17,012,937
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ReEREHX

Year ended 31 December 2012

BE-T —_FT-A=T—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BRTRAARL
Available-
for-sale
Share Capital Share Asset  investment Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium Other  redemption option Capital ~ revaluation revaluation  Statutory  fluctuation  Retained  Proposed controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividends Total  interests equity
AftE
B&f R RERE R REEff RKEH EX28 #ER
A BER  AbEE i BE  ERER i BfE iRER B REEN RGBSR 2% B REAE
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Lif:3 T TEn TiEn T TER TEn T TEn TEn FiEn T FiEn FiEn FEL TEn
At 1 January 2012 R=F-—5-F-R 181301 5,537,268 (311,240) 2,036 46,577 59,019 63,571 1,687 1,306,694 3,221,691 5,144,693 290,082 15,543,379 1,469,558 17,012,937
Profit for the year ERgf] - - - - - - B - - - 2,156,069 - 2156060 404171 2,560,240
Other comprehensive
income for the year: - FAEH2ENE
Changes in fair value
of available-for-sale
investments,
net of tax - = = - - = = 1975 = = - = 1,975 - 1,975
Share of other
comprehensive ERBERDER
income of associates  2EY & - - - - - - 790 - - 26,989 - - 27,1719 - 27,779
Exchange differences
on translation of
foreign operations ~ AEFINEKEREE - = = = = - = = - 159,703 = - 159,703 16,838 178541
Total comprehensive
income for the year  FAZEHEEE = - - - - - 790 1,975 - 186,692 2,156,069 - 234552 423,009 2,768,535
Final 2011 dividend ~ BER-F-—%
declared FHERE B B - B B - - B - - - (290,082 (290,082) - (290,08)
Establishment of
a subsidiary HI-HHBAR - - - - - - - - - - - - - 109862 109,862
Acquisition of
subsidiaries REHBAR 38 = = = = = = = = = = = = 132,077 132,077
Acquisition of non-
controlling interests  REFER R - - 3,185) = a o = = - = = - (3,185 (31,5000  (34,685)
Decrease in interestin -~ N —EHEL
asubsidiary without 2 &2
Joss of control (TEX£E5E) = - 3,037 - - = - = - = - - 3,037 1,288 4305
Interim 2012 dividend
in the form of WHRBF A2
new shares “E-ZEhilREE 3507 5150 176733 - - - - - - B - - - 181,883 - 181883
Transfer of share
option reserve upon
the lapse of share ~ REREXAE
options HERRERS - - - - - (1,921) - - - - = 1921 = = & =
Equity-settled share
optionexpense  WRAZMTZBRERT 36 - - - - 1708 - - - - - - - 1708 - 1708
Share of reserves of
associates EEBENAGRE - - - - (8,675) - - - - - 12,817 - 4142 = 4142
Interim 2012 dividend =F--5£FHHRE 1 - = B - - B - - B - (53822 - (253,822 - (283822
Proposed final 2012
dividend RE-F-—FREKE 12 - - - - - - - - - - W01 410192 - - -
Dividends paid to
non-controlling
shareholders IREERREZRE = = = = = = = = = = = = - (142347)  (142347)
Transfer from retained
profits BRARDER - = = = = = = - 141209 - (141209 = = = =
At31 December 2012 186451 5,714,001 (311,388)* 2,036* 52,999* 59,019¢ 64,361* 3662F 1447903 3,408383*  6510.277* 410,192 17,547,896 1,961,947 19,509,843

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$16,951,253,000 (2011: HK$15,071,996,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

FRYEBRERDE 2012555
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GAEeREMER

Year ended 31 December 2012
BHE-_Z——&E+-A=+—HIEE

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 55 FET FH T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES REREXEB2RERE
Profit before tax: B B A1 5 A - 3,701,801 2,892,293
Adjustments for: V=SS
Finance costs 7l & B AR 7 479,549 200,562
Finance income B TS WA (472,427) (369,333)
Depreciation e 6 104,151 89,390
Increase in fair value of investment
properties REWEZ N AREEM 19 (470,895) (311,316)
Dividend income from investments REKZEZREWA (2,843) (1,108)
Share of profits and losses of: FEME T B
Jointly-controlled entities HEESE S (48,524) (185,265)
Associates /NG| (818,937) (609,575)
Amortisation of vehicle licences VR EE [ AR g 6 6,332 6,446
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments TE A 4 A0 B TR IE 5 6 1,497 1,546
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME BMEREREERBEZ
plant and equipment FE 6 (3,533) (1,395)
Gain on bargain purchases REBERNSE 5 (200,586) -
Remeasurement gain on investment in DEEREHPENSE
associates in step acquisitions g N EIRE 2 W 5 (39,188) =
Impairment loss of an investment in —MRERFZ
an associate K& REEE 6 - 200,000

Net fair value gain on financial
liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value (gain)/loss on equity
investments at fair value through

BBEZEANEMEZ

EHAaREAFEKSE - (65,861)
BREXRBRANENFEZ

R E 2 A RFE

profit or loss (Wz) BB (2,269) 1,077
Equity-settled share option expense VARSCZR 32 A~ 2 B AL 7 2 36 17,018 24,746
2,251,146 1,872,207
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FEUZBR X ($40) /4 (108,123) 56,042
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TR RRIA ~ 7] & K& H A fE UL
other receivables RIAIE AN (815,866) (929,335)
Decrease in equity investments FRBERRAREFEZ
at fair value through profit or loss e RE#% & R 11,460 =
Increase in inventories FEEM (15,666) (31,391)
Decrease/(increase) in completed HIEGREZEEXME
properties for sale B, (1) 2,732,184 (959,144)
Increase in properties under development %% & 1 47 538 N (6,227,723) (3,221,021)
Increase in trade payables & 1< B R 38 0 2,722 122,818
Increase in other payables and accruals — EAib & < 5018 2 f& 51 & F 38 AN 2,168,303 916,924
Increase in an amount due to
the immediate holding company FET BB AR A R SR IEE AN 14,158 —
Increase in an amount due to the ultimate
holding company JE A B A% 45 AR X R SR IE & AN 9,938 13,025
Increase in restricted cash MR H13 EEm 30 (178,103) (126,425)
Cash used in operations REXBHBZRE (155,570) (2,286,300)
Interest paid AT FE (1,183,571) (734,806)
Mainland China taxes paid B 15 /R B A R OE (836,147) (627,765)
Net cash flows used in operating
activities REEHMA RS REFR (2,175,288) (3,648,871)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GAEeREMER

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE—_T——F#+_-_A=+—HI&E

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt = FERT FET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES RERETHZHERE
Interest received 24 F S 275,094 247,267
Dividends received from investments B E RS 2,843 1,108
Dividends received from associates S E AN 374,567 581,639
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - ﬂﬁ%& REIEE

property, plant and equipment PR 1A 16,714 6,559
Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment B AW FE—& IR E (179,785) (70,667)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B B A 38 (560,112) (17,767)
Proceeds from disposal of

a held-to-maturity investment HE R B E 2 HIRE PFISFUR 387,968 -
Additions to investment properties BB YL (206,248) (47,764)
Disposal/(addition) of investments in

associates HeE/ ( i*jJD)H /N E"ﬁxﬁ - 624
Loans to jointly-controlled entities BT HREZEHEREZE (9,839) =
Loans to associates ol 6%%" ATER (12,183) (207,338)
Additions to investments in jointly-

controlled entities R 6 B 28R A 4L N - (61,695)
Decrease/(increase) in other long term Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁz

assets WA, (HEn) 20,047 (1,220,952)
Additions to intangible assets EFE BN 311) (345)
Increase in pledged deposits [EEEEE RSl 30 (254,801) (12,427)
Net cash flows used in investing activities & & EEFTAZ R R 2 F5E (146,046) (801,758)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES REMETH2RERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS 3R - 7,361
Share issue expenses P fn 817 B =2 35 - 37
Establishment of a subsidiary B3z — [E Bt /8 2 A 109,862 -
Dividends paid B E (362,021) (361,348)
Dividends paid to non-controlling

shareholders B FEIE AR AR SR AR 2 (142,347) (105,877)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests /i FF#E iR i 25 (32,928) (51,533)
New bank and other borrowings FigRITREMES 11,475,949 14,254,267
Repayment of bank and other borrowings {EER1T R EMIEE (7,150,475) (10,550,248)
Net cash flows from financing activities REEEEBMFE 2R SN2 FE 3,898,040 3,192,585
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) REeERBELEEY

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #wm ORd) FEE 1,576,706 (1,258,044)
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year FHNZRERBACEEY 5,097,524 6,179,790
Effect of foreign exchange rate

changes, net AN e SR B B 2 B R R 59,822 175,778
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR FRZESRRSEEY 6,734,052 5,097,524
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRASEENEHRIM
Cash and bank balances R & RRITEEER 30 5,197,802 3,766,916
Non-pledged time deposits with

original maturity of less than BARRIBEIN=ZEAZ

three months when acquired ﬁ?ﬁﬁi%ﬁ@m 30 1,536,250 1,330,608
Cash and cash equivalents as stated FNRERERZRERES

in the statement of cash flows EEW 6,734,052 5,097,524

RIERERAT 2012FFH



Statement of Financial Position

B B AR O AR

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
—E-—_F —E——F
+=—HA=+-—H +=-—BA=+—~8”
Notes HK$/000 HK$'000
B FHET FH&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MR 14 969 1,502
Investments in subsidiaries M A R&RE 20 7,124,008 6,625,439
Investments in associates Bt N R E 22 364,532 364,532
Available-for-sale investments T%ﬁ%&ﬁ 24 1,720 1,720
Total non-current assets ERBEELEE 7,491,229 6,993,193
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables FERT IR nTEEZ£§iﬁﬂFEH& 28 31,772 7,710
Due from subsidiaries R E A 20 5,832,920 4,740,097
Equity investments at fair value FiBiEas ?E’D\fli 52 B
through profit or loss " E 29 10,296 8,027
Held-to-maturity investment HAEEIHKRE 23 - 387,968
Cash and cash equivalents i%é%lii%éETTﬁ?¥m 30 794,206 1,255,619
Total current assets MEEEBE 6,669,194 6,399,421
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings PRI REMEER 31 968,956 260,000
Other payables and accruals H A &5 3R R et B A 33 50,707 54,033
Due to the ultimate holding company Fgﬁﬁ%ﬁq LN jfT/\Iﬁ 12,204 5,207
Due to subsidiaries FE 1 BT /B8 2 R 3RIE 20 204,790 156,983
Total current liabilities mBAaER 1,236,657 476,223
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 5,432,537 5,923,198
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES BEERADAMR 12,923,766 12,916,391
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings ATERITREMEER 31 6,196,205 6,599,106
Total non-current liabilities ERE B EEE 6,196,205 6,599,106
Net assets BEEFE 6,727,561 6,317,285
EQUITY Ex
Issued capital B EITR’RA 35 186,451 181,301
Reserves B 37(b) 6,130,918 5,845,902
Proposed final dividend #R R B AR B 12 410,192 290,082
Total equity AR 6,727,561 6,317,285
LU Hua LIU Chong
BE e
Director Director
E EZE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 85 R 3R M

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Shenzhen Investment Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company
is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

—  Property development

—  Property investment

—  Property management

—  Provision of transportation services

- Manufacturing and sale of industrial and commercial products

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum
Yip Holdings”, &% (%) AR A 7)), which is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company of
the Company is FEXEEHBR A, which is a private company
established in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, certain buildings classified as property,
plant and equipment, derivative financial instruments and equity
investments, which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated
on consolidation in full.

FIERERAT 2012FFH

2.1

DRAEH
RIERERARB—RMRNEREIMKRLZER
BEERA -ARBZEMPERLNEENER
BB R ERHE T L8E -

FR AEETEZRETINES:
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- REEHRY
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BEERR ARAZEEERRRA/NEBEMA
ZIARB-RE(EE)BRQAE (DR%E (%
B)]) - ARAZRBERRBDRBNFEARILM
B ([FRE])RIIKZZZFAARB —REEEER
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mEEE
ARBzBBBRVEREESAMAE ([HE
GRS ) B2 BB BIMELR ([FEH
BIEEA]) (HEBERBEREMBREEL
BRGHERN([FESH LR RRE) BB
ARERRARBEARGOHMRE - BIRED
X 0BERNE BEARBZETET TES
BMIANBREREDRAAEBNEN WEHH
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LUETT (BT 2% MASHRENEAAER
BRETRE ESHEHERRI-

REREZEE
RAEVBRREBARAREMBRE (5 R
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FEDHKERSR (e AEEERSZERERR)
A AR UHEGRe ARESEHIEEL RS
Rl - SEARZELEZMAESRBEARNGS X5
AERKARERARKREBEREGES KRB BB
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 85 R 3R M

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the
non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value
of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes —
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets

2,1 BEE (F)

REREZEE (&)
—BEBARAZ 2 H KR EFRGEBNIFER
REaR o BN fE U 2R G By IR B AL A

—RMBARZMAEESEE (WARKEER
) TERERR S AR

fim AN 62 B 2K K8 — R P B 8 A o2 12 il g - Al EL AR
IFREROVEZWBARZEE (RIEEE) REE:
(I FEIERRAE 25 2 BR T (B K (i) A2 N R 8k 2
,\uﬁﬁx%ﬁﬁ REEROATBRREZARME  (ii)FT

B2 EMIEEZ AAE K ERERF EAE
FEEZB’E?YJ%% S AT A H Ath 2 T Wz %Wﬁ&
RZAEHELFTOET D EEBELREBEF
(@A) -

EMERRRBEBEEEED

REBEERARNFE Z B MR EREMTINEE
Rl BB MBS LR -

ERUBELRR HERHREEAEIRENL
EIRETA ORI BHERN-RE
BRI E S INE2E
EABZET
ERUBELRR HESSHRLRAEIRLH
E7RETA TA RE-HRLBAEY
11
EBeiEn HEB BRI S 25
EDHETA FERE WEREEEY
11
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 85 R 3R M

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKAS 12, the adoption of the revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred
tax for investment property measured at fair value and introduce
a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the basis that its
carrying amount will be recovered through sale. Furthermore, the
amendments incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int
21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using the
revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be measured on a
sale basis. The presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the basis that its
carrying amount will be recovered through sale has been rebutted
by the Group as the Group’s investment properties are held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Accordingly deferred tax has
been determined on the basis of recovery through use. The Group
has adopted this amendment retrospectively for the year ended
31 December 2012. Since all the investment properties of the
Group are held with a business model to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time rather than through sale, the presumption has been
rebutted. Consequently, the Group has continued to recognise the
deferred taxes on the basis that the value of investment properties is
recovered through use and there is no impact on the Group's results
of operations and financial position.

RIERERAT 2012FFH
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 85 R 3R M

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in the consolidated

financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments
HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance’

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities’

Fair Value Measurement®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income’

Employee Benefits®

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities’

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 20127

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 230 EMEMKRER BBV ERELEL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose information
about rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral
agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information
that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on
an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures are required for
all recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures
also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead
of classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall
classify financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For these FVO
liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that
is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair
value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair
value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have
been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 230 EMEMKRER BBV ERELEL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets continues to apply.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The
Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities including special purpose entities or structured entities. It
includes a new definition of control which is used to determine
which entities are consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise significant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled, compared
with the requirements in HKAS 27 and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It
also addresses the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based on the
preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS 10 is not expected to have
any impact on the currently held investments of the Group.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK(SIC)-
Int 13 Jointly-controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint arrangements with
joint control. It addresses only two forms of joint arrangements,
i.e., joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the option to
account for joint ventures using proportionate consolidation. Based
on the preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS 11 is not expected to
have any impact on the currently held investments of the Group.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities previously included
in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates.
It also introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 EMEMKRER BBV ERELEL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance in HKFRS 10
and provide further relief from full retrospective application of these
standards, limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative period. The
amendments clarify that retrospective adjustments are only required
if the consolidation conclusion as to which entities are controlled by
the Group is different between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-
Int 12 at the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10
is applied for the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures related to
unconsolidated structured entities, the amendments will remove the
requirement to present comparative information for periods before
HKFRS 12 is first applied.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December 2012 include a
definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity. Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments
were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to
HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The Group expects that these amendments will not have any
impact on the Group as the Company is not an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 10.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 as
a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27
(2011), HKAS 28 (2011), and the subsequent amendments to these
standards issued in July and December 2012 from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for
use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances
in which the Group is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively from 1 January 2013.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 EMEMKRER BBV ERELEL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented
in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or
loss at a future point in time (for example, net gain on hedge of
a net investment, exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain
on available-for-sale financial assets) would be presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified (for example, actuarial
gains and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land
and buildings). The amendments will affect presentation only and
have no impact on the financial position or performance. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range from
fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-wording. The
revised standard introduces significant changes in the accounting for
defined benefit pension plans including removing the choice to defer
the recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes include
modifications to the timing of recognition for termination benefits,
the classification of short-term employee benefits and disclosures of
defined benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011)
from 1 January 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2014.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The

Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. While

the adoption of some of the amendments may result in changes in

accounting policies, none of these amendments are expected to have

a significant financial impact on the Group. Those amendments that

are expected to have a significant impact on the Group's policies are

as follows:

(a)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must include
comparative information in the related notes to the financial
statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete set of financial
statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period must be presented when an entity changes its
accounting policies; makes retrospective restatements or makes
reclassifications, and that change has a material effect on the
statement of financial position. However, the related notes to
the opening statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period are not required to be presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies that
income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes. The
amendment removes existing income tax requirements from
HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply the requirements in
HKAS 12 to any income tax arising from distributions to equity
holders.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT EEHHEZBE

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power or issued share
capital or controls the composition of its board of directors; or over
which the Company has a contractual right to exercise a dominant
influence with respect to that entity’s financial and operating
policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled
entity.

The Group's investments in jointly-controlled entities are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio is different to the Group’s
equity interest, the share of post-acquisition results of the jointly-
controlled entities is determined based on the agreed profit sharing
ratio. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investments in the jointly-controlled
entities, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the
Group's investments in jointly-controlled entities.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in jointly-controlled entities
are treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not
less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates and is not individually tested for impairment.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in associates are treated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFTESHBERZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
construction contract assets, financial assets, investment properties,
goodwill and non-current assets/a disposal groups classified as held
for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFTESHBERZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill and
certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

FERMEERME (&)

28 EE < MR (E 8 H AU m SRR - RUE R
B TUARER - R EAEER At 2 RKRE
EREBDEBRAMRXFRERENRE MK
AREDRRBEEMEREERBEEREE
R E B\ 2 7T o BRIEBEAEMESIRR (RUL1E
AT REBEREZEGEEZRES R
SIRR)  MAPREBERE EELBRZ RERIZ
B E AR R B B AR R kR -

EEEHREHREEFEESIMEMBED ER
ZREBEAIENBFEERAITERD ZTR - K
HIRZ ST R - A& 5T 8E - (25 AR
JEEE T IR E B 2 fh T R E B - T & A
AR CEAE (REERBDEREEN) RER
BED EAERBEL ISR REEBEFEL
BRZEERRTMREBREZBERT ZEE
AREEE 2 REE (KB EMTE#H) -k
FEENSHETIR (RUERT - AR E R R R
EREZEGBEEZABETTBEIIER) - BRIR
BEEBRROETALEERR 2 RaRTD -

B
FETFIERT - A’ 77 18 3R 5 7K 5 B 1o BE st

(@ BEITAATRALHTRALTEBEZRIN
REKE

(i) HIAEEFZEGI KR ESE:
(i) HAREEAEMERNTE K

(i) SAEEHEFRARNEZEEEAR
R 8

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

97



98

Notes to Financial Statements

B 85 R 3R M

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

(iii

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFTESHBERZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)
Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
income statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits
is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation based
on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement
in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)
Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period.

Properties under construction or development for future use as
investment properties are classified as investment properties under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment properties under construction will be measured at cost
until such time as fair value can be determined or construction
is completed. The Group has concluded that the fair value of its
investment properties under construction cannot be measured
reliably as the properties are in the early stage of development at
the end of the reporting period, therefore, the Group’s investment
properties under construction continue to be measured at cost.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFTESHBERZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in
use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised
in the income statement.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Vehicle licences acquired by the Group are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 15 to 20 years.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes
in fair value presented as other income and gains and negative
net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in the income
statement. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”

below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4FTESHBERZ2BRE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them
in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify them.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
or held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets.
This evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option at designation,
as these instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement in other expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in the market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the income statement in other expenses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as “Other income”
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when
the financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables
and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-
maturity category is permitted only when the Group has the ability
and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4FTESHBERZ2BRE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBEZ2BRE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred
to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4FTESHBERZ2BRE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the income statement —
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the income statement.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the income statement if the
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4FTESHBERZ2BRE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and
borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification

of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, an amount due
to the immediate holding company and interest-bearing loans and

borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the income statement does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBEZ2BRE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. These
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option
pricing models or other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instrument, such as interest
rate swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk. These derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the income statement.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development
project is expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the
total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on the prevailing
market prices, on an individual property basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBEZ2BRE (£)
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from the sale of properties and industrial and
commercial products, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the properties and goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) income from the provision of transportation services, when the
transportation services have been rendered;

(d) services income, when the relevant services have been
rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBEZ2BRE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, an average capitalisation rate
of 7.28% (2011: 5.55%) has been applied to the expenditure on the
individual assets.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”),
further details of which are given in note 36 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by the management using the Black-
Scholes model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period. If the share options granted vest immediately, the Group
recognises the fair value in the period in which the options are
granted.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4FTESHBERZ2BRE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China participates
in the central pension scheme (the “CPS”) operated by the local
municipal government for all of its staff. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute 8% to 20% of their payroll costs to the CPS.
The contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on the settlement or transaction of monetary items are
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, associates
and jointly-controlled entities are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

EXREFTHERMEE (F)

Judgements H

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, ﬁAﬁﬁﬁ$E.A§fﬂZ”iﬂE¢"%@@Ef’ﬁﬁ%
management has made the following judgements, apart from those THE S R AR E RSN B RS RR
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the BRAZLBEZERAKN:

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income tax FrZ#

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition
primarily involves judgement regarding the future performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset
has been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated in
considering whether there is convincing evidence that it is probable
that some portions or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately
be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary differences,
tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax losses
can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
related financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and to the extent that there is sufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available within
the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and that the asset balance will be reduced and charged to
the income statement.

Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional Regulations of
the Public on 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the transfer of
real estate properties in Mainland China with effect from 1 January
1994 are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation
of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Land appreciation tax (Continued)

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT, which has been
included in income tax. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various Mainland China cities and the Group has not
finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises these liabilities based on management’s best estimates.
When the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will impact the
income tax and provisions of land appreciation taxes in the period in
which the determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangement that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under finance leases, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

FIERERAT 2012F 55

3.

EXREFTHERMEE (F)

H (&)
imﬁﬁﬁ(@)
AEEMBRANFBENBREYEERED

ﬁﬁff%ﬁlémj:iﬁigﬁiﬂaf)\ﬁﬁ BH) - AM FHERA
SRV T B LR E R BN ERER R
5 18] 30 2R 5 K [R) 1S [R) 0 765 14 B R 3t - 3 3 (B 7
Eit FREE L HEERABHARAEHER
%@T%Eﬁ%ﬁ¢#im?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiTﬁ

AEFEENEREZ REMGAERZETAE-
é%#$ﬂ2ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁzgﬁﬁ
RERE ZEZRBFTEEETRABRZIAE
i R s IR E TR B A

MEHNYRE - A EEHERHBA
AEEHERERENFASTLEAYEELY-
RER B B AR E IR 2 BE 2 IR R B MR 1 2 RR A
EHREMAULEAN DAL EZ LEDES
Rz BAR R K O -

REWEREFAYWFEZHR

AEERE - BYEETAUINEREDE LB
i H i 2 R - R EMETFEERNES K
EoEEXMERGZASE -Et AEEEE—
BYEEELRERER TEARMBBINRAE
BRAzZHEMERE-

BOMERFAIERIESRESEERE 5—
ﬁUWhﬁﬁiF B K R HE R ST A
WME% DHEEHEREERLD D 5
@‘JZIKEIE%H#&V“ Do RIFIER - s b
TREARHEE  BRER—NEBIEEE &
MERBEHREXTHRARR —BWEFIAR
B

ZEB R

RENDEHGTORERERBZERZERST
RAE—BYESBIRKENE-



Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 R AR M

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and properties under
development

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management on determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or properties under development. In general, the
Group considers its intention for holding the properties at the early
development stage of the related properties. However, in response
to the market demand to investment properties, the Group would
from time to time amend the corporate strategies on the Group's
properties portfolio. During the course of construction, the related
properties under construction are accounted for as properties under
development included in current assets if the properties are intended
for sale after their completion, whereas, the properties accounted for
as investment properties under construction included in non-current
assets if the properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the
properties held for sale are transferred to completed properties held
for sale while the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to completed investment properties.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
described below.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, management determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from (i) current prices in an
active market for properties of a different nature, condition or
location by reference to available market information; (ii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the dates of
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii) discounted cash
flow projections, based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease and other contracts,
and (where possible) by external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and condition, and
using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value include those related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate discount
rates, expected future market rents and future maintenance costs.
The carrying amount of completed investment properties as at 31
December 2012 was HK$9,132,939,000 (2011: HK$5,560,792,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services, and has six reportable
operating segments as follows:

(a) the property development segment engages in the development
of residential, industrial and commercial properties;

(b) the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial
and commercial properties for their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management
of both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the transportation services segment consists of the provision of
passenger transportation services, automobile maintenance and
other related services;

(e) the manufacturing segment engages in the manufacture and sale
of industrial and commercial products; and

(f) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the manufacture
and sale of aluminum alloy products and other businesses.

FIERERAT 2012F 55
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains from the
Group's financial instruments as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial instruments and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate
holding company, tax payable, an amount due to the immediate
holding company, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

4.

REIBER (#F)
EEEERERDELRRBTMZIRRS FHEE
REBEEBEM 2 KEEBE - DRRBADEER
7 J0s AT AT Ah - 2 5 B0 7 BN BR B AT AR 39
B A o PR AT AR B A TR AL E 2 R
AE N — Bz A A2 RS A BERA
BREWA AEESBRTANAABE RS  AKE
MERLEERILE NEEELAEA-

ERNELEHBEE BERMER ZRHIRS B
ERBEEEY ERREERARBEFEZRE
BRENMESRTAREMASEARERLA
AEENREBREEEE ROREEX T
A EEE-

ERTESRITA A ERTRAMEE  EMNK
AP A RIFOR - RN BIR A B A Bl
B OREEHAEEEREMADREREERA A
EENEREEEEEE WHOBEBEL T EHEIN
taE-

DEMHERERDESEZRE=TRGNER
RERNRTMEETRS -

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

123



Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 R AR M

31 December 2012
—E——F+A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4, REDPHEHR (&)
BE-E-C-F Property Property Property  Transportation
Year ended 31 December 2012 TZA=Zt-HLEE development investment  management services  Manufacturing Others Total
NERE NERE NXER BB RiE Hitr By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TER TER TER TR
Segment revenue: AEWE
Sales to customers BETEP 6,013,545 514,998 1,062,627 236,116 333,785 407,183 8,568,254
Intersegment sales PERHE - 6,412 3,640 - - 192,660 202,712
6,013,545 521,410 1,066,267 236,116 333,785 599,843 8,770,966
Reconciliation Es/:3
Elimination of intersegment sales HEAERHEE (202,712)
Revenue Wi 8,568,254
Segment results before increase
in fair value of investment RENEDAEEMAZ
properties PEEE 2,500,891 530,936 27,351 12,413 9,882 31,168 3,112,641
Increase in fair value of investment
properties REMEAREEM - 470,895 - - - - 470,895
Segment results after increase
in fair value of investment RENEDNAERMEZ
properties SERE 2,500,891 1,001,831 27,351 12,413 9,882 31,168 3,583,536
Reconciliation B3
Elimination of intersegment results ~ ##HABAEE (42,841)
Finance income BEKA 472,427
Dividend income and
unallocated gains REMAR K2 R 23,855
Gain on bargain purchases (note 38)  FRTER E 715 (fif+38) 200,586
Remeasurement gain on investment in 9% BB & #h E35f &
associates in step acquisitions BeRaRE e 39,188
Fair value gains of the financial
instruments, net SRIEZAABEHEFE 2,269
Corporate and other unallocated
expenses AR REMKSEER (97,670)
Finance costs BERA (479,549)
Profit before tax BRBLATE R 3,701,801
Segment assets AEEE 29,984,330 13,459,697 103,022 361,629 150,407 2,390,302 46,449,387
Reconciliation /3
Corporate and other
unallocated assets NEREMKABEE 7,942,620
Total assets BEE 54,392,007
Segment liabilities SEAE 6,137,842 988,033 276,902 268,310 39,363 1,269,637 8,980,087
Reconciliation 53
Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities AR REMKABAE 25,902,077
Total liabilities BRE 34,882,164
Other segment information: HnRER:
Depreciation & 26,318 7,901 9,342 35,252 3,841 21,497 104,151
Amortisation of vehicle licences RERREH - - - 6,332 - - 6,332
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments B iR EHES - - - - - 1,497 1,497
Share of profits and losses of
associates [EEBENREF RER 647,645 139,463 5,581 4,869 - 21,379 818,937
Share of profits and losses of
jointly-controlled entities EELRZHER T RER - - - - - 48,524 48,524
Investments in associates BENTRE 4,881,970 97,003 16,432 49,986 15,133 162,993 5,223,517
Investments in jointly-controlled
entities EREHEBRE 62,195 - - - - 55,929 118,124
Capital expenditure* BARYH* 7,863,542 2,426,525 10,496 58,225 6,208 1,021,264 11,386,260

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, properties under development and
completed properties held for sale including assets from the acquisition

of subsidiaries.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4, REPWER (E)

Property Property Property  Transportation
BE-Z—— development investment  management services  Manufacturing Others Total
Year ended 31 December 2011 TZA=T-BIEEE HEZ:S NERE NEER EHRH R £ pt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER THEL FEL FEL TAL TER
Segment revenue: AEWE
Sales to customers HETEP 5,053,060 446,782 899,707 240,678 311,489 368,868 7,320,584
Intersegment sales PEREE 49,890 5,756 6,441 - - 86,716 148,803
5,102,950 452,538 906,148 240,678 311,489 455,584 7,469,387
Reconciliation Es/:3
Elimination of intersegment sales HENBREE (148,803)
Revenue Wi 7,320,584
Segment results before increase
in fair value of investment REVEAREEMA L
properties PRREE 1,808,821 479,356 19,306 13,525 12,781 214,616 2,548,405
Increase in fair value of investment
properties RENFAREEN - 311,316 - - - - 311,316
Segment results after increase
in fair value of investment RENEAAEEMEZ
properties FEER 1,808,821 790,672 19,306 13,525 12,781 214,616 2,859,721
Reconciliation /3
Elimination of intersegment results ¥/ ##5 BHEE (75,124)
Finance income BIBRA 369,333
Dividend income and
unallocated gains BEMARFK S B MaE 22,038
Fair value gains of the financial
instruments, net SRIEZAABREER 64,784
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses RAREBADALER (147,897)
Finance costs BERAK (200,562)
Profit before tax BR AT A 2,892,293
Segment assets PEEE 26,314,617 7,366,521 137,780 360,719 208,446 969,664 35,357,747
Reconciliation Ea/:3
Corporate and other
unallocated assets AAREMKSEEE 6,182,877
Total assets BEE 41,540,624
Segment liabilities FEEE 3,735,697 464,483 297,681 264,360 94,779 198,225 5,055,225
Reconciliation /3
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities RAREHARARAR 19,472,462
Total liabilities BRME 24,527,687
Other segment information: HnRER:
Depreciation bk | 15,715 9,805 8,726 34,833 7,649 12,662 89,390
Amortisation of vehicle licences B ERE - = = 6,446 = = 6,446
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments B TR EHES - - - - - 1,546 1,546
Impairment loss of an investment —HBERAREL
in an associate REER 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Share of profits and losses of
associates EEBERRRTRER 441,236 134,046 5,177 4,706 = 24,410 609,575
Share of profits and losses of
jointly-controlled entities b AREHERETRER - - - - - 185,265 185,265
Investments in associates BENTRE 4,624,886 115,090 15,013 47,129 15,133 458,830 5,076,081
Investment in jointly-controlled
entities AREHERKE 61,695 - - - - 369,171 430,866
Capital expenditure BRLH 8,140,824 35,207 18,023 12,570 8,577 13,337 8,228,538

As the Group generates substantially all of its revenues from
customers domiciled in the PRC, no geographical information is

presented.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W@ HMBRARTE

Wk BB SR AR S 28 EREHEDE .
HMERTIEERFERE HEUA EREYK
A BEBAREMBUA -

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents proceeds
from the sale of properties, commercial and industrial goods, rental
income, management fee income, income from transportation and
others.

Yoz A ARFIG 2 HHMT

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Revenue Wz
Sale of properties HEME 6,013,545 5,053,060
Gross management fee income EEBWALRE 1,062,627 899,707
Gross rental income from investment
properties REWMEHS WAL 514,998 446,782
Sale of commercial and industrial goods HERELRIEXEM 333,785 311,489
Income from transportation EilA 236,116 240,678
Others HAth 407,183 368,868
8,568,254 7,320,584
Other income Heplr A
Bank interest income RITH B IRA 93,601 67,860
Interest income from: ATRIRZHBWA -
Held-to-maturity investment FAEEIHEE 39,827 48,374
A jointly-controlled entity — e A 82 198,235 119,389
Associates iR/ 17,824 5,848
A non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary —HEB AR 2 — R IEERA R - 7,432
Finance income from independent third parties R B 2 =75 2 B WA 122,940 120,430
Others Hith 86,944 92,461
559,371 461,794
Gains &
Gain on disposal of a held-for-trading
investment HE—EREEEREZHNEG 4,779 =
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment HEME - BERREEE ZH5 3,533 1,395
Gain on bargain purchases (note 38) BB B A1 (M15E38) 200,586 -
Remeasurement gain on investment DTEREHTENGTERE NG
in associates in step acquisitions &z W 39,188 -
Others Hity 5,965 589
254,051 1,984
Other income and gains H b WA R A1 813,422 463,778
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BR Bt Al 2 A
AEE 2 BRBARFEMG GHA) TS HEEK

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

EE:

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B =E THET THET
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 3,912,150 3,207,965
Cost of services provided TR AR 5 AR AR 971,553 738,623
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2 AT B 5,100 4,650
Depreciation e 14 104,151 89,390
Impairment of trade receivables JFE U Bk FORL B 27 3,758 1,632
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables & U AR 5 (B # 2] 27 9,111) (3,356)
Impairment of other receivables H & W R IRRUE 14,971 -
Impairment loss of an investment in —HBERFREZ
an associate A E B - 200,000
Direct operating expenses (including WHREMEZ
repairs and maintenance) arising on HELEXH
rental-earning investment properties (BREHERRE) 68,397 73,027
Minimum lease payments under operating Tl RIEF 2 L& HE
leases in respect of land and buildings REE DR 8,358 11,968
Amortisation of vehicle licences VT EE 8 AR g 15 6,332 6,446
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments TEAT £ 4 70 & FRIAHE 8K 16 1,497 1,546
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERMHAX (TR
directors’ and chief executive's BEERESTTBRAEME
remuneration, note 8): MEEE8) -
Wages and salaries ITERHE 792,138 713,937
Equity-settled share option expense PABR AR 52+ 2 B A% #E ) =2 12,683 19,926
Pension scheme contributions RIRSETEIHR 104,199 99,663
Less: Amount capitalised D N e (31,260) (31,40T)
Net: Pension scheme contributions BN EIHFFE 72,939 68,262
877,760 802,125
Foreign exchange differences, net INPE = B IFRE (3,085) 8,727
REWHEHSWABEE
Rental income on investment properties &8 X 168,397,000/ 7T
less direct operating expenses of —ZF——%:73,027,000
HK$68,397,000 (2011: HK$73,027,000) 7IT) (446,601) (373,755)
Gain on disposal of a held-for-trading
investment HEREEBRREZFE 4,779) -
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BWEREKHFHEEAZ
plant and equipment M (3,533) (1,395)
Gain on bargain purchases REBENSG 38 (200,586) -
Remeasurement gain on investment in DEEREHHER B
associates in step acquisitions BNRRE 2 WS (39,188) -
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKARZATAT :
Group
rEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on: MELZH:
Bank loans RITE R 1,102,414 672,215
Other borrowings HifEE 81,366 -
Total interest expense on financial liabilities WIFBEBERRANEFHEZ
not at fair value through profit or loss TRBEZMNEMXERE 1,183,780 672,215
Less: Interest capitalised W A BB AR (721,942) (538,970)
461,838 133,245
Other finance costs H {th & A 17,711 67,317
479,549 200,562
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERBESTHAEME
REMUNERATION
Directors” and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed AREERE FHRAUNRBEERARIEFE161EHE
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong ZEERERITBRAEBMEMT :
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
rEHE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fees e 1,520 1,220
Other emoluments: H 2 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He FUREYAN R 3,854 4,400
Equity-settled share option expense VARR AR 32 A~ 2 B S 7 2 1,674 4,820
Pension scheme contributions RIS ET B 1,056 570
6,584 9,790
8,104 11,010
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year were as follows:

8. EERBEITRAEME (&)
@ BIFRTES
AEEENBUENTESREMT :

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expense Total
UBRAZNZ

ik B IR R R X B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
THTT TBTT TET

2012 —e_——fF
Wong Po Yan =IRM 380 - 380
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RE5 330 - 330
Li Wai Keung FER 380 - 380
1,090 - 1,090

2011 —2——fF
Wong Po Yan =IRM 330 - 330
Wu Wai Chung, Michael REE 280 = 280
Li Wai Keung ZF{E58 330 = 330
940 - 940

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2011: Nil).

AFEEWEAMENBIFATESTZHE
TE——FE)o
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

8. EXEREBEITHRAEME (&)

(b) BTESRIITES

Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
H& RER UREAXNZ RikE
we BURAE BRERX STEIHR BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Fitn FE% Fb % Fit Fb %
2012 —B-=F
Executive directors: WiTES:
Guo Limin* IR - 401 (612) 163 48)
Lu Hua EES - 1,180 762 282 2,224
Mou Yong = ::] - 835 762 226 1,823
Liu Chong S - 1,253 762 341 2,356
Wang Minyuan** R - 185 - 44 229
- 3,854 1,674 1,056 6,584
Non-executive directors: FRHTES:
Wu Jiesi HER 330 - - - 330
Liu Biao*** B - - - - -
Huang Yige" 518 100 - - - 100
430 - - - 430
430 3,854 1,674 1,056 7,014
*  Guo Limin resigned as an executive director on 24 April 2012 and * BYRR-ZT—_FMNA-THEBRERTE
his share options were lapsed or forfeited after three months from EREBREEAHERERRE=AABEX
his resignation date. R e
**  Wang Minyuan was appointed as an executive director on 28 o EFRER_E-——FAA-T/N\BEZELRH
September 2012. TES-
% Liu Biao resigned as a non-executive director on 27 March 2012. HE BIER T ——F=A -+ AREERTE
-
A BRRZE—_F=ZA-T+tREEEARE

A Huang Yige was appointed as a non-executive director on 27 March
2012.
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (Continued)

8. EXEREBEITHRAEME (&)

(b) BITESRIBITES (F)

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

Equity-settled
share option

Pension
scheme

Fees in kind expense  contributions Total
52l URAZMz EAR®
e RkEDFz BRERZ HEES k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHIT THT FHAT
2011 —E-—-F
Executive directors: HOESH:
Guo Limin BUR = 1,254 1,571 157 2,982
Xu Ruxin Rz = 552 746 85 1,383
Lu Hua EES = 653 501 42 1,196
Mou Yong 27 = 790 1,001 119 1,910
Liu Chong EES - 1,151 1,001 167 2,319
= 4,400 4,820 570 9,790
Non-executive directors: FERITES:
Wu Jiesi RER 280 = = = 280
Liu Biao 2z - - - - -
280 = = = 280
280 4,400 4,820 570 10,070
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2011: three directors), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining three (2011: two) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor the chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

hEREHEER
AEEZAEBRRHEERERE (ZE——%F:
=R)EE ZFEEZHEFBEN LXHEES -
BRTI=F(ZF——F MB)FARAEERK
BITRABZESHEENAFEZH 2B
T

Group

AEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUEREYH = 4,077 2,432
Equity-settled share option expense VARR 7R 52 A~ 2 B S 4 B 52 1,814 2,342
Pension scheme contributions RIS EFEIE R 499 422
6,390 5,196

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HWeBATHBEZFEERIFRSTRAEZ
SHEEHANT:

gy

Number of employees

EBE#E
2012 2011
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T 22,500,000 7T 3 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T 23,000,000 7T - 1
3 2

In prior years, share options were granted to three non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 36 to the financial statements. The fair value of
these options, which has been recognised in the income statement
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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10. INCOME TAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year (2011: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the provinces in which the Group operates.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% on their
respective taxable income during the year.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation
of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures. LAT of HK$461,419,000 is charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year (2011: HK$478,451,000).

10. FR &8

AEBZEENESHERBEEARBBEE 2
TR R FIZ16.5% (ZFE——F:16.5%) 2
MEFE-FRN AEBEWEERBELTAER
FmAl A EEL B SN EHEE(Z2——
FofE)o

o K B R Bt B 0 2 BURR B R B
BARZRITBEE

RIBAEBASEE FR PENBRRARSE
FERBLRAIREE TR R 25 %M B EPRSH ([
ESST AP

R B £ 3 3 (E B4R+ 3 (B 2 30% £ 60% R #E i
YU T ERD I E Y S RIER B IE i
ERAESRE BERKAREMEZERIE 2]
MBAX -AFE BEGERERPHR 318
EF1461,419,000/8 7T (—Z——4 : 478,451,000
EIT) °

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Group: REE

Current — Mainland China BVEA — rp B K e 546,937 555,531
LAT in Mainland China AR B OK B £ M 3B E R 461,419 478,451

Deferred Mainland China corporate iR AE B KB 1R AT AS A
income tax (note 34) (Fi5E34) 133,205 42,552
Total tax charge for the year REEHIAX HIEE 1,141,561 1,076,534
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

11.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory income tax rate to the tax expense at the Group’s

10. FRGEH (&

N CPTE A LR B R G E 2 B A BB A & A
ZHERX ERAEEARFEE BB RAE 2B

effective income tax rate for the year, and a reconciliation of the TR 2 2 AR S B R (A E B R ) B A
applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, R HER:
are as follows:
2012 2011
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
FHET TET

Profit before tax B 15t Al A 3,701,801 2,892,293
Tax at the statutory tax rate in R B KPEATER Rt & 2

Mainland China BiIE 925,450 25.0 723,073 25.0
Lower tax rates for specific

provinces or enacted by local % E & M kit E BEHIEZ

authorities BRT = 18,442 0.5 (43,166) (1.5)
Profits and losses attributable to

associates B 28 A B JEE s T RS 18 (204,734) (5.5) (129,000) (4.5)
Profits and losses attributable to 2k [F] 22 & & 88 & {5 % 5 2 /&5

jointly-controlled entities 18 (12,131) 0.3) (44,464) (1.5)
Income not subject to tax BAEZHUA (64,878) (1.8) - -
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 HIAEE 23,538 0.6 3,883 0.1
Tax losses utilised BERAZRIBEER (38,524) (1.0) (903) (0.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax >8] B & B 40 2 52 58,996 1.6 118,229 4.1
Effect of withholding tax on

distributable profits of the MAEE 2 A B E AR

Group’s PRC subsidiaries ﬁTé&ﬂEﬁé%UZz%E?Di&%ﬁ%? 93,302 2.5 78,368 2.7
LAT T IR E 461,419 12.4 478,451 16.5
Tax effect of LAT THIEER BB E (119,319) (3.2) (107,937) (3.7)
Tax charge at the Group’s BRAEEA MR ENGZ

effective rate T8 1,141,561 30.8 1,076,534 37.2
The share of taxes attributable to associates and jointly-controlled DEBMELCARARZEHNERBRNED B A
entities amounting to HK$933,546,000 (2011: HK$723,512,000) 933,546,000/ 7t (=& — — % :723,512,000/8
and HK$16,038,000 (2011: HK$72,277,000), respectively, are 7T) %16,038,0005% 7T (=& — — 4 : 72,277,000

and “Share

of profits and losses of jointly-controlled entities” on the face of the

included in “Share of profits and losses of associates”

consolidated income statement.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 December 2012 includes a loss of HK$259,084,000
(2011: HK$796,546,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
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12.

13.

DIVIDENDS 12. R B
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET TET
Interim — HK7 cents (2011: HK7 cents) RHERR RS - F R E EAR7EAL
per ordinary share (ZZ——%F:7/8() 253,822 247,798
Adjustment to prior year’s final dividend NEFEREKRE Z AR - 238
Proposed final dividend of HK11 cents
(2011: final dividend of HK8 cents) Bk AR HA RS B &A% @Ak 1178
per ordinary share (ZZ2——F: REPKS8E) 410,192 290,082
664,014 538,118

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
3,640,042,538 (2011: 3,551,123,432) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 December 2011 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the year ended 31 December 2012 in respect
of a dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts
presented.

13.

RE KR AR SRR AR R AR E IR
BERE LHER HAEE-

BAREERESSEAEABRLGESRERN

EREABANESBENEZBEAREBREREAE
AEEFARRNRERNBETETBRMETS
£73,640,042,538/% (=& ——4:3,551,123,432

B E -

HE_T——F+-_A=+—BLEFETRES
BNeEDRERAEBRESRHE ARBFEA
HAFHE - B IRA H 2 BB NEF R
FRABEBTEBRREE (AAUAESRELRR
) ARBRBR B B ERRAR Tk
ER R EEREERERTH BB IR

MR EARTTEZBREL A2 2 BREREF
CHAEREBYE MUBRBE_T——F
TZAZ+T—HLEFERZ2INZEREREZNE
REHEEHE-
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO B.BAREERERFEARGERAR
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (#%&)
(Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are BREAREERN IR T SEAHE:
based on:
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
TERT TET
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted ~ MG EFRERREERF] 2 &R
earnings per share calculations Al BB EDT A ARG 2,156,069 1,522,078

Number of shares

RGEE
2012 2011

Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year used in the basic R ESRERETZ

earnings per share calculation FANE T T @R MNE TS 3,640,042,538 3,551,123,432
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of —#5& & £

ordinary shares: B NRE IS8

Share options HE A - 418,557

3,640,042,538  3,551,541,989
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% BERRE

Group rE
Land and Land and
buildings in ~ buildings in
Hong Kong Mainland
under  China under Furniture,
medium medium Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
term leases  term leases  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
AL
REEREZ BE KA 2B
THRET NE£E ET AE HERRE ERIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEn TR TiEn T TR TR TEx
31 December 2012 ZB-ZE+ZAZt-H
R-Z2——F
At 31 December 2011 and TZR=t-HR
at 1 January 2012: A=%-—%-8-AH
Cost or valuation KA EE 3,083 443,719 101,555 98,993 285,229 169,053 33,188 1,134,820
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (107) (91,523) (58,991) (74,048) (181,300) (98,691) - (504,660)
Net carrying amount BEHE 2,976 352,196 42,564 24,945 103,929 70,362 33,188 630,160
At 1 January 2012, net of R-E-—%-f-H"
accumulated depreciation TNREHTE 2,976 352,196 42,564 24,945 103,929 70,362 33,188 630,160
Additions KB - 1,696 04,653 31,542 70,738 9,318 - 177,947
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 38) NG RED) - 1,304,376 - 31,372 1,439 - - 1,337,187
Transfer from properties under ~ EEAFERNE
development (note 18) (BizE18) - 368,045 - - - 15,501 - 383,546
Disposals HE - (2,487) (4,921) (2,258) (3,192) (323) - (13,181)
Depreciation provided during
the year REERERRE - (13,294) (22,466) (13,026) (44,652) (10,713) - (104,151)
Exchange realignment B 25 1,798 103 52 298 468 - 2,744
RZB-ZF
At 31 December 2012, net of +=A=t+-8"
accumulated depreciation BB RHITE 3,001 2,012,330 79,933 72,627 128,560 84,613 33,188 2,414,252
R=Z-—=4&
At 31 December 2012 +-ZA=1-AR:
Cost or valuation KA E 3,109 2,218,457 145,539 214,888 325,790 192,457 33,188 3,133,428
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (108) (206,127) (65,606) (142,261) (197,230) (107,844) - (719,176)
Net carrying amount RHFE 3,001 2,012,330 79,933 72,627 128,560 84,613 33,188 2,414,252
Analysis of cost or valuation: RAFHEL
At cost KA 1,293 2,043,097 145,539 214,888 325,790 192,457 33,188 2,956,252
At valuation fhfE 1,816 175,360 - - - - - 177,176
3,109 2,218,457 145,539 214,888 325,790 192,457 33,188 3,133,428
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14. ¥ BMELEZE(£Z)

Group (Continued) REE (&)
Land and Land and
buildingsin ~ buildings in
Hong Kong Mainland
under  China under Furniture,
medium medium Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
term leases term leases  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
A ETE 4
DRERY  RRERE
RERREZ  BEZLH BE Fi %8
T RET kT nEKE FE] RE  HERRE ERIR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THAL THET TR THAT TATL TAL
31 December 2011 ~2--£+-A=t-H
R-Z-T£
At 31 December 2010 and TZA=T-HR
at 1 January 2011: W-_F-——%-F—-H:
Cost or valuation WA E 2,939 424,628 69,386 86,424 287,101 156,600 32,510 1,059,588
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (102) (77,522) (41,707) (63,181) (163,296) (84,902) = (430,710
Net carrying amount BEFE 2,837 347,106 27,679 23,243 123,805 71,698 32,510 628,878
At 1 January 2011, net of R-E——%—-f-H"
accumulated depreciation AR 2 ITE 2,837 347,106 27,679 23,243 123,805 71,698 32,510 628,878
Additions KB - 200 29,222 12,373 22,506 6,366 - 70,667
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RHEAR - 171 35 7 - - - 213
Reclassification ENDE - - - 481 - - (481) -
Disposals i - - - (504) (4,357) (303) - (5,164)
Depreciation provided during
the year REEHERE - (8,737) (15,481) (11,513) (42,887) (10,772) - (89,390)
Exchange realignment EH AR 139 13,456 1,109 858 4,862 3,373 1,159 24,956
R-Z2——F
At 31 December 2011, net of +-A=1+-R"
accumulated depreciation BNRZGE 2,976 352,196 42,564 24,945 103,929 70,362 33,168 630,160
RZF——F
At 31 December 2011: TZA=+-8:
Cost or valuation KA fEME 3,083 443,719 101,555 98,993 285,229 169,053 33,188 1,134,820
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (107) (91,523) (58,991) (74,048) (181,300) (98,691) - (504,660)
Net carrying amount RE#E 2,976 352,196 42,564 24,945 103,929 70,362 33,188 630,160
Analysis of cost or valuation: RAFHEL
At cost KA 1,282 269,769 101,555 98,993 285,229 169,053 33,188 959,069
At valuation fhiE 1,801 173,950 - - - - - 175,751
3,083 443,719 101,555 98,993 285,229 169,053 33,188 1,134,820
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 4. YE - BERRE(£)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 December
2006 by Greater China Appraisal Ltd., an independent firm of
professionally qualified property valuers. The land and buildings
were revalued at their open market values based on their existing
use.

Had the land and buildings been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount would have been
approximately HK$67,733,000 (2011: HK$72,530,000).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has not yet obtained the
ownership certificates in respect of the buildings with a net book
value of HK$351,862,000 (2011: HK$53,508,000).

At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s land and buildings
in Mainland China with a net book value of approximately
HK$1,205,866,000 (2011: HK$4,742,000) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(a)(i)).

AEEZ T REFER-_ZERFT_A=+—
PHBYEXAERMEGLEMEEFEEGRA
AETEMA - T EEFHREBEARTEELER
HBE 2 BgETERh-

Bt RIEFIRELK AR BTITEY R H
IEEES S 5467,733,0008 T (28— —4:
72,530,000/ 7T ) °

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H AEBHKRR
B ER M F(E A351,862,0008 T (— T ——4:
53,508,000/ 70 ) ZIEF 2 FHEE -

R-B—=—F+-A=+—HB A&EBETE
HFE 4 41,205,866,000/8 T ( =& — — 4 :
4,742,000 70 ) 2R B KEREG 2 T REF
DEREAREBMERRITER Z ER (T
31@)(0)) °

Furniture and Motor
Company /N fixtures vehicles Total
BAREE At 4%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH7 FHT FHT
31 December 2012 —E2--—%+=-A=+—-8
At 1 January 2012, net of RZE——F—H—8H"
accumulated depreciation KB RET T E 113 1,389 1,502
Additions NE 41 - 41
Depreciation provided during the year NE G E R 43) (531) (574)
R-T——F
At 31 December 2012, net of +=—A=+—81"
accumulated depreciation KR RSINE 111 858 969
R-E——%F
At 31 December 2012: +TZA=+—H:
Cost AR 1,334 4,324 5,658
Accumulated depreciation 2EtiE (1,223) (3,466) (4,689)
Net carrying amount REHE 111 858 969
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. 9% BERRKE (&)
Furniture Motor
Company EN/NG) and fixtures vehicles Total
RAREE HE LE
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FHT FHT FHT
31 December 2011 —E——ft+=ZA=+—H
At 1 January 2011, net of RZE——F—H—81"
accumulated depreciation Sk R E 135 2,105 2,240
Additions NE 53 = 53
Depreciation provided during the year ARG EH7 & &5 (75) (716) (791)
RZE——F
At 31 December 2011, net of +=—A=+—81"
accumulated depreciation Lk R E 113 1,389 1,502
R-F——%
At 31 December 2011: T=H=H—Ak
Cost AR 1,293 4,324 5,617
Accumulated depreciation 2itine (1,180) (2,935) (4,115)
Net carrying amount REFE 113 1,389 1,502
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
HK$'000

Group rEH THET
Vehicle licences VRE R AR
31 December 2012 —E-——+=A=+—-8H
Cost at 1 January 2012, net of RZE——F—H—HZKA"

accumulated amortisation KPR REt#ESH 81,372
Addition = 311
Amortisation provided during the year REEEEHE R (6,332)
Exchange realignment M 5 3R B 635
At 31 December 2012 RZT——F+=-A=+—H 75,986
At 31 December 2012: R-TE——F+-_A=+—8:

Cost AR 139,272

Accumulated amortisation 258 (63,286)

Net carrying amount FRmEFE 75,986
31 December 2011 —E-——H+=ZH=+-—H
Cost at 1 January 2011, net of R-E——F—F—BZHKA

accumulated amortisation LR RAT 8 84,305
Addition NE 345
Amortisation provided during the year RNEZHHEE (6,446)
Exchange realignment b 5 SR B 3,168
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=ZA=+—H 81,372
At 31 December 2011: R—E—F+=-_A=+—8:

Cost B 7R 137,779

Accumulated amortisation BT (56,407)

Net carrying amount FREDFE 81,372
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. A LA ERE
Group
REME
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET TET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEKHEE 50,617 31,626
Transfer from properties under development
(note 18) HEERRTWE (ME18) 1,031 18,330
Recognised during the year FAER (1,497) (1,546)
Exchange realignment M 5 A B 408 2,207
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZR=+—BZKRHEE 50,559 50,617
Current portion included in prepayments, SPATERRIA 5T & R
deposits and other receivables H {th jE W 5008 2 BNER SR & (1,514) (1,754)
Non-current portion FEBD EA Ef 5 49,045 48,863

The leasehold lands are held under medium term leases and is

situated in Mainland China.
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17. GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$000
Group rEH THET
Cost at 1 January 2011 RZTE——F—-—H—HZKAR 322,625
Exchange realignment [ H &% 79
RZZE——F+ZRA=+—H2
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2011 B % B T (B 322,704
At 31 December 2011: R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8:
Cost DEN 322,704
Accumulated impairment ZERE -
Net carrying amount FRmEFE 322,704
Cost at 1 January 2012 RZE——F—A—HZKR 322,704
Exchange realignment ME i SH B 40
R-B—-F+-_HA=t—RAZ
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2012 B K BR T B 322,744
At 31 December 2012: R-E——F+-A=+—8:
Cost BN 322,744
Accumulated impairment ZERE -
Net carrying amount FREDFE 322,744

Impairment testing of goodwill

AERENR

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of interests in subsidiaries
has been allocated to the following cash-generating units, for
impairment testing:

e Property development cash-generating unit
e Property investment cash-generating unit

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units have been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The key assumptions adopted on
growth rates and discount rates used in the value-in-use calculations
are based on management best estimates. The growth rate of 2%
(2011: 2%) is determined by considering both internal and external
factors relating to the relevant segments. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 12% (2011: 12%).

REEMB AR ZESMEEZAECOEET
5 & EABAETRERH

s MEERRLELEM

s MERERSELEBM

REEABEM A RESECIRBESHEEA
EitEs AFHRANKESEFE AR S RETERG
HFEREEET FABEAERMERER
MR EHA T ZREIDIBREEEE 2 & EM
MEBE - BEEK2% (ZT——F :12%) IEEBH
HESBEZRIBARERET -ReREEANEAR
2B R B12% (ZE——F:12%) °
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17.

18.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of goodwill is based
would not cause the carrying amounts of goodwill, to exceed its

recoverable amounts.

17. 58 (&)

BEBRENE(F)

EEERGE NEHET KOS EMKEZETE
BREBEMSEBAEED TS5 HEHEER
EEBEEA N @S E-

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. BRI
Group
REME
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$"000
FHB FiET
Land in Mainland China held under medium AR HAF AR R BIRBERE A 2 + i
term leases, at cost: TR
At beginning of year F1 10,575,799 8,170,836
Additions NE 1,855,414 2,596,629
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) W BB B A 7] (MI3E38) 88,949 28,406
Transfer to completed properties
held for sale ERERESEZEERME (1,615,258) (612,002)
Transfer to investment properties (note 19) EREILEYE ([HE19) (58,193) —
Transfer to prepaid land lease payments R E A T A S RIE
(note 16) (FizE16) (1,031) (18,330)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 78 B 87,486 410,260
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 10,933,166 10,575,799
Development expenditure, at cost: BB ST HL - RO
At beginning of year F4) 4,535,953 2,642,926
Additions NE 5,094,250 5,513,120
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) W BE BT B8 A ) (P =E38) 352,780 =
Transfer to completed properties
held for sale BRERETEZSENDE (4,840,860) (3,737,756)
Transfer to investment properties (note 19) BEREREME (M:119) (3,807) =
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREYE BEREE
(note 14) (PFif7E14) (383,546) -
Exchange realignment bEE 3L 8 35,937 117,663
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—8 4,790,707 4,535,953
15,723,873 15,111,752

FIERERAT 2012F 55



Notes to Financial Statements

B 85 R 3R M

31 December 2012
—E——F+-H=+—H

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 18. BREAPYE (&)
Group
REME
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET TET
Properties under development
expected to be recovered: T8 B AT Uy 3] 3% Fr o ) 2F
Within one year —FR 5,437,133 4,110,381
After more than one year HBE—F’ 10,286,740 11,001,371
15,723,873 15,111,752
Properties under development included interest expense of BERADEEHEZE T ——F+-A=+—H
HK$706,010,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012 that was IFFEEEERBEERNLZFIEF 706,010,000
incurred and capitalised. BT e
As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s properties under development RZZE-——F+ZA=+—H AEEZK
with a net book value of approximately HK$1,498,849,000 (2011: % (E491,498,849,0008 T (=T ——&F:
HK$1,585,366,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to 1,585,366,000/8 70) 2 ERAYEE BIEAEE
the Group (note 31(a)(ii)). BERRITERER (HIFE31@)G60))
As at 31 December 2012, the application for certificates of land RZZE——F+-RA=+—B RKEFEARK
use rights in Mainland China held under medium term leases with a 1,537,775,0007C (#8557 431,912,838,0007% 7T )
net book value of RMB1,537,775,000 (equivalent to approximately —ZE——%:512,648,0008 ) Z LA AR
HK$1,912,838,000) (2011: HK$512,648,000) was still in progress. REIRBERA 2 LI EAEZ REINEETH -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

19. REWE

Group
rEH
2012 2011
Investment
Completed properties Completed
investment under investment
properties  construction properties
at fair value at cost Total at fair value
ROAE BEA BRARME
L1):974 1) 374 1)
=534 EEH BIEK
REME REWMF At REWMZ
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THERT THERT FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZKHEE 5,560,792 - 5,560,792 4,902,151
Additions NE 190,848 15,400 206,248 47,764
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 38) Wbt B A A (BT E38) 2,149,199 - 2,149,199 -
Transfer from property under
development (note 18) EREERPYE (K:18) - 62,000 62,000 -
Net gain from a fair value
adjustment RABEHBZEH 470,895 - 470,895 311,316
Reclassified from completed BREREZEEK
properties held for sale MESHHE 711,794 - 711,794 52,742
Exchange realignment BEE 3, 3 B 49,411 - 49,411 246,819
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ ZA=+—HZKHE 9,132,939 77,400 9,210,339 5,560,792

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China
and are held under medium term leases.

The Group’s completed investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2012 by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified property valuers, at approximately
HK$9,132,939,000 on an open market, existing use basis. The
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 39(i)
to the financial statements. The net surplus arising on the revaluation
has been credited to the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties under construction included interest expense
of HK$15,932,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012 that was
incurred and capitalised.

The Group’s investment properties under construction are measured
at cost until such time as fair value can be determined reliably
or construction is completed. The Group has concluded that the
fair value of its investment properties under construction cannot
be measured reliably as the properties are in the early stage of
development at the end of the reporting period and are therefore
measured at cost in the consolidated statement of financial position.

FIERERAT 2012FFH

REE 2 BEWEM TP BAREE WA HELY
KB

AEBZEENREMEER_T—=—F+=A
=+ BEBUEESCEARYEMEBEMEETE
BERBRARKEAFAMBEMRAZEESEHA
#99,132,939,0007 7T < % & ¥ 3 LAAS & AH 49 1 A8
FTE=F ARE—PHEFBIHNI B REK M
FE39() c B BBMFEEFARE SRS -

EFERREYEBREHE _T——F+_A8
=t BUEFEEREELEREEANZAERAE
15,932,000/ 7t °

REBZERTREVEDNRAAAE BEER
AREERAEHEEREEEZRABL -ARZED
ENEZROE AEERAEERTRENE
ZRARERBERRIRGER S E Bz
EWMENRE I BIRRRPIREAGE -
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19.

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment
properties of the Group with a net carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,620,892,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$752,979,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant
certificates.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s investment property with
a net book value of approximately HK$4,614,496,000 (2011:
HK$694,920,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 31(a)(iii)).

19. REWME (&)

R=ZF—=—F+=-_A=+—HBAEEER@FELN
/$2,620,892,000/8 7T (== ——4: 752,979,000
BIT) 2B TIREME M AR EREABEfEES

WER AEBEDEREEEREZE 2 FE-

RZE—ZF+TZA=+—RB AEEEHRRK

H/EE%4,614,496,0008 L (=& — —F:

694,920,000 7T ) Z 1 BV EIE B RSB FTER

TERZER (HEE31@)(G0)) °

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. B R BRE
Company
ENYN
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAETT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETIRG R A 5,988,792 5,427,660
Due from subsidiaries* JE U B B8 2 A ZRIE 1,119,259 1,227,918
Capital contribution in respect of

employee share-based compensation 12 B LAR 19 /R B 2 RN 3R 20,957 13,496
7,129,008 6,669,074
Impairment** AR (5,000) (43,635)
7,124,008 6,625,439

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$949,546,000 (2011: HK$1,057,916,000) are interest-free, while the
remaining balance of HK$169,713,000 (2011: HK$170,002,000) bears
interest at rates ranging from 5% to 6.31% (2011: 5% to 6.31%) per
annum.

**  An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments with
carrying amounts of HK$5,000,000 (before deducting the impairment
loss).

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the
Company’s current assets and current liabilities are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable on demand. The carrying amounts
of amounts due from and to subsidiaries approximate to their fair
values.

* ERHBARREAEEARTEETEER E
U B BB A &) 5K T8 949,546,000%8 7T (=T — —4F:
1,057,916,000/ 7T ) A% 2 - £2%8169,713,000% T
(ZZF——%:170,002,000/ T IR F N F5EZE
6.31E (ZF——F :5EZ631E)TEFE -

*  BRTEI{E 45,000,000/ 7T (ENBRBEBIEA) 25
FIEMBECHERME

SPARRR 2B E E R A A 2 FEU S BT
BRABAFASERR 28 WAREREERE-
% 5 R e S BT /BB & B R IR 2 BRE(E B H A A
RS
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20.iBRARKRE (&)
FEMBATHBHT

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

148

Place of
registration

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid-up capital/

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name and operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ERTR
Ef R BRRE/ FAREEZ
& REHhE EMEFEE RERZEIL FEXK
2012 2011
Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co., Mainland China HK$1,702,500,000 100 100 Property investment and
Ltd. (note b) development
AEEAME (RE)ERAA (Mib) FEIARE 1,702,500,000% 7T MEEERER
Shum Yip Centre Development (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100  Property investment
Co., Ltd. (notes a & ¢)
REPLER ORI ERAT PN 40,000,000/ 7 NERE
(Bizrake)
Shum Yip Shumkang (Group) Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB95,500,000 80 80  Provision of transportation
(“Shum Yip Shumkang”) (note d) services
AERB (RE)BRAR (DRXFE]) FEIARE AR#95,500,0007C R EE RS
(Bf=Ed)
Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (note d) Mainland China RMB800,000,000 75.05 75.05  Property investment and
development
AEER (RE)ROERDA (MaEd) PEIARE AR #800,000,0007C NERERER
Shenzhen Terra Construction Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB10,000,000 75.05 75.05  Manufacturing and sales of
(notes a & ¢) aluminum products
ANTARFFERERTRARAF PEIARE AE#10,000,0007C RENHERARER
(Bisrake)
Shenzhen Terra Property Management Mainland China RMB5,060,000 75.05 75.05  Property management

Service Co., Ltd. (notes a & ¢)
R RANEERREERAA
(Mizake)

FIERERAT 2012FFH
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FEMBATRBENOT: (£)

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
registration

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid-up capital/

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name and operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ERTR
i3 BERE/ FRREEZ
& REHhE EMEFEE RERZEIL FEXR
2012 2011

Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property Mainland China RMB137,000,000 75.05 75.05  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (notes a & c)

REMAXRRAEHEREERAA PEIARE AE#137,000,0007C B
(Pizrake)

Shum Yip TaiFu Logistics Group Holdings Mainland China RMB85,966,370 95.37 95.37  Operation of warehouses and
Co., Ltd. (notes a & c) property development

AEREMREERNBRAF PEARE AR¥85,966,3707C RERRRMERR
(Bizrake)

Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd. (note b) ~ Mainland China RMB932,050,000 100 100 Property investment and

development

AEBEE (RE)BRAR (KEb) PEIARE AE#932,050,0007C NERARER

Shenzhen Pengji Property Management Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100  Property management
Services Limited (notes a & c)

RITHEENEEERBERDA hE AR AR #20,000,00070 NEEE
(Bisrake)

Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. Mainland China RMB19,920,000 100 100 Manufacturing of steel products
(notes a & ¢)

RYRZXAEARAA (HiFake) PEAKE AR¥19,920,0007C HERSER

Shenzhen Wondershine Residence Mainland China RMB15,000,000 100 100 Property management
Company Limited (notes a & c)

ANMBEERERAA (MiEake) AR AE#15,000,0007C MEER

Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mainland China US$150,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(“Shum Yip Shenzhen”) (note b)

AREER CRIDBRAF (DREFRY) AR 150,000,000% 7 RERR

(MizEb)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
registration

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid-up capital/

20 B ARKZE (
FEMBATRBENOT: (£)

Percentage of equity

interest attributable

&)

Name and operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ERTR
i3 BERE/ FRREEZ
& REHhE EMEFEE RERZEIL FEXR
2012 2011

Changsha Pengji Property Limited Mainland China RMB?75,000,000 80 80  Property development
(notes a & ¢)

RPBEEBEFRAR (Mitake) PEIARE ARH75,000,0007C MRERE

Huizhou Pengji Investment Limited Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100  Property development
(notes a & ¢)

BMNBEERAGRAR (Matake) PEIARE AE#10,000,0007C B

Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property Management ~ Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100  Property management
Limited (notes a & ¢)

AEEE (R DRERERAF E AR AR #30,000,0007C NEER
(Pizrake)

Dongguan Shum Yip Property Development  Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100  Property development
Limited (notes a & ¢)

REMAXEHEERAR (MiEake) PEIARE AE#10,000,00070 NEHRE

Foshan Shunde Shum Yip Property Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property development
Development Limited (notes a & c)

FLmERERAXEHEFRAT PEIARRE AE#20,000,00070 NEERE
(PzFafke)

Changzhou Shum Yip Property Mainland China US$99,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Limited (note b)

EMARBERRAA (M) AR 99,800,000% 7T MRER

Shum Yip Land Company Limited Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100  Property development
(notes a & ¢)

AXEWARDA (MiEakc) AR AR #50,000,0007C MRER

Shum Yip East China Property Development  Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100  Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes a & ¢)

AXERMEREARA (Miake) AR AE#50,000,0007C MRER

China Shum Yip (Group) Property British Virgin US$200 100 - Investment holding
Investment Company Limited Islands
(“Shum Yip Property”) (note a)

RERE (KB ) EREFRDA RRARES 200%7T BEER

(DRxE]) (Fizta)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully Percentage of equity

registration paid-up capital/ interest attributable

Name and operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ERTR
i3 BERE/ FRREEZ
& REHhE EMEFEE RERZEIL FEXR
2012 2011
Shenyang Wuai Shumkang Transportation Mainland China RMB400,000,000 74.675 46.925  Property development and
Centre (Limited) (“Wuai”) (Notes a & ¢) investment and transportation
station management
BERARRBERAY (ARAR) PEIARE A #400,000,0007T NEBRRBANREGWHER
(Ma2]) (Fiake)
Suzhou New Development Investment Mainland China RMB350,000,000 100 22.62  Property development and hotel
Limited (“Suzhou New Development”) operation
(Note a & ¢)
FMFBRREEGRAR ([HMNHER])  HEKE AE#350,000,0007C NEZRRIBEELE
(Bizrake)

During the year, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in Shum
Yip Property from independent third parties and a fellow subsidiary.
Further details of this acquisition are included in note 38(i) to the
financial statements.

On 30 November 2012, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest
in Richland (China) Development Limited (“Richland Development”)
from independent third parties, as a result Wuai became a subsidiary
of the Company. Further details of this acquisition are included in
note 38(ii) to the financial statements.

On 5 December 2012, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest
in Suzhou New Development from Coastal Greenland Limited
(“Coastal Greenland”). Further details of this acquisition are
included in note 38(iii) to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:
a. Indirectly held by the Company
b.  Established in Mainland China as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

c.  Established in Mainland China as a domestic enterprise with limited

liability

d.  Established in Mainland China as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise

RER AEERBYLE=7 Kk —HRRXHEBER
BB R S EE 2 100% A2 = 1tk TR RS 2 — 2
FEIB T # A B R M RE38() ©

RZE——F+—A=+H AEBMBILE=FH
WEBSET (PR BEREGR AR ([BET])Z
100%M% 1 AL AE K AR A RHEB AR 1A
Ue B 7 3 — D EE 1B Ty B B A5 3R 3% BT 2R3 8 (i)

R-ZE——F+_AFH AEBRERLEHER
BEERAG (D8R exRE]) WEHMNFTER 2
100% AR HE o PLIH U B 2 3 — DB T & A B 5 R
= M FE38(iii) °

RN EERREAFEREBRIZTEL
HARAEBEEEFEZIZRND Z2ARANER
AEE-BEERR JIHEMMEB LR FEHER
BRBRITR-

B -
a BAAAMERS
b. WEBAERIANEBELE

c. RPEBEAEKRIASBEAFREELE

d. RPEBRKERIATIGEDLE
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

21. HEEFERRE

Group

rEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Share of net assets BEEEFE 108,285 430,866
Loans to a jointly-controlled entity BT —RERESEEER 9,839 -
118,124 430,866

The loans to a jointly-controlled entity are unsecured, interest-free
and will not be repaid within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

The Group’s other receivables due from the joint-controlled entities
are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

BT MARARHERERARER 28R
T BN s RS+ — B8 PO -

2N 52 (8] JiE UK HE R4 ) S 2 EL IR UK R IB A B 7S
RERMIFE284F FE o
HREZEHIEEFBOT :

Percentage of

A
Place of
Nominal value of registration  Ownership Voting Profit
Name registered capital and operation interest power sharing  Principal activities
ALK
L EMEFEE SeHl MARRED HEY HWANDE FTEEHR
Taizhou Shum Yip Investment RMB100,000,000 Mainland China 51 50 51 Provision of development
Development Limited service
FNHARREERBRAA AK%100,000,0007C FEARE TR R B AR
Shenzhen ShumYip Pengji Baohua ~ RMB100,000,000 Mainland China 50 50 50 Property development

Investment Limited

RYUMAEBEEZEREERLR  AR100,000,0007T B AR

Both of the above investments in jointly-controlled entities are
indirectly held by the Company.

FIERERAT 2012FF 5
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES 21. HEEFHERBRE (&)
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

TRIRAEE 2 KRZHIERE 2 W HERBE

of the Group's jointly-controlled entities:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi# FHT
Share of the jointly-controlled entities” assets
and liabilities: hHEREZEFEBCZEERAE:
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,357,162 1,008,156
Current assets RBEE 415,812 342,647
Current liabilities mBAE (1,461,151) (686,570)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (139,357) (169,701)
Net assets BEF 172,466 494,532
Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ results: LEE:
Income uy)\ 72,513 301,622
Total expense F 5 (7,951) (12,518)
Tax g (16,038) (72,277)
Profit for the year F A T 48,524 216,827
22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. BERFRE
Group Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FHT FET FBIT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEWRRD - RAA - = 15,133 15,133
Shares listed in Hong Kong, at cost  FA& 8 Ei R {7 - AR - - 920,399 920,399
Share of net assets BIEEEFRE 5,594,894 5,394,924 - =
Goodwill on acquisition WEELEZHE 126,917 126,917 - =
Loans to associates KTBENRIZER 72,706 325,240 - =
Provision for impairment (note a) M {E#E & ([iza) (571,000) (571,000) (571,000 (571,000)
5,223,517 5,276,081 364,532 364,532
Market value of listed shares R TE 1,716,920 1,061,147 347,176 183,017
The loans to associates as at 31 December 2012 are unsecured RZE—Z—F+ZA=+—H LK THEQAZ
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The loans to associates of EXRRELER BEEETEEBR B THE Q)
HK$72,706,000 (2011: HK$90,285,000) are interest-free. 2 E3872,706,000/ 7T (=& ——% : 90,285,000
BIL)RER -

ATAREEEMENGEREFERAZEE QR
BN RT3 E -

The loans from associates included in the Group’s other payables
and accruals are disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost is objective
evidence of impairment. In consideration of the fluctuation in
the share price, management performed impairment testing
for its investments in associates. The recoverable amounts of
the investments in associates have been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation using the Group’s share of the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
be generated by the associates. The cash flow projections of
the associates were made based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period. The key assumptions adopted for growth
rates and discount rates used in the value-in-use calculations
are based on management’s best estimates. Growth rates are
determined by considering both internal and external factors.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14%.

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

22, BENTRE (&)

(a)

ElS

Place of

Nominal value of
issued and fully

BRERERTIAZ ARBEELERNLARMR
MERERA - AEIRREZ TR - 5t &
REZKS ERERENEERARZREE
TTRERIR - B & AR 218 E 2 A B Y £ 58
TREE R E R REE 2 AR AEE S
Bt ZARRRERBZREZEREEFE
EE-BEARZRSRERAEBREDFH
Mz BREEFEL - EREARFERRER
ERUBRERAZTEZERRDBEEEEZ
REEMFTMERE - BRETDZEBAINARERE
E-BReRBEAER ZHREXR14% -

EMERNRFENT

Percentage of

Business incorporation/ paid-up capital/ ownership interest
Name structure registration registered capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities
R/ BRARAERE/ FEEEEZ
8 XBRE S EMEXEE FERBEESL ERXE
2012 2011
Coastal Greenland* (note a) Corporate Bermuda HK$279,058,000 22,62 22,62 Property development and
investment
HERERE" (Mita) 27 BRE 279,058,000 7 VESH-YEE
Road King Infrastructure Ltd. Corporate Bermuda HK$74,193,000 27.27 27.27  Provision of investment and
(“Road King")** (note b) management of toll roads
and property development
BYRRARAR ([35]) = (Hib) Nl BRE 74,193,000 7T RENBARREARER
DRDFERE
Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group) Corporate Mainland China US$62,000,000 37.53 3753 Property investment and
Co., Ltd. (note b) development
RZGER (%8)BRAR (Hith) Nl RERE 62,000,005 7T NERARRR
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

None of the associates are audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

* Coastal Greenland is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10
each are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The principal location of Coastal Greenland’s business is
Mainland China.

**  Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal

location of Road King's business is Mainland China.
Notes:
a. Directly held by the Company

b.  Indirectly held by the Company

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The financial years of the above associates are coterminous with that
of the Group, except for Coastal Greenland which has a financial
year ending 31 March. The consolidated financial statements are
adjusted for the material transactions between Coastal Greenland
and group companies between 1 January and 31 March. Coastal

22 BEQNRRE (&)

BEEABERRKEBERKEAMEBARE
KB EBAEREGE AR AERK-

* HERERERRBREZMKIZAEREER
EHxﬁ@mOlﬁngﬁﬁxﬁéé/’ﬂﬁééi%ﬁﬁﬁ
RARERET -HBRERE T EEXMRME
B RRE

* BRYDRAREFMKRILERAF EEREE
0.10B T EBBEBTBHARIMAERAA LR
bRz TR EE M AT BIRRE -

GEE
a BAAREEHA
b. HAAFMERE

NEREERR/EAFERABEREIEZE LM
ﬁk$¢@§§aﬂ@2§ﬁ*ﬁ D2 AR Bt 2 R ]

BE-BEAR JFEMBBENRFEHERE
ﬂﬂﬁ’\ﬁﬁ

J:L*"‘**”TZWE&E&@L"EEZWE&iF%
’\ﬁ/ BREFECHMREEFER=A
+ IFEMBHREAA A EFEREREE N
EEQ*H*EI—H—Jr*EI,HﬁFEﬁZi?U@%VF
HFEE- /u/iif@%«l?"ﬁ%:ﬂ:+*5?%ﬁﬁ7f

Greenland uses 31 March as its financial year end date to conform HEEFHR  AEEZERNGIMERABE B
with that of its holding company.

All the above associates have been accounted for using the equity AR E R EZSMBREANGERER
method in these financial statements. SEOEETIIR

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of the Group's associates extracted from their financial statements.

TREE M BHRRABE c AEEB 2 A28
BERRE:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET
Assets =3 64,806,034 62,705,242
Liabilities =K 45,505,005 45,345,157
Revenues U 7 19,707,005 15,502,613
Profit e Al 3,657,750 1,963,198
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23. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT 23. B EEIHPRE
Group Company
HKE@E AR
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#T T FHT F#T
Held-to-maturity investment HEEIHEE - 387,968 - 387,968

24.

Held-to-maturity investment as at 31 December 2011 represented
investment in guaranteed senior notes of US$50,000,000 issued
by Coastal Greenland, at a consideration of US$47,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$361,000,000). The guaranteed

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—HZHEEZIHR
B AN BEBREETT 250,000,000 T 2
RELEZHE KRB AH47,000,000E T (HHERH
361,000,000 7T ) ° % FEREEZHBIRF E12

senior notes bore interest at 12% per annum. The senior notes are BB -ZERBARBRINMEZSRHGERA
listed on the Singapore Securities Trading Limited and the investment Cilsh i ﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁ REBASESBRIFEEIH
was classified by the Group as a held-to-maturity investment REWIRBHEK AT E - ZFEBAZBREER
and measured at amortised cost. The senior notes matured on 8 ——F+—RANRZH-
November 2012.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24 I HERE
Group Company
r5E EAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET THER TAET
At fair value: BARME
Listed equity investments in
Mainland China FERBIARE 2 RERE 28,266 25,428 - -
Club memberships (CESik-F 4,507 4,485 1,720 1,720
At cost: REK
Unlisted equity investments FEEmiRERE 19,698 - - -
52,471 29,913 1,720 1,720
During the year, the net gain in respect of the Group’s available- FA-AEEREMEARSTRAZAHREE

for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$1,975,000 (2011: net loss of HK$4,257,000).

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

As at 31 December 2012, unlisted equity investments with a
carrying amount of HK$19,698,000 (2011:
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates

Nil) were stated at cost

is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair
value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.

FIERERAT 2012F 55

%ﬁﬁzu&éﬁ’rﬁﬁguws,ooo%m (Z=——%F:
B 18% %84,257,000/8 7T ) °
FREREZ A

AETRBETISREETE -

R—_E——&F+-_A=+—"B8B EKEEAS
19,698,000 L IE L R#EIRE (=T ——F -
)RR ES R REAASEALBEMEH
BEFEN BEERAEARETEAFEMEE A
SERHTEESEEEE-
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25.

26.

27.

OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, other long term assets mainly represented
prepayment of HK$1,365,383,000 (2011: HK$1,340,090,000)
related to acquisition of land use rights. The remaining balance of
HK$12,439,000 (2011: HK$46,849,000) included receivables from
other independent third parties.

25 HittRHAEE
R—ZB——F+-_fF=+—HB HMERBHZE
EXZERE U T R8BSR
1,365,383,00078 ¢ ( == ——4 : 1,340,090,000
HBIT) o H $12,439,0008 T (=T —— &
46,849,000/ 7T) BIEE WM A B L E =71 2

I8 o
INVENTORIES 26. 7 &
Group
rEE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Raw materials JR A 36,850 32,051
Work in progress FEE m 37,722 43,014
Finished goods BUEY 34,535 16,612
109,107 91,677
TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. EWRBR X
Group
rEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FH&ET
Trade receivables JE U2 BR 3k 285,796 181,667
Impairment VERIE) (30,939) (38,260)
254,857 143,407

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit
terms to its customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

EEEBAT AEELGERETEFPEHEME
S8 AR ERES E R D 2 8 U RIA RS B
R4 MO R E B R - RN Lt [RE K A & E
ZRWEFERZETEZRZER MAKHE
WA E &P 25 R Ko 75 F 38 5t H U
ERERFEEMNERRIEMEEN L B
EABPRTEFHIA
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contract date and net of provision, is

FE W BR R (48
RIS BAR DA A 40 B B R H30 00 B4 2 FE MR
RZERAMMT -

as follows:

Group

rEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 252,580 131,726
One to two years —FEMFER 2,076 2,316
Two to three years MEZ=FA 201 9,365
254,857 143,407

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

FEM RN 2 BB B R B IT

Group

TEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
At 1 January R—A—H 38,260 38,166
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERERZBEEE (Kie) 3,758 1,632
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BEE 2 REEE (KiEe) 9,111) (3,356)
Amount written off as uncollectible 8 A AR Bl 2 3B (2,189) =
Exchange realignment M 5 A B 221 1,818
30,939 38,260

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables
is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$30,939,000 (2011: HK$38,260,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$31,986,000 (2011: HK$49,243,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in both interest
and/or principal payments and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

FIERERAT 2012FF 5

ALMERNERREREERENEREZ
JiE Us B 7K B #830,939,0008 T (Z T — — 4 ¢
38,260,000 7T ) * Mm% E W AR XA B E R < BRE
E7431,986,000/# 7 ( ==& — — 4 : 49,243,000/
JT) °

18 51 B <z 18 UK R 5% 7 2 i e B 7% IR % s B R A
BR/FAReNRZEFER BHE-HHZ
F W AR AW [ -
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

28.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

27. BEWBRRR (&)

18 31 3% £ [5] 7R 7 b 48 H 3R R B 2 e LR BR 3R 2 BR 1R
DT

Group

rEH
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THETT
Neither past due nor impaired A& B AR E 251,734 131,716
Less than one year past due BHLR—F 2,076 708
253,810 132,424

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

AR IR AROR (B 2 e AR R B8 | 2 (87T 3 2 R
ZEFER MEEOHESRIERE-

EBMERREZEBRERERZIFEH 2FR
Bl ZERPEAEEEAR RIFBELE - KIE
BELR ARZEERZEELXTBEERE
PEERDEERAT2HKE  MARREER
RETRZSEREDRERE-

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. FB{fFIE ;T & R H b FE R 1E
Group Company
rEE AAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT FHT THET
Prepayments B IE 1,493,355 1,461,241 - -
Deposits and other receivables HEE 068 879,089 669,885 31,772 7,710
Loans to a jointly-controlled entity % T —F £ FZ G B 2 &% 2,148,394 864,224 - -
4,520,838 2,995,350 31,772 7,710

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are loans to the Group’s jointly-controlled entity totalling
HK$2,148,394,000 (2011: HK$864,224,000), which are unsecured
and have no fixed terms of repayment, and bear interest at 12% per
annum (2011: 12%).

Included in the Group’s deposits and other receivables are
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries of HK$7,378,000 (2011:
HK$117,669,000), which are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

AEBz2ENRE T2 REMERKIES
PREGETAEEZLAFAEGER ZERE H
2,148,394,0008 70 (=F — — 4 : 864,224,000/8
L) ZERBAEERREREEREAR  RIE
BFENRE(ZE—F 12E)FTL-

AEBZ & REMERFIBER2EEKE
ZW B A B FKIE7,378,0008 T (=& — — 4
117,669,000/ 7T ) * ZERBEARER 28 RE
[ 52 32 TR HARR ©
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Included in the Group’s deposits and other receivables are amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the
Group of HK$29,389,000 (2011: Nil), which are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.

29. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

28. AN RIE R & REMBURRKIE (#F)

AEE & REMERKEHBIEERAEE
& T B A Rz JEE R AR 3 51 7829,389,000/8 7T
—E——F ) ZEREREERF 2B RE

= ymm

TEEFKHAMR o

tREERBHMARE-FFALAREZ S B
BERIHETRER ZEWIRRER-

29. ZBPBRBRAANEBEHEZRERE

Group Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET TER FHET
Listed equity investments, at ETRERE  ETE
market value (note a): (KizEa) :
Hong Kong BB 10,296 8,023 10,296 8,023
Overseas NZIN - 11,460 - -
Investment in warrants of an —MBE AR RRERRE
associate (note b) (KizEb) - 4 - 4
10,296 19,487 10,296 8,027
(@) The above equity investments as at 31 December 2012 and (@ R —T——FN—"FT——F+-_F=1+—

2011 were classified as held for trading.

(b) On 18 December 2007, the Company purchased from an (b)
independent third party up to 37,207,500 warrant shares issued
by Coastal Greenland at a consideration of HK$27,000,000.
According to HKAS 39, the warrants were recorded as

derivatives, which should be measured at fair value at each

period end. The warrants matured in November 2012.

FIERERAT 2012F 55

B2 EBRERED D ERFIER S -

R-ZEZEELF+=_A+N\B RXARIUKE
27,000,000 TMBYLE=FBENSHLE
REBITZH&%37,207,50010 RIAEZR
BIEB BT AR FE395 « sRREBTIALTE
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

30.RERBEEBEYRCEREN

DEPOSITS

Group Company
TEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FEx FHET
Cash and bank balances He RBITEH 5,197,802 3,766,916 47,832 33,509
Time deposits EHER 2,108,006 1,469,460 746,374 1,222,110
7,305,808 5,236,376 794,206 1,255,619
Less: Pledged time deposits: B B R B
Pledged for long term bank REPFTER 2 HH
loans (note 31(a)(iv)) (BEE31(a)(iv) ) (137,323) (12,427) - =
Pledged for short term bank REIRTER 2 HHT
loans (note 31(a)(iv)) (BTE31()(iv)) (129,905) = - =
Restricted cash* IR FIR e (304,528) (126,425) - =
Cash and cash equivalents RekEEEEY 6,734,052 5,097,524 794,206 1,255,619
*  In accordance with relevant documents issued by the PRC State-Owned * RETEBEEIMEREERBMGHNAEBXXM A

Land and Resource Bureau, certain property development companies of
the Group are required to place in designated bank accounts a certain
amount of presale proceeds of properties as guarantee deposits for the
construction of related properties. The deposits can only be used for
purchases of construction materials and the payments of construction
fees of the relevant property projects when approval from the PRC State-
Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained. These guarantee deposits
will only be released after completion of the related pre-sold properties.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$5,441,750,000 (2011: HK$3,814,631,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

SENE TYEBRRARAREERTERPEFRE
THRERNRENEMESHA (FRIEMNEXEESR
ENERFR -ZEREARESTHEELS LHBE
REBBMEFANBEEM RXNABYEERE
MEEER ZERERERARGREMAENESR
B 18 15 LARRBR o

RBEHR AEBUARE ([ARE])FE
2HEe RIS EEYS5,441,750,0008 L (=&
——%:3,814,631,000870) - AREIW 0] & &
RIBBEMEY o K1+ 1B 3% BISNE B Bl 551 R
HE SERNEERERAT ASEREZBER
ETINEXEBZBRITHARBHLBRARME -

FRRBOZASREAERTERERRTH
MEREAME -BRHREHEFRZERAR—HEE
=EATE BFAKREZANKREFEME I
ARSI E B RS RREA S - RITHERTS
FRIEFEETIRBER FERFZRT-
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

LA ERRTREMEER

BORROWINGS
2012 2011
Effective Effective
contractual contractual
interest interest
Group rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BEREH EREH ‘
¥ | E(E) E) THER FE(E) 58 FET
Current hE
Bank loans-secured RITEF-HHM 6.00-7.88 2013 1,043,259 6.31-7.34 2012 186,296
Bank loans-unsecured BOER KA 4.51-9.225 2013 7,035,371 4.86-7.93 2012 4,778,953
HIBOR+0.70- HIBOR+1.95,
HIBOR+2.85, HIBOR+2.85
LIBOR + 2
ERRTEE BBRITASE
FE+0.70—- FE+1.95°
ERRTA%E BERITASE
54285 FE+2.85
WBRITEE
FE+2
Other borrowings- Hithfe & — B 7.2-8.5 2013 895,608 =
unsecured
8,974,238 4,965,249
Non-current FREB
Bank loans-secured RITEF-FER 6.15-8.913 2014-2021 2,719,144 6.37-8.645 2013-2021 1,352,664
Bank loans-unsecured ROER - EER 6.15-9.66 2014-2016 9,422,348 4.86-7.6475 2013-2015 10,161,374
HIBOR+2.2- HIBOR+0.7-
HIBOR+2.95, HIBOR+2.95,
LIBOR+2- LIBOR+2-
LIBOR+ 2.95 LIBOR+2.95
BREBTRE BERITAE
fFE+2.2- FE+0.7—
BREBTRE BERITAE
84295 #E+2.95 -
fRARTEE CECIEES
FE+2- FE+2-
RARITEE CECiIEES
842,95 FE+2.95
Other borrowings- Hin BB - EHK A 8.5-9.8 2014 1,094,632 =
unsecured
13,236,124 11,514,038
22,210,362 16,479,287

162 RIZRERDT 2012FFR
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

3SLEERITREMESR (&)

2012 2011
Effective Effective
contractual contractual
interest interest
Company rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
ERaH ERAH
YN E(E) E) THER FE(E) 58 FEL
Current ok
Bank loans - unsecured RITEF - EHK A HIBOR + 0.70- 2013 968,956  HIBOR+1.95, 2012 260,000
HIBOR + 2.85, HIBOR+2.85
LIBOR +2
FRBTRE EERTRE
FE+0.70- FE+1.95
ERBTRE BEET
E+2.85 A%
RBBTRE FE+2.85
HE+2
Non-current k78
Bank loans - unsecured RITER-EEKR HIBOR + 2.2- 2014-2015 6,196,205 HIBOR+0.7- 2013-2015 6,599,106
HIBOR + 2.95, HIBOR+2.95,
LIBOR + 2- LIBOR+2-
LIBOR + 2.95 LIBOR+2.95
EARITAE BERBRTRAE
FE+2.2- FE+0.7—
FRBTRE EERTRE
E+2.95 FE+2.95
wBBTRE RAFTRE
fFE+2- FE+2-
wBEBTRE mABTRE
FE+2.95 FE+2.95
7,165,161 6,859,106
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

3L ERITREMESR (&)

Group Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
TER FHET TER FHET
Analysed into: XK
Bank loans repayable: [EEE 2 RITER:
Within one year —FR 8,078,630 4,965,249 968,956 260,000
In the second year MER 7,343,876 2,771,562 3,614,654 730,383
From third to fifth years “FERER 3,833,004 8,443,696 2,581,551 5,868,723
Over five years AEE 964,612 298,780 - =
20,220,122 16,479,287 7,165,161 6,859,106
Other borrowings repayable: EEEzHEMEE
Within one year —£RQ 895,608 - - -
In the second year —FR 1,094,632 = - =
1,990,240 - - -
22,210,362 16,479,287 7,165,161 6,859,106

(a)

Bank loans amounting to HK$3,762,403,000 (2011:
HK$1,538,960,000) were secured by:

(iii)

(iv)

certain of the Group’s land and buildings in Mainland
China with a net book value of approximately
HK$1,205,866,000 (2011: HK$4,742,000) (note 14);

certain of the Group's properties under development with a
net book value of approximately HK$1,498,849,000 (2011:
HK$1,585,366,000) (note 18);

certain of the Group’s investment properties with a net
book value of approximately HK$4,614,496,000 (2011:
HK$694,920,000) (note 19);

certain of the Group’s bank deposits with a net book value
of HK$267,228,000 (2011: HK$12,427,000) (note 30); and

certain of the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with a net book value of approximately HK$45,410,000
(2011: Nil).

FIERERAT 2012FFH

(a)

£ %8 /533,762,403,0008 T (=T — —4:
1,538,960,000/8 ) Z SRITE XA U T EE
B

(iii)

(iv)

7K £ [ B 5% {E 491,205,866,0005% 7T
(ZFE——%:4,742,00087T) 2 & T
R B AREZ i RIEF (HeE14)

7K £ [ BR 5% {E 491,498,849,0005% 7T
— & ——4%:1,585,366,000/ETC) 2 &
FREFRYE (HF18)

7K £ [ BR [ % {E 494,614,496,0005% 7T
(Z=F——1%:694,920,00087T) 2 & T
HEME (HE19)

AEEAREFE267,228,0008 T (= F
——4 112,427,000 7T ) 2 & TRITF
= (HEE30) + &

NEEREIEEL45,410,0008 70 (=&
——F EBIZETHEREZEEKD
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

32.

(b)

Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately
HK$4,871,517,000 (2011: HK$4,883,106,000)
HK$2,116,000,000 (2011: HK$1,976,000,000),
denominated respectively in United States dollars and Hong

and
which are

Kong dollars, all borrowings of the Group are in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
borrowings approximate to their fair values, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at the
prevailing interest rates.

TRADE PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

3SLEERITREMESR (&)

(b)

B E R #4,871,517,0008 T (=T ——
% :4,883,106,0007% 7t.) %2,116,000,0007%
T (=ZZF——%:1,976,000,0007 7T ) Z $R1T

BRDBIAETT RATEN MERERZ
f%%tmx/\ﬁ%ﬂa

AEERARRZEEZ RAERERAAE
BE - THRIRAT AR EIAA AR RE 2B T
BRIRETESH -

32. J?Eﬁ BRI

AMEMRREZBHFAEZRNRRZRR D

quT-

Group

rEH
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Within one year —FR 649,910 221,772
One to two years —FEMWFRA 12,099 1,069
Two to three years MEZ=FNA 1,197 6,818
Over three years =FLAE 40,280 35,058
703,486 264,717

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing.

PR BR R R A B RIR -
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

3. HMENFERESER

Group Company

rEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET FTER FHET
Receipts in advance B R IE 3,546,652 1,749,563 - =
Other payables H{th & 45008 3,053,729 2,121,551 - 326
Loans from associates LN~ 325,273 286,303 29,543 29,213
Accruals A& H 1,358,002 657,634 21,164 24,494
8,283,656 4,815,051 50,707 54,033

Included in the Group’s receipts in advance as at 31 December
2012 is an advance payment of HK$338,842,000 received from
Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited CFRIIT R 2 AR E AR A A])
(“Kezhigu”), a fellow subsidiary of the Group, which was made for
the purchase of certain properties from the Group (note 46(ii)).

The loans from fellow subsidiaries included in the Group’s other
payables are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. An
amount due to a fellow subsidiary of HK$263,994,000 (2011: Nil)
bears interest at the one-year benchmark lending rate of the People’s
Bank of China, while the remaining balance of HK$159,736,000
(2011: HK$103,522,000) is interest-free.

Included in the Group's other payables is an amount due to a related
party of HK$121,151,000 (2011: Nil), which is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Included in the Group’s other payables are amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Group of
HK$322,504,000 (2011: HK$231,109,000), which are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The loans from associates included in the Group’s other payables
and accruals totalling HK$325,273,000 (2011: HK$286,303,000) are
unsecured, interest-free and are payable on demand.

FIERERAT 2012FFH

AREBR-_ZE——F+_A=1+—HzZBUZES
FEAEEz —MRRMB AR 2 REE
BRAR ([BHzA])WER Z 784 5338,842,000
BT EDRAASEBES TWE (KiEdoii)
e

STAREEZEtEMKIBEZRRKTEARER
BRI R I 4 E E R RXHARR o R 5 — FE R R B
B A EIFIE263,994,000/8 70 (= ——F 1 ) 1%
FEARRITZ —FHELEERMEGT L - MR
#159,736,000/7C (=& ——% :103,522,000%
)RR

ANEEE 2 H b R RIB B IR E A — & R 5 508
121,151,000 L (ZF——F &) AR EAE
AT~ B N E E 8 FHRR o

AEEZ LN FRBREENAEEETHER
A) 2 FE¥E A% AR BR 5K 18322,504,000/8 T (=T ——
4 :231,109,0007T)  ZERBAERIF BB
Ko 4 [ TE B B -

AEBZHMBEMRBERESEARER S
A BERA 325,273,000 T (Z T ——4:
286,303,000/ 70) F ZERIBAEER 2 EWE
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34. DEFERRED TAX 34. IEFEBIH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year REERLEHBABREEZZSHOT :
are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEEE
Group rE
2012
Fair value
adjustment
arising from  Accelerated
acquisition of tax
Withholding  Revaluation subsidiaries  depreciation
tax  of investment Revaluation Revaluati and  on investment
on dividend properties of assets  of investments associates properties Total
RYENE
DEARBE  RENEZ
REM* AEAEER MEBE
BREEMB Bff BEEf REEfE DAESE bl | it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2012 R-E2-—%-H—H 146,207 770,727 13,853 6,543 35,337 134,629 1,107,296
Deferred tax charged/(credited) o~ AFERMEEF B,/
the income statement during (GrAB&RR) ZETEHE
the year (note 10) (Kiz10) 56,700 117,637 (1,558) - (3,436) 13,551 182,894
Deferred tax charged to equity REENERTHRZ
during the year BERA - - - 657 - - 657
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) %M &2 & (Fi#38) - 162,710 - - 158,522 - 321,232
Exchange realignment E3ECE 1,689 12,805 80 44 - 321 14,939
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZB-ZE+ZA=+-H
at 31 December 2012 ZEERERELE 204,596 1,063,879 12,375 7,244 190,423 148,501 1,627,018
Deferred tax assets: R IAE EE -
Group NE
2012
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable Tax effect  Unrealised
profits of LAT profits Others Total
A AEEH
ARERB LB EB
BHZER ZRBER REB A Hit &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT TERT THER FTHERT TERT
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—fA—H 45,006 324,171 39,469 30,199 438,845
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ ANEEF AUzEER
the income statement during the (KEm&RHHER) 2
year (note 10) EERIE (fEE10) 1,559 15,193 34,814 (1,877) 49,689
Acquisition of subsidiaries U g /S 2 )
(note 38) (KTzE38) 35,848 - - - 35,848
Exchange realignment B 558 B 383 2,806 420 267 3,876
R-ZB-=F
Gross deferred tax assets +t=ZA=t+—-8H2
at 31 December 2012 EEHREBEEEHATE 82,796 342,170 74,703 28,589 528,258
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34. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities:

34 EEBIE (&

EER IR EME

Group rE
2011
Fair value
adjustment
arising from Accelerated
acquisition of tax
Withholding Revaluation subsidiaries  depreciation
tax  of investment Revaluation Revaluation and  on investment
on dividend properties of assets  of investments associates properties Total
AR
REREE  REWEZ
REN%F RAEEZ MRHE
REEMH Eff EEEf REEfE  RRESEE & CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THET FET FEL FEL FAL FHEL
At 1 January 2011 RZZ——F—-f—-H 100,203 658,608 13,263 7,652 35,337 120,452 935,515
Deferred tax charged to the income A% ERIMERF MK 2
statement during the year (note 10)  EERIE (FitiE10) 39,659 77,829 - - - 13,171 130,659
Deferred tax charged to equity AEERERTPARZ
during the year BIERE - - - (1,419) - - (1,419)
Exchange realignment B B 6,345 34,290 590 310 = 1,006 42,541
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZE——F+-A=+—-H
at 31 December 2011 ZELRBABEE 146,207 770,727 13,853 6,543 35,337 134,629 1,107,296
Deferred tax assets: RIER IR E FE
Group rE
2011
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable Tax effect Unrealised
profits of LAT profits Others Total
Al FR{E I 8
ARERD LR ED
ENZEE ZBRETE KEREF Hith At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT FET FET
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—F—H 22,413 281,211 - 28,724 332,348
REZFAMER
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to (RS RPNR)
the income statement during the Z BRI
year (note 10) (ftzE10) 20,984 28,666 38,522 (65) 88,107
Exchange realignment P 5 38 2 1,609 14,294 947 1,540 18,390
R-T——%
Gross deferred tax assets +=ZRA=+—RHBz
at 31 December 2011 ELHREERR 45,006 324,171 39,469 30,199 438,845
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34. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 34 EEBIE (£Z)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$322,367,000
(2011: HK$322,367,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$240,943,000 (2011: HK$108,604,000). Accumulated losses
amounting to HK$15,169,000, HK$15,555,000, HK$23,400,000,
HK$74,589,000 and HK$112,230,000 as at 31 December 2012
will expire in 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively, for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for years and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008. As at 31 December 2012, the Group recognised a deferred
tax liability of HK$204,596,000 (2011: HK$146,207,000) in respect
of the withholding tax on future dividend distribution by these PRC
subsidiaries.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AEBREB 2 H B EE A322,367,0008 7 (=
T ——4%1:322,367,000/70) - Al A{ERSHEE &£
EEZARZRRERTAF - REBMHER
R 2 T 75 B 18 2240,943,000/8 70 (—Z 2 — — 4 ¢
108,604,000 L) R =_FTE——F+=_A=+—
H&£%A15,169,000% 7T * 15,555,000/ 7T *
23,400,0007% 7T * 74,589,0007% 7T 112,230,000
BT BRAEEEI IR —=F - 22—
F ZF-—RF T AER-T—tFHH-
AR R ERTEF - AR ZEEHIB TR E
EIEZFEZWBAR mMAREEBRNITESH
LAE S5 B SR Bl v A1 W R 2 F BB R RIR T
HIBEEE-

BRI B FEATERUE - AP BB R S BN 1%
B ZEMINHRE E SRR E BRI 0% U FE
B BMER—TT/N\F-—A—HRER WEA
REZZEELFF+_A=+—BEHEF - WFE
M BN 1 B B W) RERE R A E FT AR 5 15
HAEARENTENRE - BEARAER 2/
K E5% Bt AEEARERR B A MK L
WZEMBARR-ZZENF-—A—BREEN
BN RO EHNENFR R ——F+=
A=1+—RH RAEERZEHREMBAR 2 KK
B& B9 K 2 TE 07 R iE B TA & £5204,596,000
BT (ZZ——%:146,207,00087T) °

5

dl

AR E) A T E R 2 BB B A A R AT IS R
‘R
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. R4
Shares vy 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH& T
Authorised: JERE ¢
5,000,000,0008% (=Z —— 4 :
5,000,000,000 (2011: 5,000,000,000) 5,000,000,0008% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 (2011: SR HEE0.05%8 7T
HK$0.05) each (ZFE——F:0.058m) 2 EBER 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE:
3,729,015,408f% (=& ——4F :
3,729,015,408 (2011: 3,626,024,304) 3,626,024,3048%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 (2011: HAREE0.05%8 T
HK$0.05) each (ZE——%F:0.0587) 2 LB 186,451 181,301
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: FA-REAEBWAT
Number Issued Share
of shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
BT
R &H ERTRA 12 % E R @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2011 R=ZFT——%—A—H 3,536,568,090 176,828 5,398,197 5,575,025
Share options exercised TR 3,400,000 170 9,163 9,333
Dividend in the form of
new shares TR 2 R E 86,056,214 4,303 129,945 134,248
Share issue expenses R B AT R - = (37) (37)
At 31 December 2011 and R—E——F+-_A=+—8H
1 January 2012 kR-—Z—=—%—F—H 3,626,024,304 181,301 5,537,268 5,718,569
Dividend in the form of
new shares AR 2 2 2 iR B 102,991,104 5,150 176,733 181,883
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE-——-%+=-H=+—-H8 3,729,015,408 186,451 5,714,001 5,900,452
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35.

36.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 25 August 2012, the Board resolved to declare an interim
dividend of HK7.00 cents per share for the six months ended 30
June 2012. The Board further resolved that this interim dividend
be satisfied wholly in the form of an allotment of new fully paid
share(s) of nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the
Company (“scrip shares”) but shareholders will be given the option
of receiving this interim dividend wholly in cash in lieu of this
allotment, or partly in cash and partly in the form of scrip shares.
The interim dividend in the form of scrip shares, resulted in the issue
of 102,991,104 shares at an issue price of HK$1.766 per share for a
total consideration, before expenses, of HK$181,883,000.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 36 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”),
which had become effective on 5 June 2002 and expired on 5 June
2012. Upon expiry of the Old Scheme, no further options may be
granted but in all other aspects the provisions of the Old Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect. Therefore, the expiry of the Old
Scheme will not in any event affect the terms of the exercise of any
outstanding options that has already been granted under the Old
Scheme and such outstanding options granted under the Old Scheme
shall continue to be subject to the provisions of the Old Scheme.

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was approved and
adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. The eligible participants of the New
Scheme include any employee or director (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of any member
of the Group, or any employee, partner or director of any business
consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser
of and to any member of the Group, as absolutely determined by the
board of directors. The New Scheme became effective on 22 June
2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from that date, after which
period no further options will be issued but in all other respects the
provisions of the New Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

35

36.

RAR(F)
gEeN T —FN\A-_tRABABRSREE—
T——FAA=+TRHIANEAZFHREER7.00
Bl EESE—FFRURERQBRAR TR
EE0.05B I 2 B RHm (RERMD]) 2H K
BERMNUEPEHRE  ERRIEEELAREA
AR 2 S 3B 10 PATR & R 3R LA B AR 1D 77 2 MR ER
AR AR S - R EIR B TIAR B F AT &
BHIRBETE SR 7668 TLE17102,991,1045%
B - BR(E (FBRFSZAT) A181,883,0007 7T ©

B
RRAR BRSNS RAREZAEE BT 2 BIRE
ISR M TSI KR M 536

i8I R AT

ARERA—EBERES ([EFHE])  HER
—EE_E R ARBAERYR-F——FXAE
BEW - NEFBIERE BN BR LB
BEERTAE M7 Bt BRI R TR -
A - EERBRTEFE BRI EHRE
AT BT IR R i R 1T 2 (R R A Z 1T 1
RERTE MARRBREFBRLZ W RITRE
BREAREREFBZGHROR-

ARBR_ZE——FRNA -+ Bt & RRAFT
BERRAERT 8] ([F1aT8))) UBAKBEBKINE
HERB A ER2EERMEE LR - FEtEl 2
AERSHEEBEAEBEMKERRZEE S
EF(BERT ERTRBILIERTES) 3k
AEBEFRMKABARZEMEERR LB H -
HBERRZ2ZEMZES BHRES HHE

CRERE - FHEN —_E——FEXA-+=
B4R MR IEHBUESEEET - T RIZET 8B R
EARTERNER - AR ERE  ATEHRE
I BE AR AE - (BTEFT A H M 5 - 1T 8815
ME+RBARIER-
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the New Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the above, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30 percent of the shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme is that the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each Participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

The period under which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the board of directors at their absolute discretion and
notified by the directors to each grantee as being the period during
which an option may be exercised, and shall expire no later than
10th anniversary of the date upon which the option is granted and
accepted in accordance with the New Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Board and specified in the offer letter at the time
of the offer, there is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before the option can be exercised.

An option is open for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1. The full amount of exercise price for the subscription for
shares has to be paid upon exercise of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of
directors and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer of grant, which must be a business day, (ii) a price being
the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of grant, and
(iii) the nominal value of a share in the Company.

FIERERAT 2012FFH

36. BIRESTE (&)

BRIEAR DR BIERRR ST - BRI FEBBITERE
et 8 R AR A B (A H At B AR AR 5 81 3% ) 2 BB AR
REMAlgEE T2 EMARE B ERAB BB E
HTEEBEBITROBEZ10% - RIEFTE
IR FERRE A T & BEULET ARZ10%PR 58 - /&
W ABRRITERBEFRAERARBEAME
ib B AR A 5T B 3% M T S 1T 18 2 1M R 1T 1 R AR T
AREEITZRMNEE LRI BBBTED TR
M BEZ30% °

BHR2EERBHA S TESHORD LR - BIETT
EREM2EABEETE2EEZEBRE (R
FEE AT S RATE Z P AR ) T 3517 R i 37T
ZRDBE TNEEBBEBEITRN B Z1% °

BREZATEARMESTSE2RRE LHE
FRAMBZARA MAEBTEMRAREHE
REBRER L RERAE BER10BSE A A
Em-BIEEETSRERERDBEREFNE T
Bt iER - BRIETRBREN TRV ARE
BRENRERR -

BREAMKEEEICN -+ \RAEZRE
BEMBRERANFIENET - BBRO 2176
BANTTEERER 22 -

TEEHEFSEEBNSEE TREERAED
BUATZzE&ERE: INEHER (BARZEER)
EEEMARIMBERAAGARERMAZK
W HE: (IREXREE A AEEXAES
BHARSMERARERRERME 2N
MEFAE: RGiARQ R ZEE-
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 36. BB ECHE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the Old Scheme UTARRFARBE S LFFEMmRTEZ
and New Scheme during the year: B AE
2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
HK$ HK$
per share per share
pilk; fntE
FHTEE  BREHA FHITEE A
SHET ShET
At 1 January R—H—H 2.4289 98,778,000 2.4201 102,178,000
Exercised during the year RERITE - - 2.165 (3,400,000)
Forfeited during the year RERE UK 2.3900 (3,780,000) = =
Lapsed during the year RERKK 3.0158 (3,420,000 = =
At 31 December W+=p=+—H 2.4086 91,578,000 2.4289 98,778,000
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R EHIR M ARITEZ B 2 TR E RITEH
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T :
2012 —2—=F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE TEEME TEME
HK$ per share
BRET
87,562,000 2.3900 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015
—E-—HtAt+hBE=ZE-HFLATNH
4,016,000 2.8140 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015

ZE--HFtA+HNBE=Z-AFtA+NH

91,578,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2011

Number of options Exercise price*

36.

B RESTE (£)
—EF——F

Exercise period

B EHE IT{EE 1T HAM

HK$ per share

FRATT
900,000 4.7680 4-7-2007 to 3-7-2012
—EEtFELtANBE=ZT—=—FtH=H
93,862,000 2.3900 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015
—E——F+At+tABEE-ZE—RAE+A+/\H
4,016,000 2.8140 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015
—E——F+At+tABEE-ZE—RAE+A+/\H

98,778,000

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s
share capital.

No share option has been granted during the year. The Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$17,018,000 (2011:
HK$24,746,000) during the year ended 31 December 2012.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 91,578,000
share options outstanding under the Old Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 91,578,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$4,578,900 and share premium of HK$215,995,000
(before issue expenses).

As at the date of this report, options carrying rights to subscribe
for 91,578,000 shares remain outstanding and yet to be exercised,
which represented approximately 2.46% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

FIERERAT 2012FFH

* BERETEEARBEBRSARETHIARBBRA
ZEMBEUSBEHTEE-

FABEREERE - AEBREBEE_S—=
F+-_A=T—HLEFEEERERERX
17,018,000 70 (= ZF — —F : 24,746,000/5
JT) °

RMEBAR RIFEEFE K27 H,578,000
DEEMRAE M R TTE - IR IR 2 AN A A IR A2
T BEATE W R TT 2 B AR S B AT
¥E5N91,578,00008 N A &) 2 & i A - 38 o0 AR
4,578,900 70 R AR 735 E215,995,0007 7T (R
BREEFTRE) o

FEARRE T2 A H - "] RBE91,578,0008% 8% 15 (1h
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37. RESERVES
(@) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 79 to 80 of the
financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China has been
transferred to the statutory reserve which is restricted as to use.

Other reserve represents the difference between consideration
paid and the book value of the share of net assets acquired in
respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests, and the
difference between consideration received and the book value
of the share of net assets disposed in respect of a change in the
ownership interest in a subsidiary without a loss of control.

37. &

(@)

TEHE
AEEAFERBEFEZFHEBRAEE
IR BRRE7TIZ0ELREERE T K
ERTE

RIBPING EREZBRED R AEE
A AP B K BE 2 B /88 & B e Bt 8 8 ) 2 88 0 )i
NEBE=ERERSE ZEERE

Hip#mEm B RER e R ERD
ETREEEFENREEEZSR  RERKE
IR A 1B 0 T s — el P 8 2% R B9 P B
B E D WRERD G AT EEEFEN
FREERNZRE
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37. RESERVES (Continued) 37. %% (&)
(b) Company (b) A2AF
Share Capital Share
premium  redemption option Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
B EE BRE
IR 108 B IR " " REBEF BE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
P £ THET TET TET TET TET
RZZE——%
At 1 January 2011 —HA—H 5,398,197 2,036 12,885 247,714 5,660,832
Total comprehensive
income for the year AEETARRER - = = 561,343 561,343
Dividend in the form of new
shares MR A 2 B8 35 129,945 - - - 129,945
Share options exercised IR AR i 35 9,163 - (1,972) - 7,191
Share issue expenses B B1TH X (37) = = - 37)
Equity-settled share option ~ MBRAZ (T2
expense e ER 36 - - 24,746 - 24,746
Interim 2011 dividend “E—ERHRE 12 - - = (247,798)  (247,7998)
Adjustment to prior year's — FFEREREZ
final dividend HE 12 - - - (238) (238)
Proposed final 2011 RE-—Z——%
dividend KA E 12 - - = (290,082)  (290,082)
R=F——F
At 31 December 2011 +-A=+—~H 5,537,268 2,036 35,659 270,939 5,845,902
Total comprehensive AEEZERE
income for the year ik - - - 755,279 755,279
Dividend in the form of new
shares B 3 2 B8 35 176,733 - - - 176,733
Transfer of share option
reserve upon the lapse of 7 B [ 12 2K 2 s 8 44
share options ERERE = = (1,921) 1,921 =
Equity-settled share option ~ MBAZ{F2
expense R RER X 36 = = 17,018 = 17,018
Interim 2012 dividend —T-—_FhHRE 12 - - = (253,822)  (253,822)
Proposed final 2012 BER-Z——F
dividend REBE 12 - - = (410,192)  (410,192)
R=Z-—ZF
At 31 December 2012 +-A=+-H 5,714,001 2,036 50,756 364,125 6,130,918
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37. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits when
the related options lapsed.

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(0]

Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Shum Yip Property
On 31 March 2012, the Group acquired an 85% equity
interest in Shum Yip Property from independent third parties.
Shum Yip Property and its subsidiary are engaged in property
development and investment. The acquisition was made as part
of the Group’s strategy to expand its business development
in the southwest region of China. The purchase consideration
for the acquisition was in the form of cash amounted to
RMB49,560,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$60,498,000)
which was fully paid at the acquisition date.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Shum Yip Property at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of Shum Yip Property’s identifiable assets.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Shum
Yip Property as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

37. % (&)
(b) XAF(4)

BRERERFBSRELEMRITEZ BRE
RAE E-FFERRPEIRERM E2.450
BROOBER N Z G K - Z2BENEH
BREETESEREROEERINEH
BRERRERERE G -

38. ¥ A6

(i)

Ui B SR 2 3 E 2100 % AR A2
R-E——FE=ZA=+—H8 AEERBL
B HUREEREMEE 2 85%M%HE o REME K
HTBARKREMELRR RIREER -2
BIAEBEEREEN T EAREE 2 ¥55%
REz —Hp-mWEZBEERE IR
& AN EH 2 AR ¥49,560,0007T (8 E R
#760,498,0007 7T ) * I B A ULHE B BRI 7R 22
fife

REE R BRI RS R E 2 7
BAVEEZ S ELL I B REIE Y IEiE
B2 -

REERH  REMEZAERANEEREE
/NI I= Ll

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

RUEEER

DNRE

Notes HK$’000

i3 THET

Property, plant and equipment M- BERRE 14 574
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEAT B 7T & & E A e W58 1,892
Properties under development BERPYE 18 62,126
Completed properties held for sale REFEZEBKYE 476,826
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EEY 14,251
Trade payables JE A~ BR 3R (39,981)
Other payables and accruals HtEMRIARESTER (134,351)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SERITREMEE (286,865)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIAE F 34 (7,034)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAAREYIRZ A #EEEFERSE 87,438
Non-controlling interests JEPE IR = (26,940)
Satisfied by cash AR & X fF 60,498
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(0]

Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Shum Yip Property
(Continued)

The fair values of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables/the gross contractual amounts of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables as at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$1,892,000.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
Shum Yip Property is as follows:

38. ¥
@)

Beft(E)
W R EME Z2100% KR (£)

RUEE B H - TR BUR - 7T & K E Al RO

ZARE/TBARIE e REMERIBY
A A2 EEA1,892,0007 7T

HRUBREMEZ RS RESTMAT :

HK$’000

FHET

Cash paid EffHRE (60,498)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired Bz e kRS EED 14,251
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents RekBeEBYntFR (GFAKRARE

included in cash flows from investing activities EEZRERE) (46,247)

Since its acquisition, Shum Yip Property has contributed
HK$231,517,000 to the Group’s revenue and HK$55,139,000
to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue and profit of the Group for the year would have
been HK$8,568,319,000 and HK$2,154,647,000, respectively,
based on the management accounts provided by Shum Yip
Property.

On 27 July 2012, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with China (Shenzhen) Hightech Fund Investment
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Hightech Fund”) (Fr B (O%&FI])
EREESIREBRAF), a fellow subsidiary of the Group,
to further acquire the non-controlling interests of Shum Yip
Property of 15% and the shareholder’s loan due by Shum Yip
Property to Shenzhen Hightech Fund at the cash consideration
of HK$12,106,000 (note 42(b)(i)) and HK$78,016,268,
respectively. The acquisition of non-controlling interests was
accounted for as an equity transaction. After the acquisition
of the non-controlling interests, Shum Yip property was 100%
owned by the Group.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$250,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

FIERERAT 2012F 55

BHKBUR FEMEERBEE=-2—=
F+-A=T—"BLEFERAEEZ K&
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HEHREYIBET  ARBREMERE
ERRE AEBFENE R ETES B A
8,568,319,0007% T }.2,154,647,000/% JT °
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(i) Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Richland Development
On 30 November 2012, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Richland Development from independent third
parties. Richland Development directly held a 27.75% equity
interest in Wuai, which was owned by Shum Yip Shumkang
and Shum Yip Shenzhen as to 36% and 18.125%, respectively,
and accounted for by the Group as an investment in an
associate. Wuai became a subsidiary of the Company as a
result of the acquisition of the 100% equity interest in Richland
Development by the Group and was consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on 30 November
2012. The principal activity of Richland Development is
investment holding, and Wuai is principally engaged in
property development, investment and transportation station
management. The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy to expand its business development in the northeast
region of China. The purchase consideration for the acquisition
was in the form of cash amounted to RMB11,167,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$13,898,000) which was fully
paid at the acquisition date.

As part of the acquisition, the Group also paid an
amount of RMB109,508,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$136,293,000) to acquire a shareholder’s loan due by
Richland Development to its previous shareholder.

A gain on bargain purchase of HK$12,044,000 was arisen from
the acquisition, which was resulted from a discount to the assets
obtained given by Richland Development.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest
in Wuai at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
Wuai's identifiable assets.

38. XK E6t(£2)
(i) URHEB BT > 100%M R

R-ZE——F+—A=1+H AEFRABL
FE=HREALITZ100%E - B EITHE
RAERE227.75%K%E MAZE 15 5l BR
FRBRRERIND B HEE36%K%18.125%
Ew THASEEAR —HBE AR ZE
BEAE-AEER-_ZE——+—A=+H
RS B LT 2 100%MREE K BN A
RIZMBRRANGZETFAREB Z AT
R - BEUTZEEEBAREER MAE
FTEREMERE BEREHILEE -ZK
BIOAREBEERENF BRI HE 2 53
RE z —Hp-ZWEZBEERE IR
AN EEZ ARKE11,167,0007T (HHER
#913,898,0007 7T ) * I B A ULHE B BRI R B2
fife

ERIE Y —5H  ARENINEEARE
109,508,0007T (#8557 49136,293,0007% 7t )
LR B LT E R RE 2 REER -

ZW I E L REREFS12,044,0008 7T Th
ABLITHRTHESEEZITEMESE -

AEECEERIFERERNRE Z 7 @5
BEZDBLPIFERAE 2 FE Rk -
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(i) Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Richland Development

(Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Richland Development and Wuai as at the date of acquisition

38. K E6 (&)
(i) WIBBETZ100%RE (&)

REBEBRH BETRREAEINEERS
BZARBENT

were as follows:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
REEER
DNRE
Notes HK$’000
iiks3 THET
Property, plant and equipment M- HERRE 14 371,370
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEAT B 7T & K E b e W58 26,838
Properties under development BRPYE 18 379,603
Investment properties REME 19 1,353,900
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EEY 39,704
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 12,446
Trade payables JE’@NEE%( (367,268)
Other payables and accruals H Al B RE S BT E A (997,031)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FERITREMEE (306,456)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIAE F 34 (68,063)
BRAREINRZAHNEE
Total identifiable net assets at fair value FEARRE 445,043
Non-controlling interests JEIT A #E = (105,137)
Gain on bargain purchase recognised
in other income and gains in the Wiz ek 2 Al K
consolidated income statement MEhHERAZREBENS (12,044)
Satisfied by: AT 75 2 32 A+
Cash BE 13,898
Fair value of a 54.125% equity interest in R EE B RS R E 254.125%
Wouai at the acquisition date /NI ] 313,964
327,862

The fair values of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables/the gross contractual amounts of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables as at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$26,838,000.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$149,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Richland Development
(Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as
follows:

38. K E6 (&)

(ii)

WEBETZ100%KRE (&)

HRRERBZRSREDTAT -

HK$’000

FHET

Cash paid for the acquisition of shares FBBRO XN Z2RE (13,898)

Cash paid for the shareholder’s loan MERRERI N 2B € (136,293)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired Bz e RIREEED 39,704
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Re kB EBYRLIFR

included in cash flows from investing activities (FFARBEREEHZRERE) (110,487)

Since its acquisition, Richland Development and Wuai have
contributed HK$4,370,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of
HK$4,130,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue and profit of the Group for the year would have
been HK$8,644,051,000 and HK$2,124,723,000, respectively,
based on the management accounts provided by Richland
Development and Wuai.

Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Suzhou New
Development and disposal of 30% equity interest in Huizhou
Shum Yip

On 28 September 2012, the Company and Coastal Greenland,
an associate of the Group with a 22.62% equity interest owned
by the Company, entered into an agreement. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company will dispose of its 30% equity interest
in Huizhou Shum Yip Southern Property Development Company
Limited (BN RZEmM A EE R A7) (“Huizhou Shum Yip”)
and the shareholders’ loans due by Huizhou Shum Yip to a
subsidiary of the Group at the consideration of RMB19,949,000
(equivalent to HK$24,830,000) and RMB194,830,876
(equivalent to HK$242,487,000), respectively. At the same time,
the Company will acquire a 100% equity interest in Suzhou
New Development and the shareholders” loans due by Suzhou
New development to Coastal Greenland at the consideration
of RMB157,931,900 (equivalent to HK$196,562,000) and
RMB392,068,100 (equivalent to HK$487,968,000), respectively.
Further details of the transactions were included in the
announcement of the Company made on 28 September 2012.
The above transactions were completed on 5 December 2012.

A gain on bargain purchase of HK$188,542,000 was arisen from
the acquisition, which was resulted from a discount to the assets
obtained given by Coastal Greenland.

(iii)

BEKBUR BSELTRABERBE=Z
——F+ZA=+—HLEFEAAEHEZK
7 B Bk4,370,0007%8 7T & A AR & A B BRE 18
4,130,000/ 7T ©

& HERFEVETT  AREBESETRATIR
H2ERER AEEZFE W Kin FlE
2 Bl £8,644,051,0007 7T }%2,124,723,000
B TT

WM R 2100%KRER HEBEMNRE
230% % FE

RZZ—=—FAA=+/\B KQAEHHE
HeRE(RNEEZHE AR AARQ A
B522.62%M%HE) T3 — 1D s - IRIEZ B
ARRBHEERBEMNREEFHESRA
A ([EMOFRZE]) Z30%M 4 KB RELE
AEE—HHBRARZEEER  REH 5
A AR ¥19,949,0007T (485 724,830,000
BIT) R AR®194,830,8767T (HBE R
242,487,000/ 7T ) © [ B - A R & 4% U B E
I T B R 2 100%0% 1 I % M ¥ 85 R 45 R0
BHEEBREZRREEF RELSRAARE
157,931,9007T (#8771 196,562,0007% 7T ) &
AR %392,068,1007T (15 7487,968,000
BIL) BBRERGZE—THFBEHRA
AN =ZZE—=—FhA-t+N\BHELEZAE
Ne PR FER-_TE——F+-_ARH®
ﬁjzc

ZUW R EEREEEF15188,542,000%8 7T
DEESHECRES THESEEZITEM
B
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 38. K E6 (&)
(iii) Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Suzhou New (i) WBEMHMBR Z100%RER HETMRE
Development and disposal of 30% equity interest in Huizhou Z30% MR AE (&)
Shum Yip (Continued)
The transactions were accounted for as an asset exchange, ZERXGIMEEEERIBARR AR AFTE
where the assets obtained and assets given up by the Company BRBEERMREZEEHARTHKEHZ
were measured at fair values on the date of completion. NAERE-
Fair value
recognised
BRZAAHE
Notes HK$’000
iiks3 FHET
Assets obtained: FESZEE:
Property, plant and equipment M- HE KRR 14 965,243
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FE{J3IE « 5] & K& H ftb JE K 15,462
Investment properties REWE 19 795,299
Trade receivables JE W BR 3K 3,327
Inventories 7E 1,764
Completed properties held for sale REFEZE BRI E 257,632
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE 34 35,848
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEBY 13,835
Trade payables J& 5 BR 3K (28,798)
Other payables and accruals Hith N FIE R BT ER (210,167)
Shareholders’ loan R E K (487,968)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SFRRTREMEE (734,314)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 34 (246,135)
Total identifiable net assets of
Suzhou New Development MM ER A BN EEFEERE 381,028
Shareholders’ loans transferred to the Group ~ HE T AKE 2 KRR E K 487,968
Increase in investment in an associate R—EEE AR &L 44,462
Total fair values of the assets obtained FESEEZ A EBE 913,458
Assets given up: FREZEE:
Fair value of 30% equity interest in
Huizhou Shum Yip RBINREZ30%REZ A RE 4,325
Shareholders’ loans transferred to Coastal
Greenland ERTLEKERBEZRREER 242,487
Fair value of a 22.62% equity interest in RERIN T B R 222.62% MR HE 2
Suzhou New Development NRE 60,891
Net cash consideration ReREFHE 417,213
Total fair values of the assets given up FREEEZAABEERE 724,916
Gain on bargain purchase recognised
in other income and gains in the NG N Er A PN
consolidated income statement FMERERZ REBERSG (188,542)
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38. K E6 (&)
(iii) WEBERMNFER Z2100%RERHEEZTMNEE

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(iii) Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Suzhou New

Development and disposal of 30% equity interest in Huizhou
Shum Yip (Continued)

The fair values/gross contractual amounts of the trade
receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$3,327,000 and
HK$15,462,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$437,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions is as
follows:

2Z30%MRFE (&)

RIKEBEE BREXREENRE Tk
HEMEWRZREZ ARE BEHNESEI A
3,327,000/ 7T }&2.15,462,000/% JT °

ANEBEF U TBREEE437,0008 T2 X 5K
Ao ZERPRACD RERA Wt R ARG Rt
ATEREAS A

ZEWBEZHEREDTOT -

HK$’000

FHET

Net cash consideration BEREFEE (417,213)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired Bz e RIREEED 13,835
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Re kB EBYRLFR

included in cash flows from investing activities (FFARBEREEHZRERE) (403,378)

Since its acquisition, Suzhou New Development has
contributed HK$7,776,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of
HK$12,034,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue and profit of the Group for the year would have
been HK$8,665,937,000 and HK$1,931,374,000, respectively,
based on the management accounts provided by Suzhou New
Development.

BEWEAR HNFEREREBEEZE-Z—=
FH+ZA=T—HLEFEAREE K=
B 87,776,000 7T & B#R 6w A B BB 18
12,034,000/ 7T

e HFERFEHEST - ARRERN T ERIZH
ZEEBIRE ARB 2 FE W Rin A ES 5
#8,665,937,00078 70 %.1,931,374,000/ 7T ©
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(i) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 19) and
property, plant and equipment under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from two
to eighteen years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

39. WEFHNZHE

(0]

fERBEE
BEQLENTH  AEBBLETREADE
(HiEE19) R - WS RR 1 - AHSE AH
EE+\ETZ - AHERT—RERAS %
SR E S R TR T % B 5 A
MEBRS -

R-ZE——F+-A=+—08 XEERNUT
HEERZ T REEERNERRZED
FEW R Az T

Group

rEH
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FR 338,422 351,647
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEENF (BREEEME) 521,177 499,728
After five years B E A F 173,458 185,485
1,033,057 1,036,860

(i) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from three to nineteen years.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company had
total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(i) ERHEF

AEBRBQEMEELHBAETOE  WE
HREER=FETNFI F-

R-B——F+-A=+—B KEBRARQ
AR A TN EAR g 2 R A BUB & & A A fE R
Rz E DR A AR ER AT

Group Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT FHET FER FHET
Within one year —FR 5,148 8,179 660 1,825
In the second to fifth years, ~ E_FZEFRF
inclusive (BEERME) 27 11,938 - 608
5,175 20,117 660 2,433
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. B AR
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B £ X EE39G) A it 2 48 S A L) AN ¥R
39(ii) above, the Group and the Company had the following HAR AEERARRZEREENT
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
Group Company
AEE AN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
F85 FB7 Fi85 FiE
Commitments in respect of
acquisition of land and
buildings, and development FRUEE T R g F
costs attributable to properties AR ERBDYE
under development: BRMA 2 ALE
Contracted, but not provided for EREL AR ] 4,262,180 5,683,011 - -
Authorised, but not
contracted for BRI R ARET A 502,724 1,641,265 - =
4,764,904 7,324,276 - -
In addition, the Group’s share of a jointly-controlled entity’s own AN W RER A Al 7 AN B S (G — R E i )
capital commitments, which are not included in the above, are as BERAG 7ENFEEDT :
follows:
Group
REE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiB FiB
Commitments in respect of provision of
development service: He f 5 3 IR TS 2 AR
Contracted, but not provided for ERE AL 539,730 570,030
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41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided

41. RAREE
RBEBMR TERMBREPREXARE

for in the financial statements were as follows: n
Group Company
rEE ¥ YN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET FHET FET
(i) Guarantees given to banks
for credit facilities Gy ANBEAREREER
granted to subsidiaries MERITIEH 2 IR - - 730,000 1,604,070

(ii)

The guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to the
subsidiaries by the Company will expire on 18 April 2016.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has given guarantees to a
maximum extent of approximately HK$1,948,307,000 (2011:
HK$1,401,107,000) to banks for housing loans extended by the
banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default
of the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group
is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal title of the related properties. The
Group’s guarantee period commences from the date of grant
of the relevant mortgage loan and ends after the buyer of the
Group's properties obtained the individual property ownership
certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any
accrued interest and penalty and therefore no provision has
been made in connection with the guarantees.
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41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 41. RREE(E&)

(iii) Fancheng Property Development Co., Limited (the “Plaintiff”)

had issued a claim dated 27 August 2002 against Shum Yip
Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Shenzhen”, renamed
as Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd. in 2007),
a subsidiary of the Company, for breach of the terms of a
cooperation agreement entered into by the Plaintiff and Shum
Yip Shenzhen dated 8 July 1991. The Plaintiff claimed a total
compensation of approximately RMB170 million against
Shum Yip Shenzhen, which had lodged a counter-claim of
RMB1.3 million against the Plaintiff on 22 October 2002.
The Plaintiff agreed to partially waive the claim on 4 January
2008. The remaining claim was RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$45,432,000).

(i) ARDEEREBRAR ([RENDER-ZE
Z3

—FENAZ+EBRARAZHBRARFRE
@8 ORYIDEBRAR (DREZRI] -R=F
SLFESERRERMAME (£8)BRAF)
ERREBRERIN—ANL—FLANBET
2 R Z R AIRZERIIR B RE - R
HRRFERINREE £ AR170,000,000
TORERYNERZ=ZZEE_F+A=+=H
HRERERZEREART,300,0007T ° R &
R_ZEENF—AMNARSHEBIRE-
%N RE B ARK40,000,0007T (44 & R
45,432,000% 7T ) °

On 23 December 2009, the High Court of Guangdong Province RZZBENF+-A-+=H ERE5&
(the “Guangdong High Court”) overruled both the claim of the i (TERS ) BERE 2 RERRER
Plaintiff and the counter-claim of Shum Yip Shenzhen. On 2 NZRRE-R=ZZ—ZEF-_F=-B REM

February 2010, the Plaintiff appealed to the Supreme People’s
Court of the PRC and affirmed part of the original claims of
RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$29,530,800).
On 11 February 2011, the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC
overruled the judgement of the Guangdong High Court and
the case was remanded to the Guangdong High Court. As at
the date of this report, the case was still subject to the final
judgement of the Guangdong High Court.

As advised by the Company’s Hong Kong lawyers, pursuant
to a deed (the “Deed”) entered into on 12 February 1997 by
Shum Yip Holdings as covenanter in favour of the Company as
covenantee in connection with the listing of the Company, the
Company could claim indemnity from Shum Yip Holdings if the
Plaintiff is successful in its claim against Shum Yip Shenzhen on
the grounds that Shum Yip Shenzhen had materially breached
the cooperation agreement, and the circumstances which gave
rise to the above litigation were already in existence at the time
of execution of the Deed.

FREEEARERREL EF THEBREH
WA RBREANRE26,000,0007T (KHE
729,530,800 L) - R=_T——F A +—
B +BEsARERKEERSFRZ AR
Mt RWEOERRER - RAREBH
I RNERBEER =T EL 2 SRR HIRHIT

BARBZEBRIMEHZER REFRE
(%£E) (ERRFEAHEA)R—NANEF R
TZARARR (ERRHEZ&A) 2 Fzm
I 2 2% ([%RE] - HEEARR LT
BT 2R MERSERERIZBRP A
RERBEERA EHERRIEMEBFR K
REA UL EIRE (RB) BRAE M5B
EFRZBERANEITZZERFEFE-
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

R.BHAERS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) Ei

financial statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

EPBHRREMAEOEF R ZZHIN F

PR EET BT ETIATEARR S

Group
TEE
2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$"000
B 5 FExT TAT
(1) Shum Yip Holdings, the
immediate holding company: HEERARRE (£E) :
Rental expenses paid ENEESHS (i) 1,989 5,479
(2) Associates: iR /NE
Sales of products HEEM (ii) 67,238 -
Purchase of properties BEYE (iii) - 721,203
Interest income F B U A 17,825 5,848
(3) A jointly-controlled entity: — AR EE:
Interest income (note 28) B YA (FKzE28) 198,235 119,389
(4) Interest expenses paid to YN —EREKBARZ
a fellow subsidiary BRI (iv) 17,711 =
(5) Management fee from *xE—RRARZRMBAGTZ
a fellow subsidiary EEE 6,147 -
Notes: B &

(i)  The rentals were recognised at prices based on mutual agreement (i)

between the parties.

(i)  The sales to the associates were made according to the published (ii)

prices and conditions offered to the major customers of the Group

(iii) The purchase of properties from an associate for the year ended 31 (iii)

December 2011 was made at a price mutually agreed between the

parties.

(iv) Interest expenses were calculated for the amount which the Group (iv)

had borrowed from a fellow subsidiary. The interest rates charged

for the balance with the fellow subsidiary was disclosed in note 33.

FIERERAT 2012FFH

B TRE FHEERE 2 BRHER

mEERRZHENRBRETFASEIER
FZBETIRERRGHEL-

BEZ
5%

E——F+t_A=t—HUEFER—MH
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AR ©

BRZMEDZINIAERE 2B

AEEE—HMRRWBRARBAZRIBAATE
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties

(i) On 27 July 2012, the Group acquired a 15% equity interest
in Shum Yip Property from a fellow subsidiary of the Group
at a consideration of HK$12,106,000, based on a valuation
report prepared by an independent valuer. Further details
of the transaction are included in note 38(i) to the financial
statements.

(i) On 28 September 2012, the Group and Coastal Greenland,
an associate of the Group, entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which, the Group will dispose of its 30%
equity interest in Huizhou Shum Yip and the shareholder’s
loans owed by Huizhou Shum Yip to Coastal Greenland.
At the same time, the Group will acquire a 100% equity
interest in Suzhou New Development and the shareholders’
loan owed by Suzhou New Development from Coastal
Greenland. The transactions were completed on 5
December 2012. Further details of the transactions were
included in note 38(iii) to the financial statements.

(iii) During the year, the Group has received an advance
payment of HK$338,842,000 from Kezhigu, a fellow
subsidiary of the Group, for the purchase of certain
properties from the Group (notes 33 and 46 (ii)).

(c) Commitments with related parties:

On 1 May 2008, the Company entered into lease agreements for
periods ending 30 April 2013 with Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited, the immediate holding company. The amount of lease
expenses for the year is included in note 42(a) to the financial
statement. The Group expects total lease expenses in 2013 to be
approximately HK$660,000.

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Details of the Group’s amounts due from its jointly-
controlled entities are disclosed in notes 21 and 28 to the
financial statements.

(ii) Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its associates as
at the end of the reporting period are included in notes 22
and 33 to the financial statements.

R.BBERS (E)

(b)y HtUEABLTXS

(i) RZZE——FtA-++tH AEFAK
SBz—HRRWE A FWKEREE
Z15%R%#E - R B 12,106,000 7T * It
THAR AR — 42 %8 37k (B R P 4 B 2 1 B 5]
EMETE - ZR B 2E—FH BRI
] M EE38(0)

(i) R=ZFE—=—FNA=-1+/\B AEEHEY
5£§@§i($g.2%5%@7)§fﬁ*
DiHE Bl AEEHALEZERE
ﬁm/\ﬁ/\im/ 3 230%M% 1 J BN R
EFERZIRRER AR AEEKR
BB EERBEWBEERMNTERE Z2100%8
EREFNTERMAER ZRRER - %F
RGENR_ZE——F+_-_AAHTEK-
ZERG 2 E—SHBENIEREM
FE38(iii)A

(i) FA AEERRAAEEBEEE TWE
(FizE33 R46(ii)) 2 — MR ZME R R
2 AU ERFE 1 38338,842,00078 7T °

(c) EREAETT 2 A :

RZZFZN\FHA—B AR BEEZERA
AR (EE)BRARGIVEE-T—=F
@H:wLEIJtE;@FHﬁZTH%?Tﬁ cFNHEERE
SR AR B RERM F42(2) - ANEBTEH
RZZE—=F7H=5 Faﬂii%@aﬁmﬁ%ooooﬁé
=

(d) HEEHT 2 REE
(i) AEEEKEREHFERBZFBH
T B 75 ¥R 3R T 5E21 K28 °

(i) AEEEY TEMBEQRREZFE
BRI SRR M 5E22 %33 ©
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (Continued)

(e)

(iii) Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its fellow

(iv)

(vi)

subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period are
included in notes 28 and 33 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s an amount due to a related party as
at the end of the reporting period are included in notes 33
to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to non-controlling
shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Group as at the
end of the reporting period are included in notes 28 and 33
to the financial statements.

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group had an amount due to the immediate
holding company and the ultimate holding company of
HK$14,158,000 (2011: Nil) and HK$64,579,000 (2011:
HK$54,641,000), respectively. The amounts are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Q2.BHERS (&)
d) HEE

ZAREEER  (F)

(iii) RIREHR  AEE R R RKH B
NAIRIBZ F BN B RRM F28 K%
33

HIR » AR SR BB — % Bt
BN R M R3S

m>é$%
* i
ﬁ

(v) RBEHR AEERK EAAEES
TFH B AR Z IR AR R R Z s 1B
7B 75 ¥R 3R B 728 33 °

(vi) IR E MBI KRATIETE NS E '
NEEERARREEERARZHIEA
7 Bl 14,158,000 T (=T — —
) %64,579,0008 0 (=T ——F:
54,641,000 70 ) © 7% 5 K IE A& EHE A
RENWEETERBEH -

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AEETEEBASZME
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Short term employee benefits FEEES R 11,026 7,908
Post-employment benefits RAREA 2,412 1,142
Equity-settled share option expense VARR 7R 32 A~ 22 B s 1 el 2 4,752 8,410
Total compensation paid to key
management personnel ENEZEERAEMEEHE 18,190 17,460
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EEMeRERTTRAEME 2E—FF15
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements. E NP eI
The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(1), AR LA (2)(1) (@)4) * (@)(5) * (b)(i) K (b)(iii) &

(@)(4), (a)(5), (b)(i) and (b)(iii) above also constitute connected

transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FIERERAT 2012FFH

ZBB N Z 5 EK LR FE14AZFFRE
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

43. ZFEERIzEMI A

REBEMR ZXBERIF R TAZERE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: W
2012 —E-CF
Group
rEE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss — held Loans and financial
Financial assets LREE for trading receivables assets Total
BARE
tEZ
SREE ERR AHEEZ
KRS FE LB X SREE Mgt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THERT TERT TERT
Loans to a jointly-controlled entity 4 T — & RZEHIEE 2 &%

(note 28) (KIzE28) - 2,148,394 - 2,148,394
Other long term assets (note 25) HiuREEE (KizE25) - 12,439 - 12,439
Available-for-sale investments B ERE - - 52,471 52,471
Trade receivables JE s B 3R - 254,857 - 254,857
Deposits and other receivables

(note 28) A& R E bt sRE (FisE28) - 879,089 - 879,089
Equity investments at fair value BREREANEFELZ

through profit or loss PR & 10,296 - - 10,296
Pledged deposits EEFFR - 267,228 - 267,228
Restricted cash ZREIRE - 304,528 - 304,528
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEED - 6,734,052 - 6,734,052

10,296 10,600,587 52,471 10,663,354
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. REERHB2EMIA (£F)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERAR BEEHEAF ZERTAZREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: W ()
(Continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
Financial liabilities cRasE cost Total
L # 8
A ER
SRBaE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables FE A BR 3K 703,486 703,486
Other payables (note 33) b & 3038 (B5E33) 3,053,729 3,053,729
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings TERITREMEE 22,210,362 22,210,362
Due to the immediate holding company JET BT IR A RIFRIE 14,158 14,158
Due to the ultimate holding company A R AR AR IR A R FRIE 64,579 64,579
Loans from associates (note 33) Bt N R B (F5E33) 325,273 325,273
26,371,587 26,371,587
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

43. REER 2T A (&

REBEMR ZXBRIF R TAZERE

W (&)

(Continued)
2011 —EB——F
Group
rEE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss — held maturity Loans and financial
Financial assets STREE for trading  investments  receivables assets Total
BEiRER
BARME
HTEZ
PREE SEES Rk AMftHEZ
—FER S IR E & LS AR 3R SREE et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET  FET  FEr  FAT AR
Loans to associates BTBENRIZER - = 234,955 - 234,955
Other long term assets (note 25) HiaREEE (KizE25) - - 46,849 - 46,849
Loans to a jointly-controlled entity ~ # T —F & RZEHIEE 2
(note 28) SR (F7E28) - = 864,224 = 864,224
Held-to-maturity investment HEEIHRE = 387,968 = = 387,968
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE - - - 29,913 29,913
Trade receivables JEUBR K - - 143,407 - 143,407
Deposits and other receivables HEE: %0168
(note 28) (fftz£28) - = 669,885 = 669,885
Equity investments at fair value BREREANEFELZ
through profit or loss IR & 19,487 - - - 19,487
Pledged deposits BHEAEFR - - 12,427 - 12,427
Restricted cash RRHFS - - 126,425 - 126,425
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY = = 5,097,524 = 5,097,524
19,487 387,968 7,195,696 29,913 7,633,064
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. REFHER2ERMIA (&)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial R|ERAR BEEHEAF ZERTAZEREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: W ()
(Continued)
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
Financial liabilities EaA =R cost Total
LA §8 B 7R
FTER
TRBE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables JRE A R 7R 264,717 264,717
Other payables H it Ji& 15 FR I8 2,121,551 2,121,551
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings AFERITREMER 16,479,287 16,479,287
Due to the ultimate holding company JE A R AR AR IR R R FRIE 54,641 54,641
Loans from associates iR R/NET N E 286,303 286,303
19,206,499 19,206,499
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

43. REERNzE®MI A (&)

REBEMR ZXBRIF R TAZERE
W (&)

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(Continued)
Company
KRR
2012 2011
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through Available- through Available-
profit or for-sale profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss - held  Loans and financial loss - held maturity  Loans and financial
Financial assets SHEE for trading  receivables assets Total  fortrading investments  receivables assets Total
EBREH EhER
RARE BRAAE
HEYA it P4 A
SHEE ERR HEZ tREE BEE ERR HEZ
-BERE  BRIE  SREE ax -BfxZ HBRE  EYIE  SREE 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TER TER TR TR TER TER TR TR
Held-to-maturity investment HEEIHRE - - - - - 387,968 = - 387,968
Available-for-sale investments M ER - - 1,720 1,720 - - = 1,720 1,720
Equity investments at fair value ~ BBIERRAALEHE ZRE

through profit or loss #E 10,296 - - 10,296 8,027 = = = 8,027
Deposits and other receivables HEES S L ES ]

(note 28) (BtzE28) - 31,772 - 31,772 = = 7,710 = 7,710
Due from subsidiaries G NS - 5,832,920 - 5832920 - — 4,740,097 — 4,740,097
Cash and cash equivalents BeRALEEM - 794,206 - 794,206 - - 1,255,619 - 1,255,619

10,296 6,658,898 1,720 6,670,914 8,027 387,968 6,003,426 1,720 6,401,141
Company
YN
2012 2011

Financial Financial

liabilities liabilities

at amortised at amortised
Financial liabilities cRAE cost Total cost Total

LA 85 R A DA SR AR

FHER sHEH
cREE #t eREE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FHET THET
Other payables (note 33) H o fE A 208 (FEE33) - - 326 326
Loans from associates (note 33) BaENEER (M5E33) 29,543 29,543 29,213 29,213

Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings FREHRAREMEER 7,165,161 7,165,161 6,859,106 6,859,106
Due to the ultimate holding

company JE A< B AR PR AR 1R B SR 12,204 12,204 5,207 5,207
Due to subsidiaries AL EINGE S 204,790 204,790 156,983 156,983

7,411,698 7,411,698 7,050,835 7,050,835
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the

U AREBERDLESERERE
AEERAAFZEMIAZEEERAREN

Company’s financial instruments are as follows: Ik
Group AEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE ARE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT FHEx FH&T
Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents RehBE2FEED 6,734,052 5,097,524 6,734,052 5,097,524
Restricted cash PR HI13E & 304,528 126,425 304,528 126,425
Pledged deposits — long term EHERFR KB 137,323 12,427 137,323 12,427
Pledged deposits — short term BT R - 129,905 129,905 -
Loans to associates BTHE R ZER - 234,955 - 234,955
Other long term assets HtnRHEAEE 12,439 46,849 12,439 46,849
Loans to a jointly-controlled %@?’* MAREGERZ
entity B 2,148,394 864,224 2,148,394 864,224
Trade receivables JE U BR 3K 254,857 143,407 254,857 143,407
Deposits and other receivables 7] & [ H fth F& Y5118 879,089 669,885 879,089 669,885
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 52,471 29,913 52,471 29,913
Equity investments at fair value ZBEZZAALBITEZ
through profit or loss IRERE 10,296 19,487 10,296 19,487
Held-to-maturity investment BFAEEIHEE - 387,968 - 322,203
10,663,354 7,633,064 10,663,354 7,567,299
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade payables FE AR K 703,486 264,717 703,486 264,717
Other payables E i jE 5 3R 3,053,729 2,121,551 3,053,729 2,121,551
Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings FTERITREMEE 22,210,362 16,479,287 22,210,362 16,479,287
Due to the immediate holding
company FE BB IR A R 5K IE 14,158 = 14,158 -
Due to the ultimate holding
company JE A B 42 IR R R R IE 64,579 54,641 64,579 54,641
Loans from associates F/NEIN=E 325,273 286,303 325,273 286,303
26,371,587 19,206,499 26,371,587 19,206,499
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(Continued)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the

4. A2ARERIABERER (£)

AEERARRzZEMTAZREERI BN

Company’s financial instruments are as follows: (Continued) T: (%)
Company ¥ NN
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE ARE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T T FET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Held-to-maturity investment BFEZEIHEE - 387,968 - 322,203
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 794,206 1,255,619 794,206 1,255,619
Deposits and other receivables 5] & & H b f& YR IE 31,772 7,710 31,772 7,710
Equity investments at fair value EiBIEm LA ER
through profit or loss IR & 10,296 8,027 10,296 8,027
Due from subsidiaries J&E W B 8 A R FR 1B 5,832,920 4,740,097 5,832,920 4,740,097
Available-for-sale investments At H&E & E 1,720 1,720 1,720 1,720
6,670,914 6,401,141 6,670,914 6,335,376
Financial liabilities o= =
Due to subsidiaries JE 1B B8 & B3R IE 204,790 156,983 204,790 156,983
Other payables H At fE A 5RIR - 326 - 326
Loans from associates /NI = 29,543 29,213 29,543 29,213
Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings STERITREMBE 7,165,161 6,859,106 7,165,161 6,859,106
Due to the ultimate holding
company JEAS R AR AR A A 12,204 5,207 12,204 5,207
7,411,698 7,050,835 7,411,698 7,050,835
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, the current portion of
pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, an amount due to the
immediate holding company, an amount due to the ultimate holding
company, loans from associates and financial assets included in
investments in subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of non-current portion of pledged deposits, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and a held-to-maturity
investment have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments on similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

FIERERAT 2012FFH

44.

DRBERDABERER (£)

SREERABHAABRITEAEES (BN
S A2 5H 1 B 51 ) 2 PO TP 2 5 R T SRR T
AMSEAR ERA T ARBRYANE
#ATHE

ReLBREZEY EERERZAHARN R
RS - IR - FERTERE ST ATRRNFIR 5T &
REMEKRFIAZ A E - s AR MR FRIE R
EETBERAZSRMEE  BY BB AR RKE
PN B PEAR X B SRR ~ JE T S A AR A B IR
BERREREAARMBARZIREZSRE
EzAnBRARAERE T2ERZETA
EHAEIE-

EERERZIENARO A ERTREMEE
kA2 HREZ ARERAEZE T ABE
B EERR R EAD B2 RITH R G E
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LEHREREZ RAREBEDNRET S RESE -
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY U ARBERAABESRER (&Z)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2012, the Group held the following financial RZB-——F+-—A=+—H AEEFEUT
instruments measured at fair value: BEARBEFEZERMIA:
Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2012: RZZE——F+-_A=+—HEAREBEFEZE
B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—B $£=E F=B ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FExT FExT FET
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 32,773 - - 32,773
Equity investments at fair value BHBE=IZALBTEZ
through profit or loss IR E 10,296 - - 10,296
43,069 - - 43,069
As at 31 December 2012, the Company held the following financial R=B-—_FF+_AZ+—R ARAHEAUT
el AN = =T o
instruments measured at fair value: BRARERAEZEMTA:
Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2012: R-F-——F+ A=+ BEAREHEZER
=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
] E=FB E=F st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FExT FHET
Available-for-sale investments i ERE 1,720 - - 1,720
Equity investments at fair value EiBIEZRIZARETE 2
through profit or loss R % & 10,296 - - 10,296
12,016 - - 12,016
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivative
financial instruments, comprise interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity investments. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest
rate fluctuations of its bank borrowings. Interest on these bank
borrowings is computed based on market rates. In the prior year, the
Group entered into interest rate swaps, in which the Group agreed
to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-
upon notional principal amount. These swaps are designated to
hedge underlying debt obligations.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters
to decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible interest
rate risk that may arise.

On 31 December 2012, if the interest rate of bank borrowings
had increased/decreased by 0.5% and all other factors remained
unchanged, the profit after tax for the year of the Group and the
Company would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$50,235,000 (2011: HK$47,137,000) and HK$31,855,000 (2011:
HK$28,017,000), respectively.

FIERERAT 2012FFH

45. BB EBERE 2 B RBUER

AEEZIZERMTA (TEFETESRTA)E
FEABRTREMEES RERBASEEMWARK
BIRE HEEMTIAZIEMABRIRAEEEY
EREe ARERNAZREAMEREENEE

DIENE 5ok B H 7% 2 U R R R e < BR K -

AEBz BT AMEEZ EZEBAFIRRR
SNERER EERE  RBESRR EERERKR -
EEERAVHTEEELERKR 2 SBRE B
R o

kS

AEENNZEARTERERITERE ZHERE N
EE - ZERITIEEZMENRETISMEGE -
RUAEFE REBFTZANEREHAL Btk &
SERENFERRRBREDEZENEELE
B ESHNESRZIEERZER -%FEY
BHARIEEREMEBEEREEMAIIL -

AR B S 15 4B AT Al PTB B B9 A K & B LURTE B &
FEH AT AL E A AT BEF K E R o
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47,137,000/ 7t ) 31,855,000 7t ( =T — —
4 :28,017,000/8 7T ) °
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45. BEEREE 2B MRBEK (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in RMB
and the Group's assets held and all of its committed borrowings of
the Group are mainly denominated in RMB and US$. During the
year, RMB appreciated compared to US$ and HK$. Management
believes this an appreciation will not have any negative effect on the
Group. Hence, the Group has not adopted any financial instruments
for hedging purposes. However, the Group will constantly assess
the foreign exchange risk it encounters so as to decide the hedging
policy required to hedge against the possible foreign exchange risk
that may arise.

On 31 December 2012, if HKD had appreciated by 5% against
RMB/US$ and all other factors remained unchanged, the profit after
tax for the year of the Group and the Company could have increased
by HK$223,901,579 (2011: HK$235,650,767) and HK$11,460,103
(2011: HK$82,900,539), respectively. The change is mainly due to
the net value changes of the exchange gains in US$-denominated
bank borrowings and RMB-denominated trade payables, after
offsetting the exchange loss in RMB-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets, trade
and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are
disclosed in note 41(i) to the financial statements.

To manage the risk, deposits are mainly placed with licensing
banks which are all high credit quality financial institutions. The
Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties
except for the sales of properties. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales are made to buyers with appropriate financial
strength and appropriate percentage of down payments. The
Group would not release the property ownership certificates to the
buyers before the buyers fully settle the payment. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 27 to the
financial statements.

S E B

REBEBOALIRERERARE  KAEHE
MBBEERMECAREEDEZNARERE
THME-FR ARBEEXTREBELAE -EHEE
RE WHESAEETEERNEEZE - Eit-
ANER BB AR A E 2 5 T RS H R - AT
AN 5 (8] 5 15 48 5T (i H P& B A9 S E BB PA R OR TE
Fft 5 B39 70 TR BR A S5 )b T R 2E A O AT B SN /R B

RZE——FE+-_A=+—H MAETHARKE
S ETLHEY  RATAEMERRIFAE  A|AX
EBRAR R ZANFERTE ST A AEE 5 Bl
hn223,901,579% 7t (—ZZ——% :235,650,76778
70) 11,460,103 7t (= F — — % : 82,900,539
BIr) cEEBEERUETFENRITEERAA
REFENEMNERZELRSELEUAREE
2R RIRSEEY) 2B N EIBEE 2 S 8))FRE -

EERE

AEBEZEMEE (PEREIRSEEY Al #
HEZCMEE BRE SRR KEMEIFIE)
ZIEERBREHFEXRMAK Mo ERHER 2R
BeEEREETAZEAE AEETEER
MBERMEANSEERR SEFERMEHRE
B 341 ()R AR EE -

REBRAR RNEBTERFRFARRRT K
EHABEEAENSREE - ARBREMSZ R
BEEZE=TETRS HEHEWEAPISN - &
SECETBRRBRAAGEEMBEN RIN
HEBDLERNFNERELEE HEREH
BENFRE AEENEREEHEER - AKE
TR FE A E i BE A2 Fr DA B AR ERERUR A #5 B Uk 13 780
HRFRIE < SN - NSRBI E BB = A (E A B9 R
TR A B 258 - AR LN AT B 2 88 1EH = 49
EVREEE - AEET EERNEREREERR
MAEHNERSMIZERZHFRER -

ERRBUEFRAEENAREEERRNEME
BB 75 SR MY wE27 4R R o
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45. BEEREE 2B MRBEK (£)
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk i B 1 R B

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current EASEARGEEREEIHNRDE BRFRIEL
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a mBMERE - AREEEEBEREHRRHAR
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the TER #RESRBRERBERE 2 FE- 88
use of short and long term bank loans. Through maintaining a BEEEREABRIESEKT AEEAH
reasonable proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group is REBBZUBREE

able to meet its ongoing financial needs.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end FEBZzeRBEENRSHRZIBHERMDT
of the reporting period is as follows:

Group rE
2012
Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years three years three years Total
RER —FUR —EZF ZEZE ZENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TR TER TR
Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings STERIREMEE 9,951 10,146,323 8,927,640 3,175,023 2,225,974 24,484,911
Trade payables &R - 703,486 - - - 703,486
Other payables Eit MR - 3,053,729 - - - 3,053,729
Due to the immediate holding
company RRNEEERAGRE 14,158 - - - - 14,158
Due to the ultimate holding
company BRREERRAEHE 64,579 - - - - 64,579
Loans from associates BEARER 325,273 - - - - 325,273
Total @t 413,961 13,903,538 8,927,640 3,175,023 2,225,974 28,646,136
2011
Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years three years three years Total
REX —EHR —E2F ZE=% =ENE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TER TEL TER TEL

Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings TERTRAMEES 9,871 5,677,223 3,276,362 6,239,163 2,982,284 18,184,903
Trade payables &R - 264,717 - - - 264,717
Other payables Hi A = 2,121,551 = = = 2,121,551
Due to the ultimate holding

company R REERARNEA 54,641 - - - - 54,641
Loans from associates BANFIER 286,303 - - - - 286,303
Total &t 350,815 8,003,491 3,276,362 6,239,163 2,982,284 20,912,115
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45. BEEREE 2B MRBEK (£)
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RENERE R (F)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the ARBZzeMBERNRESHRZBBBERMDT

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Company AAF
2012
Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years three years three years Total
BREX —FHR —EZF ZEZE ZERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER TAn FhR Thn TR
Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings FERTREMEE - 1,161,372 3,774,444 2,633,477 - 7,569,293
Loans from associates BENAER 29,543 - - - - 29,543

Due to the ultimate holding
company RRZEERARRE 12,204 - - - - 12,204
Due to subsidiaries EMHELRNE 204,790 - - - - 204,790
Total @t 246,537 1,161,372 3,774,444 2,633,477 - 7,815,830

Guarantees given to banks
for credit facilities RRBARERZEE
granted to subsidiaries MmRiTEL 2 B

(note 41(7) (FizE41() - - - - 730,000 730,000
2011
Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years three years three years Total
REX —FHUR —EZF ZEZE =ENE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL TAT TATL THTL TARL
Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings STERTRAMEE - 480,149 943,125 3,644,799 2,440,293 7,508,366
Other payables Rt 508 - 326 - - - 326
Loans from associates BENFIER 29,213 - - - - 29,213

Due to the ultimate holding
company RRREERRFRE 5,207 = = = - 5,207
Due to subsidiaries ANk INGES 156,983 - - - - 156,983
Total @it 191,403 480,475 943,125 3,644,799 2,440,293 7,700,095

Guarantees given to banks
for credit facilities REBARAERZEE
granted to subsidiaries fmR T 2 E R
(note 41(i) (HEE416) - 1,604,070 - - - 1,604,070
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45. BEEREE 2B MRBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk

The equity price risk of the Group mainly arises from the changes
in market prices for held-for-trading equity investments. The
book values of this type of financial assets held by the Group are
recognised according to market quotes as at the end of the reporting
period.

On 31 December 2012, if the price of listed equity securities held
by the Group had increased/decreased by 10%, and all other factors
remained unchanged and excluding tax items, the book values of the
listed equity securities of the Group and the Company would have
increased/decreased by HK$1,030,000 (2011: HK$1,948,000) and
HK$1,030,000 (2011: HK$802,000), respectively.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to
ensure the financing capabilities of the Company in running its
operation on a going concern basis, to maintain an optimal capital
structure, to reduce capital cost and to maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately
according to the specific features of the risks of its assets and the
changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments
in dividend distribution, injections and repayments of capital
by shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to
maintain an optimal capital structure of the Company.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debts
divided by equity attributable to owners of the parent. The Group's
policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. Net debts
are interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted cash. The gearing ratios
as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

1R 18 L IR
AEEZRERBRIZERERFEXIRGREZ

mEHH - Jlt;*éEEEZlSElﬁ“ﬁZ/i\EEEF‘ZEEE
ETREBENREHR 2 H5REER

RZE——F+-_A=+—RH WAEEHEEZ
ETRAEBESEZER EHTHKI0% MAEHE
ﬁtlﬁiﬂ%%T (T EERE) AEBRAK
RNElZ EMRARESFZEEER S I m R
1,030,000/%8 7t (=& —— 4% : 1,948,000/ 7t) &
1,030,000/ 7T ( =& ——4 : 802,000/ 7T) ©

EXEHE
AEEEAEERRZBRNREARAZEBE
BENABE IS BISE B EREET W e M
FELEHNEARE BRI EARARERREE
RAAE -

REERE RS EEZ AR RSELERR

THRZEHEEHHEBERRBETEERR
B FBRABEREDIK REETE REREARRE
T AEBEERBARA ZERRBHEITE
BAEIKF -

AEBEERERBBLE (BFERRAG DA
A ARG ER) EEEEAR - AEEZ BRI
BRABEERERFEREKT - FERFRIR
TREMEERRERREEEY BEMFRR
EXRHRE - RMEMRZEABBELERAT :

Group NEH
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

(note 31) AERRTTREMEE (KFE31) 22,210,362 16,479,287
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 30) BeoReRREEEY (KTiE30) (6,734,052) (5,097,524)
Pledged deposits — long term (note 30) [ RER Y *ﬁ,ﬁﬂ (FF3E30) (137,323) (12,427)
Pledged deposits — short term (note 30) B F R — 5 8 (Fi7E30) (129,905) -
Restricted cash (note 30) BRI (FFE30) (304,528) (126,425)
Net loans FE N 14,904,554 11,242,911
Equity attributable to owners of the parent NAER ANEAER 17,547,896 15,543,379
Gearing ratio BERBEEE 85% 72%
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(if)

On 17 January 2013, an acquisition agreement was entered
into between the Group and Shum Yip Holdings. The Group has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital
of Shenzhen Silicon Valley Investment Limited (“Shenzhen
Silicon Valley”) from Shum Yip Holdings at a consideration to be
satisfied by way of allotment and issue of consideration shares
to Shum Yip Holdings. The fair value of the consideration will be
determined on the completion date of the acquisition. Shenzhen
Silicon Valley is engaged in property development and property
investment in Shenzhen, the PRC. At the date of approval of
these financial statements, the transaction was not completed
yet.

Pursuant to the undertaking letter given by Kezhigu to the
Group dated 25 February 2013, Kezhigu has agreed that the
purchase of certain properties from the Group (note 33) shall be
conditional upon the approval of the independent shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company. In the
event that the aforesaid shareholders” approval is not obtained,
Kezhigu shall enter into the relevant termination agreement(s)
and/or arrangements with the Group in connection with the
termination of the purchase of the properties to the effect that
the purchase of the properties will be terminated and will not
be completed with the entire consideration of HK$338,842,000
being refunded to Kezhigu by the Group.

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 25 March 2013.

46. REHIK E1E

(i)

(if)

RZZB-—=F—A+t0 AEEERE (&
BRIt B AREE FRT R E
BAREX (SE)RBRIEAKREERAA
(DRIEARD) 22 MEBHTERA REFKE
BEEERBETRERD TRE (EE) 275 R
X REZRAEBERNKIBTK A HEE -
RINEARTFERIEENEERRYER
Bo-MHEZERBRERAH ZRHHART
B o

BENMZAMAEEZLE 2 BHA-T—=
FZAZTRABZABERGE BZAERE
BASEBESTYWE (ME33) BABIR
RRAQRAIREEFR RS EBER - FAE
E o MRS Lt 2 IR - AR 2 A A
HASERLILBEZSWETLARBLLL
Rk B BSEEREMES TR
KT E5ER  MAEBAEREZARERE
K {B338,842,00058 7T

47 L E IR E

HBRRENR B =F=A_+tHEHEEFZ
HE/E RO RETIE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEMBREE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FHT FHEL FHT
Restated Restated
KE7 s
RESULTS ES
REVENUE FROM BEQEER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS Al E: 8,568,254 7,320,584 6,502,460 5,284,032 4,080,821
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B AR F
(Including profit from (BRI R
discontinued operations) BEEHF) 3,701,801 2,892,293 2,440,527 1,660,249 1,700,585
Income tax expense PSR Y (1,141,561) (1,076,534) (863,660) (525,758) (677,100)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 2,560,240 1,815,759 1,576,867 1,134,491 1,023,485
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: T3 pE
Owners of the parent [SYNEIE ZDN 2,156,069 1,522,078 1,324,780 987,656 873,016
Non-controlling interests TR S 404,171 293,681 252,087 146,835 150,469
2,560,240 1,815,759 1,576,867 1,134,491 1,023,485
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- ¥E-8EK
CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
Total assets BEE 54,392,007 41,540,624 33,817,517 30,531,796 27,719,073
Total liabilities BEE (34,882,164)  (24,527,687)  (19,117,720)  (17,120,118)  (16,160,462)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR i (1,961,947) (1,469,558) (1,224,894) (1,021,669) (866,735)
17,547,896 15,543,379 13,474,903 12,390,009 10,691,876
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group | — Property interest held by the Company for

E-B-FARRAFAFEHEZWERES

sales

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
AL REEER

ES i3k R#& PRt e 35 (F7XK) % A

1. Purple Kylin Hill Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 100% 9,255.21 2011
ZEILTEE BRARIT FE

2. Shunde Shum Yip City Phase | Shunde District, Foshan Com. & Res. 100% 27,092.08 2011

City, Guangdong

JIE 728 % 5 39— BRAFLTIEER BEREE

3. Longgang Pingshan Dongsheng Shidai Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Com. & Res. 100% 135,161.64 2012
BEITILRRER BRARIT BEREE

4. Longgang Kengzi Yuyuan Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Com. & Res. 100% 30,862.84 2012
R REHE BRA R BEREE

5. Zhongxin Keji Building Shenzhen, Guangdong  Off. 100% 9,572.00 2001
REMBEAE BRA R i NES

6. Shenye Rui Cheng Phase | Changsha City, Hunan Res. 80% 24,133.82 2012
REER—H HEARDT FE

7. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Phase I to VI Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 18,860.33 2008-2011
EMEMRH—ERE BRAEMT BEREE

8. Garden Hill Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 24,346.19 2012
Fili#5 BRABEMT BEREE

9. Euro-view Garden Phase | & Il Dongguan, Guangdong  Res. 100% 68,124.15 2012
BB — K8 BRAR=N FE

10. Jinxiu Jiangcheng Phase | Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 16,279.87 2011
REEN— 4 TEE TN T FE
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group | — Property interest held by the Company for sales
E-B-FARRAFAFEHEZWERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
A REEER

LUES iy 3 ik PR (P7K) ZERAH

11. Shenyang Wuai Shengang Shenyang, Liaoning Com. & Res. 74.68% 55,728.36 2011
Bus Station and Meibo Trading Centre
EELERBRREUREEE ST O BELEGT AEREE

12. Terra Building Shenzhen, Guangdong  Ind. 75% 101,938.28 2012
FAKE ERERIT Ix

13. Nanhu Rose Bay Phase I to IlI Wuhan, Hubei Com. & Res. 75% 56,893.42 2012
EHBRE 2= HMItE R ED AEREE

14. Yihu Rose Court Phase I-I Chengdu, Sichuan Com. & Res. 52.5% 59,252.33 2012
TR IE-1H P11 B #B AEREE

15. Tian’an Panyu Phase V to VI Panyu, Guangdong Ind. & Res. 37.5% 130,414.26 2009-2012
REBEBRENHY EREER TEREE

16. Tian’an Changzhou Shanggu Changzhou, Jiangsu Ind. & Res. 37.5% 127,041.17 2012
BMRZHA TERE BT TEREE

17. Tian’an Jiangyin Cyber-City Phase | Jiangyin, Jiangsu Ind. 37.5% 67,838.50 2012
RZTR BN — 5 IEHEIRT T%

18. Tian’an Dongguan Dongguan, Guangdong  Ind. 29.3% 18,999.91 2012
New Cyber-City Phase |
ARRZHEHH—H ERERZM I%

19. Tian’an Chongging Cyber-City Phase | Chongging Ind. 37.5% 130,977.06 2012
ARBEHEH B BEM T%

20. Tian’an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 12,213.15 2012
Phase Il
AREMBBHRR =5 ERERIT Ix

21. Coastal International Centre — Apt. Suzhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 14,088.73 2009
HEERRL-RE T ERE RN T F=E

Sub-total /N5t : 1,139,073.30
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group Il - Property interest held by the Company under development
BFE-AQRAKARERR2YRER

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
NE REEER
ES i3k R#& PRt e 35 (F7XK) % A
22. Shunde Shum Yip City Phase Il Shunde District, Res. 100%  135,979.44 2013
Foshan City,
Guangdong

I 728 % 2 9 — 58 BRAEMFBLUTIRER F=

23. Guangzhou Jinshawan Project Guangzhou, Guangdong  Res. 100% 267,763.00 2014
BN e EEE EREEMT F=

24, Heyuan Saina Bay Phase | Heyuan, Guangdong Res. 100% 55,780.74 2013
LR 2E i — H) EREIRT F=

25. Sanshui Yundonghai Garden Phase | Foshan, Guangdong Res. 100% 256,647.59 2013
=KERBIEE—H BRA LT F=

26. Rui Cheng Phase 1.2 Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 217,037.00 2013
41280 WEERD™ F=

27. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Phase VIII Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 257,490.00 2014
BN E A\ H BRAEEMT =

28. Jinxiu Jiangcheng Phase Il Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 174,594.00 2014
SRAS = — 5 TLERE M =

29. Euro-view Garden Phase Il Dongguan, Guangdong  Res. 100% 35,996.00 2014
LR BB = BREARET F=

30. Nanhu Rose Bay Phase Il Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 116,751.33 2014
IR E = 1) Wb A BE™ F=

31. Yihu Rose Court Phase I-1 Chengdu, Sichuan Res. 52.5% 49,464.40 2013
TR BB SE -1 9 )11 & Bk #B i =
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group Il - Property interest held by the Company under development
BFE-AQRAKARERR2YRER

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
AL REEER
IES i3k A% Pt R 35 (F7XK) % A H
32. Tian'an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 85,404.00 2014
Phase VII & VIII
R EBEEIR A RN\ EREER I
33. Tian'an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase V. Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.8% 36,404.55 2013
K2 7 e B 3 T EREmEE T
34. Tian’an Dongguan Dongguan, Guangdong  Ind. & Res. 29.3% 159,645.89 2013
New Cyber-City Zone B & E
RE R HIHB N ER ERERZ=M TEREE
35. Tian’an Jiangyin Cyber-City Phase | Jiangyin, Jiangsu Res. 37.5% 134,933.01 2014
R LIe B3 — 5 TERE LR B2
36. Tian'an Tianjin Cyber-City Phase | Xiqing, Tianjin Ind. 37.5% 139,730.00 2014
R R B —H REMAFER I%
37. Shum Yip Hua Fu Ma’anshan, Anhui Res. 99.54% 180,256.00 2013
REER ZEEFELM ==
Sub-total /N5t : 2,303,876.95

FRYIEREBRDF 2012FF 5,



Property List
Y% — Bk

Group Il - Property interest held by the Company for future development
F=E-FRAKRFRRBREZYXER

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
AL REEER
ES i3k R#& PRt e 35 (F7XK) % A
38. No.1 GaobangShan Garden Huizhou, Res. 70%  422,290.02 2017
Guangdong
BN —SRIEE BRAEEMT F=
39. Heyuan Saina Bay Heyuan, Guangdong Res. 100%  304,219.91 2016
AR 2E 4 ERERT {BE%E
40. Sanshui Yundonghai Garden Foshan, Guangdong  Res. 100%  354,499.97 2016
=KEREBIEE EREHLS F=
41. Shunde Shum Yip City Shunde District, Res. 100%  297,553.66 2015
Phase 11l and IV Foshan City,
Guangdong
g 18 3% 25 3 = Ko P £ BRAEMFBLUTIRER F=
42. Garden Hill Huizhou, Res. 100% 108,654.78 2015
Guangdong
e BRAEEMT F=
43. Rui Cheng Changsha, Hunan Res. 80%  243,086.14 2016
E WEERD™ F=
44, Huizhou Wanlin Lake South Huizhou, Res. 100% 67,015.00 2014
Guangdong
BB & BRAEEMT F=
45. Jinxiu Jiangcheng Phase 11 Jiangyan, Jiangsu Res. 100%  368,769.22 2015
A EW =1 TEHEEED F=
46. Huizhou Daya Bay Project Huizhou, Res. and Off. 80% 42,240.00 2014
Guangdong
BHATEER BRAEEMT EERMAE
47. Chengdu Jinxiu Workshops Chengdu, Sichuan Ind. 85.8% 11,617.76 2015
BSR4 L% )l & A B I
48. Yihu Rose Court Chengdu, Sichuan Res. 52.5%  197,697.82 2015
=ik e )l & A B F=
49. Terra Chengdu Northern Chengdu, Sichuan Res. 52.5%  474,925.28 2016
New Town Project
R ONPK ERAL BB FT (R 1R B 7)1 % B B T =
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group Il — Property interest held by the Company for future development
FZE-ARRAFAFERRBREZUEER

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
AL REEER
mE bichlS Jiikes Pt s (FFHXK) % A
50. Nanhu Rose Bay Phase IV Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 83,261.65 2015
A 4 3 3R & 7 B ibE BE T (Eas
51. Tian’an Longgang New Cyber-City  Shenzhen, Ind. 37.5% 91,431.32 2014
Guangdong
R 2 B feel SRS F9 BRE R I%
52. Tian’an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 62,158.00 2015
K& B BEREHER I%
53. Tian’an Nanhai Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.8% 31,773.35 2014
New Cyber-City Phase VI
R 2 /3 SRS 75 H BEREmME I%
54. Tian’an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Ind. 29.3%  164,346.00 2015
Guangdong
K& RS F BRERET I%
55. Tian’an Changzhou New Cyber-City Changzhou, Jiangsu  Ind. 37.5%  303,220.54 2015
R 2 M SRS #9 TEE BN H I%
56. Tian’an Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Ind. 37.5%  147,624.45 2015
REITIE BRI TERAEITET I%
57. Tian’an Tianjin Cyber-City Xiqging, Tianjin Ind. 37.5% 429,599.54 2015
RERFZBIEE REMAT R I%
58. Tian’an Chongqing Cyber-City Chongging Ind. 37.5%  628,909.63 2015
R EEHEN EETM I%
59. Sanshui Yundonghai Plot 5 Foshan, Guangdong Hotel 100% 90,016.44 2016
=KRER G5 IR BRAE LT B IE
60. Caohu Shumyip Hot Spring Chaohu, Anhui Res. 100%  125,098.19 2015
EOMRFEF ISR ZHEENT r=
61. Kashi Project Kashi, Xinjiang Res. 100%  285,666.50 2015
e {18 B FiEmE T £
Sub-total /)&t 5,335,675.17
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group IV - Property interest held by the Company for investment
FNE-ARAFAEREZMERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
NHE BELEE
ES it 4k Jick Rl 3 (£HXK) &R EH
62. Shun Hing Square Junction of Shennan  Com., Off., 100% 18,367.11 1996
Zhong Road, Jiefang Res. and Carpark
Road and Baoan Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen
EEES RINT & = [SERE VNS
RETBBREE EEREES
BERHERIR
63. Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Com. and Off. 100% 7,422.84 1997
Road, Luohu,
Shenzhen
R D RINT & = [SEYSE VNS
R
64. Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Com./Res., 50% 5,853.09 1993
Luohu, Shenzhen Com. and
Carpark
ERKNE I TH 2 @ T
ARE®K [SE SR
65. Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Com./Res. 100% 1,376.98 1993
Luohu, Shenzhen
ERKNE I TH 2 @ T
ARE®K
66. Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Off 100% 3,931.39 1991
Luohu, Shenzhen
RENE I TH 2 @ PRE
387 K
67. Shen Gang Garden Shennan Dong Com. and Res. 80% 3,380.14 1994
Road, Luohu,
Shenzhen
RBIEE RINT & = FEREE
R B R
68. Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off., 75% 132,707.76 1994-2010

EABIER

RYITH R E R

Com./Res., Ind.,
Res. and Carpark
[ /N
B E T
EEREES
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Y% — Bk

Group IV - Property interest held by the Company for investment
FHE-FARAFAEREZMERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
NH BREEER
LES bichs ik AL 3 (FFHXK) % A
69. No.10 Fuxing Nan Road Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75% 64.44 1990
BEEK10%% AT 4E A = r=
70. Shenhua Science & Meilin Road, Futian, Ind. 75% 15,341.58 1994
Technology Park Shenzhen
REREE RINTEAREMEE T
71. Shop in No.117 Fuxing Road Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 50.49 1993
BER175% AT 4E A = [HES
72. Shen Gang Xin Cun Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. and Carpark 80% 8,913.43 1992
B RN T 7 &= TENEEY
73. Fuxing Building No.9 Fuxing Road, Com., Off. and 100% 1,593.20 1993
Futian, Shenzhen Carpark
RBEANE FIN T 48 B & BEE - MAER
8 £ 5K 95% BEG
74. Tian’an Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Off., Ind., Res. 37.5% 51,587.38 2000-2005
and Carpark
RRERNBIERE FIN T 48 B & /NE
EELEES
75. Tian’an Nanhai Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. and Carpark 33.8% 34,203.69 2011
New Cyber-City Phase Il
KL 8BS F — H EBREmME TENEEY
76. Tian’an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Ind., Res. and 37.5% 30,908.10 2011
Carpark
KL BB BEREHRB I FZEk
BE5
77. Tian’an Longgang New Cyber-City  Shenzhen, Com. and Ind. 37.5% 31,626.60 2011
Guangdong
R 2 BE e BR A T BRAE R T RENTE
78. Tian’an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Ind. 29.3% 2,833.46 2012
Guangdong
K& RS HT BRAERET T
79. Shenrong Building Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Res. 40% 6,883.78 2000

REKE
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group IV - Property interest held by the Company for investment
FNE-ARAFAEREZMERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
NE HREEER
ES i3k R#& Frib s (F7XK) % A H
80. Huagang Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Res. 80% 2,198.73 1995
EB I RYIT e AR =
81. Yitai Centre Luohu, Shenzhen Com. 100% 627.48 1995
TBZH L RYITH 7R & [EES
82. Qing Shui He Warehouse Zone Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 95.4% 163,200.00 2016
BB E R RN & = I
83. Shum Yip Garden Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,646.43 2002
REIEE RYIT e AR [EES
84. Sungang Warehouse Zone Baoan Bei Road, Ind. and Com. 95.4%  102,658.00 1990-2002
Luohu, Shenzhen
Bk R B R RYITH 7R & TEREE
B4
85. Compostie Building on Baoan Bei Road, Com./Res. 95.4% 4,812.73 1991
Taoyuan Road Luohu, Shenzhen
PRIR 5% 7 & 18 RYITH 7R & 0=
B2
86. Dormitory Building on Baoan Bei Road, Com./Res. 95.4% 4,835.28 1988
Taoyuan Road Luohu, Shenzhen
PRI BE 75 = 12 RYITH 7R & 0=
B2
87. Zijing Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Carpark 100% 7,257.00 1997
ELTED w48 A = FHE5
88. Jinze Bldg. Tianhe District, Res. 80% 240.91 1997
Guangzhou
BEXNE J& M T R0 & =
89. Guangzhou Fuxing Com. & Huangpu Da Road,  Off 80% 150.55 1997
Trading Bldg. Tianhe District,
Guangzhou
ENEERMEAE J& M T R0 & F/NES
=IHAE
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Y% — Bk

Group IV - Property interest held by the Company for investment
FEE-ARAFAEREZMERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
NE REEER
IES i3k itk Frib s (F7XK) % A H
90. S.Z. Int’l. Trust and Investment Junction of Zhenxin  Off. 75% 1,316.54 1990
Corp. Building Road and Shangbu
Zhong Road, Futian,
Shenzhen
RYNBEBRAETEIRE B AR KE RITRERARKRE HAE
BE Re b A BE AR
91. Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning ~ Com. and Ind. 74.68% 27,853.00 1994-1996
B IE B BEEREST MERIE
92. Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Shenyang, Liaoning ~ Com. and 74.68% 86,645.49 2011
Station and Meibo Trading Centre Carpark
BEAERBREWLR BEEREST BEREES
EEHE S0
93. Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Com. and Off. 100% 42,518.00 2009
HE BB AL TEREEM T [HESE NS
94. Jinzhou Building Suzhou, Jiangsu Off. 100% 1,865.00 1990’s
LMAE TEREEM T F/NES
95. Chengdu Jinxiu Workshops Chengdu, Sichuan Com. and 85.8% 30,084.89 2008
Carpark
BB SR 4B L% )l & A B BEREES
96. Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Com., Res., Ind. 100% 289,368.53 1983-2005
Guangdong and Carpark
BEYE BERERINT mE EE
TEREES
Sub-total /JN&t 1,125,324.02
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group V - Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
FEE-FARAFAEERZNERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
AL REEER
IES i3k R#& PRt e 35 (F7XK) % A
97. Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Off. 100% 5,559.00 1997
Road, Luohu,
Shenzhen
RER D RYI T 7R & B /NES
R B
98. Song Ping Shan Estate Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 77.27 1996
ST E2 w48 A & F=
99. Tian Yuan Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 103.23 1997
FH 28 7 A RYIT e AR BE=E
100.  Caohu Shumyip Hot Spring Chaohu, Anhui Hotel 100% 34,721.91 2012
BOMRE LIS H R LB ENT B I
101.  Jinhui Hujing Garden Huizhou, Res. 100% 325.66 2008
Guangdong
LEMHRIEE BREEMT F=
102. Heyuan Agile Garden Heyuan, Guangdong Res. 100% 383.56 2009
AR A JE 2 FE B R A AR F=
103. Yitai Centre Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 337.40 1995
TRZEF D R TH & = F=
104.  Shumyip Coast Baoan, Shenzhen Com. 100% 3,728.75 2005-2008
REFER RYITHE 2 & [EES
105. Shenfa Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 86.37 1994
REEIEE R TH & = F=
106. Cai Tian Ming Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 324.44 2001
FRAD RYIT e AR {BE%2
107. Block 611, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 9,418.02 1985
N3 EE611R RYIT e AR T
108.  Factory in Xuexiang Village Longgang, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 2,168.10 2005
ERNEE RYI T RE el [ I%¥
109. Factory in Xia Shijia Village Baoan, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 5,088.10 1990’s
TAERNBE RYITHE 2 & I%¥
110. Block 8 Peng Sheng Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 47.06 1992
6 2% 1t 8 1R RYIT e AR {BE%E
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Group V - Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
FEE-ARAFAEERAZNERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
NE REEER

IES i3k R#& Frib s (F7XK) % A H

111.  Block 51, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 35.31 1995
NEE5TR RYIT e AR =

112.  Block 58 Peng Xing Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 72.69 1990’s
5 B TE [E] 5 81R RYITH 7R & =

113.  Block 8 Peng Sheng Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 47.06 1992
6 2% 1t 8 1R RYITEE R =

114. Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Hotel 100% 38,690.71 2009
HE BB AL TEREEM T B IE

115.  Shenrong Building Futian, Shenzhen Com. & Res. 40% 3,643.14 2000
RERE RYITHEE R % MEE

116.  No.4 Tengfei Street Shenyang, Liaoning  Res. and Carpark 74.68% 153.11 1992
e R 457 BEELEST EEREFEES

117. Land in Shawan Shawan, Shenzhen Carpark 80% 1,480.00 2002
W&t RN E A EE5

118.  Block 709, Liangtang Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 80% 4,941.49 1994
Industrial Area
HEETXR709M AR T 7 & Ix

119. Lian Nan Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 80% 744.28 1993
EEE R TR fr

120.  Shenyang Dongfang Weinisi Shenyang, Liaoning  Res. 74.68% 160.48 2005
B R T BB HT BEELEST =

121.  Shenyang Wuai Logistic Building ~ Shenyang, Liaoning  Ind. 74.68% 5,680.00 1994-1996
BELEEER EELREBT I

122.  Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Shenyang, Liaoning  Carpark 74.68% 40,106.74 2011
Station and Meibo Trading Centre
BEAERBREWR BEELEST BE5
EHEEHP O

123.  Building on Xinghe Road Huizhou, Res. 40% 543.30 2002

Guangdong

EnRiET BRAEBEMT =
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Property List
Y% — Bk

Group V - Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
FEE-ARAFAEERAZNERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
NE BEEHER
IES i3k itk Frib s (F7K) 3=k
124.  Buildings and Land in Jian, Jiangxi, Off. & Ind. 40.8% 12,874.33 1978-2004
Taihe County
TG L REE TAETRM MRERTE
125.  Elaine Court Nos.211-215 Res. 40% 43.01 1986
Tong Choi Street,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
a2 BENEBRIE2 EE
Z215%%
126.  Shing Tak Mansion No.15 Peace Ave., Res. 40% 62.71 1962
Homantin, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
%N BENEAXHANF E=
155
127.  Jinsong Building Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 75% 3,600.00 2001
YPIAKNE RYITEE R I%
128.  Jinghai Garden Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75% 200.24 1998
RBIEE RYITEE R =
129.  Bihai Hong Shu Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Com. 75% 7,431.11 2004
EBABE w48 A = [EES
130.  Mingzhu Times Square Ma’anshan, Anhui Res. 99.54% 462.40 2005
HERKES ZEEFBLT =
Sub-total /N5t 183,340.98

Grand-total #25T:
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFXSES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
Shenzhen Investment Limited (“the Company”) will be held at Garden
Room, 2nd Floor, Hotel Nikko Hong Kong, 72 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Thursday, 13 June 2013 at 10:30 a.m. for

the following purposes:—

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements, the report

of the directors and the independent auditor’s report for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012.

3. To consider and approve, each as a separate resolution, if thought fit,

the following resolutions:

(d)

to re-elect Mr. LIU Chong as Director.
to re-elect Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael as Director.

to resolve not to fill up the vacated offices resulted from the
retirement of Mr. WONG Po Yan as Director.

to authorize the board of Directors to fix the remuneration of
the Directors.

4. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to fix

their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and,

if thought fit, to pass with or

without modifications the following resolutions:—

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. “THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to repurchase
shares in the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or on any other
stock exchange on which the securities of the Company may
be listed and is recognised by the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject
to and in accordance with all applicable laws and/or the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange as
amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

FRYIERERDF 2012FF 5,

%ES

RYIERAERAR (KRR TR -F—=

=

FRAT=R (EHPM) EF+BE=

DIREEE LB

KV IR AR M E 725 B S B UE E R BT

RERBEAE -

HEHE T

PN

TEFTA=T—RHIEFEZE

ERVBRER EEeRERBE I RBERSE -

E1$5)E%§Eﬁz§_$—_¢+:ﬁ =+—HIFE
ZRNE PR S

= R BB E T 5 & HRHE

(d)

%ﬁ’jéﬁi/}%u#% .

ERIREEBEES-
ERRBERELERES-

BATEBEERMALEREEETMEEN
W ZER

REEFEETEFTHE -

EERBMEEREETEETANS -

EAFREERE EREERBNBEREBTIARASRE (THAS
1B35]) :

5.

BEBRRER

S5

(a)

ERRBRODBRZHART  — & R S5 5
HHEARR B EEN AR (BT XHAR
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FrERAR ([BEAZFT]) AR B 275
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Pt UL T ER Al 2 R R E 55 H 2 S - LTJE
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BRRBFAREES

6.

(b)

the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be repurchased
by the Company pursuant to the approval of paragraph (a) of
this resolution shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date of the passing of this resolution and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be

held; and

(iii

the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders of
the Company in general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the directors of the Company by this
resolution.”

“THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution and pursuant to
Section 57B of the Companies Ordinance, the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to allot, issue
and deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company
and to make and grant offers, agreements and options (including
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities which
carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require shares to be allotted
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to
make and grant offers, agreements and options (including
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities which
carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require shares to be allotted
after the end of the Relevant Period;

(b)

AR BUKBARE R (B 2 #EAE B R Z B )
AEAEITSEBTNARRERBE AAR
AR BTERAHEARZAD 2T MARE
RQ@BRZENTVAZ RS &

RARRRMS

[BERME] DEARBRERBZRHEET
FIEMRS 2 B8 1z 8

(i) ARATEBRRBFERNSHERE:

(i) EPIREARAERIT TREERBFX
SHREM B &

(i) AARBRRAEBRRAES LBBEBRA
EHHEIEERNRERETARAES
ZKEN -]

6. [B&&:

(a)

ERRBROBRZART RARE A BRG] £
57BffF —MRREMSEERRARESRER
ERHE (B TXMAE) ATEARRAA
BN AR BT REEARBRAT ZHE
SNELAD - AEH R TR R B M D 2 EAE
o e M (BREM AR RER A ER

RARBRMND 2 REER B BEES R
BEREMES)

ARBRQBRZHEBEEARAEERE
BMEMEAELRETREERE BHREE
RECE I 2 SRR 13 R (25K
BRENRBE LA ER SRR A KD 2 BAHE
FESF BREE ZBEREMES)
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()

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the directors of the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined); or (ii) the exercise of rights of subscription
or conversion under the terms of any existing warrants, bonds,
debentures, notes or other securities issued by the Company
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares
of the Company; or (iii) the exercise of options granted under
any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue of shares or rights to acquire
shares in the Company; or (iv) any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of
the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the
passing of this resolution and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be

held; and

(iii

the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders of
the Company in general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the directors of the Company by this
resolution.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or issue of options,
warrants or other securities giving the right to subscribe for
shares of the Company open for a period fixed by the directors
of the Company to holders of shares whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company (and, where
appropriate, to holders of other securities of the Company
entitled to the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion
to their then holdings of such shares of the Company (or,
where appropriate such other securities) (subject in all cases
to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors of
the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation
to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions
or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any
territory applicable to the Company).”

FRYIERERDF 2012FF 5
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ARABEBERBEARBR (B 2 HEREK
FEA MR S\ SRR (THET
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“THAT subject to the passing of resolution nos. 5 and 6 set out in the
notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to the
directors of the Company to exercise the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the Company pursuant
to resolution no. 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting
be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority
granted pursuant to resolution no. 5 set out in the notice convening
this meeting, provided that such extended amount shall not exceed
10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of this resolution.”

[BRGERARNEBEME ZERFRRASR
BRBE BARTARRAEEREGRARE R
S BORRBRITEARA ZENBLH - 3
TREERNRBEINMED 2 —RERE - BRRARQ
ARBEARAARNGBREMRZESTHRARK T2
BABE 2 ANRARBRAREABRINAZE —RE
B HEZBAZHEINSERARARE RSB
ERARACHETRAEMERLRZBD 21 ]

By order of the Board
Shenzhen Investment Limited
LU Hua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 April 2013

Registered Office:

8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,
9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong.

Notes:

REEG 0
FRIFERBRA A
B

FE

A FELE
58

LB
EZLE!
ESCbECh

R EDLN\E

GEE

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead
of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power or authority must be deposited at the registered office of the Company
at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
meeting or any adjournment thereof.

To ascertain the shareholders” entitlement to attend and vote at the meeting,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 7 June
2013 to Thursday, 13 June 2013, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the meeting, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrars, Tricor
Standard Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 June 2013.

REEBFEREINE LREZARRRR HEEER
R—RIRZURKREFE  TREERRERELR X
RERBEARARARRE

RERZEXRREABREZZIZRB L RES R EMRE
X (B REAEARZEERZREE X REXE
A FBARAG S EAE &SRR R+ NE A
RERQAR ZAEMPER (it AEBNERYDERZ
RBITHRBRETLNE) TREK-

REERREZAHEAGUREZEN  ARAHE-F
—ZHXAtR(EHRA)ZE"2-—=ZFXA+T=RH(E
W) (BEREMABEERN) EEMERNBFERTE
PETEELEMBRNEE RERNTAEAREFEAS
VRE MEAZZBENEFXRRERARERE KEBR
R-ZF—=%F"AXA (2EH0) TFEE=1+281FR
EARBZBMBEERLR  SEREFARAR HUR
ERERANBR28FSEED L261E
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Subject to approval of the shareholders at the meeting, the proposed final
dividend will be payable to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Thursday, 20 June 2013. To ascertain the
shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 19 June 2013
to Thursday, 20 June 2013, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrars, Tricor
Standard Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 18 June 2013.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), any vote of the shareholders
at the meeting shall be taken by poll except where the Chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matters to be voted on a show of hands and the Company will
announce the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5)
of the Listing Rules.

With regard to items 3 and 5 to 7 of this notice, a circular giving details of the
re-election of retiring directors and general mandates to repurchase shares and
to issue shares will be despatched to the shareholders together with the Annual
Report 2012 of the Company on 26 April 2013.

This notice is also available for viewing on the website of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and the website of the
Company at www.shenzheninvestment.com from 26 April 2013.

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises 9 directors, of which Mr. LU
Hua, Mr. MOU Yong, Mr. WANG Minyuan and Mr. LIU Chong are executive
directors of the Company, Dr. WU Jiesi and Mr. HUANG Yige are non-
executive directors of the Company and Mr. WONG Po Yan, Mr. LI Wai Keung
and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael are independent non-executive directors of
the Company.
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